<9
MUNICIPALITY ZZ3% OF ASSIGINACK

J .‘/"‘\.
AT
BOX 238, MANITOWANING, ON, POP 1NO
(705) 859-3196 or 1-800-540-0179

www .assiginack.ca

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
IN CHAMBERS
Tuesday, September 19, 2023, at 7:00 pm
AGENDA

. OPENING

a) Land Acknowledgment
b) Adoption of Agenda
¢) Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof

. ANNOUNCEMENTS

. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

a.) Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council of September 12, 2023

b.) Minutes of the Committee of the Whole of September 5, 2023

c.) Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council of September 5, 2023

d.) Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council of August 29, 2023

e.) Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council of August 22, 2023

f) Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council of August 15, 2023

g.) Minutes of the Strategic Planning Advisory Committee of August 8, 2023

. DELEGATIONS

a.) Hydro One - Sandy Point Subdivision

. REPORTS

a.) Public Works Report
b.) Sunsite Estates Drinking Water System Annual Report

. ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS

a.) Accounts for Payment: General $ 1,089,175.86
Payroll $ 98,143.12
b.) Draft Request for Proposal: Toboggan Hill Canteen

. INFORMATION ITEMS

a.) OPP Letter: Re: Distribution of Police Record Check Revenue to Municipalities
b.) OPP Statistics



8. BY-LAWS
a.) 2023-16: Sale of Surplus Property (Clover Valley Schoolhouse)
b.) 2013-17: Draft Property Standards By-law

9. CLOSED SESSION
a.) Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications
necessary for that purpose.
b.) Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications
necessary for that purpose.

10. ADJOURNMENT



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL

The Special Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack was
held in the Council Chambers on Tuesday, September 12, 2023, at 7:00 p.m.

Present: Mayor Brenda Reid
Councillor Dwayne Elliott
Councillor Jennifer Hooper

Staff: Alton Hobbs, CAO
Heidi Ferguson, Clerk
Deb MacDonald, Treasurer
Freda Bond, Taxes and Utilities Manager
Crystal Lentir, Administrative Assistant
Jackie White, Project Events Coordinator

Members of the Public: Frank Klodnicki
Regrets: Councillor Janice Bowerman and Councillor Rob Maguire

OPENING:

#204-18-2023 D. Elliott — J. Hooper

THAT the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack be opened for business at 7:00 p.m., with a quorum of members present, with
Mayor Reid presiding in the Chair.

CARRIED

The Land Acknowledgement was read.
AGENDA.:

#205-18-2023 J. Hooper — D. Elliott
THAT we adopt the agenda as presented.
CARRIED

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST:
NONE

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Councillor Hooper shared that this past weekend was the 147" Annual Fall Fair held by
the Agriculture Society. The event was well attended and there were lots of events for
attendees lo take part in. Councillor Hooper thanked everyone who attended and entered
the fair and congratulated and thanked the Agriculture Society for their hard work and a
good event! Anyone interested in participating in next year's fair, is encouraged to contact
the Agriculture Society on how to submit your entries or volunteer.

Page 1 of 3



ADOPTION OF MINUTES:
NONE

DELEGATIONS:
NONE

REPORTS:

Mayor's Report: The Mayor advised that the Norisle will be departing our community
between September 25" to 29%. The cost to dispose of the Norisle includes a number of
items such as transportation and tugs; a Special Pilot; US Assistance in Lake St. Clair,
and the St. Mary’s, due to the close proximity to the US; insurance; and recycling and
disposal fees.

The Mayor clarified that the cost of restoration would be much higher than the cost fo
recycle it. The Mayor also explained that sinking the ship as a method of disposal would
also have significant costs, along with the environmental implications that would need to
be considered and that with this method, a permit is required fo do so and it would be
very unlikely we would be granted permission.

It was shared that the wheel and binnacle will go to the Museum for display, as well as
some other items and the Museum Committee will determine how these will be displayed.
Within our website, we will have a page that people can share their photos and memories
of the Norisle, that will be preserved.

Once there is a definitive date of departure, the public will be made aware.
ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS:

NOTE: Discussion took place regarding updating our Zoning By-laws with a new Draft
Comprehensive Zoning By-law.

An overview of the processes and procedures, including mandatory public consultation
was provided by the Clerk.

The CAOQ informed Council that the Draft By-law was written by staff with the intention of
keeping it simple and easy to understand. The format that was used is similar to other
By-laws from other municipalities, with the table of contents specifying the various
sections and the bulk of the information contained within the Definitions and Section 7.

Discussion was held regarding some of the proposed changes that staff are seeking
guidance on from Council. Staff asked that Council consider these issues and how we
should address them as we move forward, and that clarification can be sought from the
planners on what the established planning practices are for these items.

NOTE: Discussion regarding the Information Center/Toboggan Hill took place. The
insulation of the floor is now complete and the space is ready to be used. Permission to
advertise the space for use during the winter months, as a pilot project was discussed.
Council requested that staff draft an RFP to be reviewed at next week’s council meeting.

Page 2 of 3



INFORMATION ITEMS:
NONE

BY-LAWS:
NONE

CLOSED SESSION:
#206-18-2023 D. Elliott — J. Hooper
THAT in accordance with By-law # 02-02 as amended, and Section 239 of the Municipal
Act, as amended, Council proceed to a Closed Session at 7:48 p.m., in order to attend to
matters pertaining to:
a.) Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board
employees.

CARRIED
#207-18-2023 J. Hooper - D. Elliott

THAT we adjourn from Closed Session at 7:59 p.m., accept the minutes of the previous
Closed Session and resume our regular meeting.

CARRIED

#208-18-2023 J. Hooper — D. Elliott
THAT we adjourn at 8:00 p.m. until the next regular meeting or call of the Chair.

CARRIED

Brenda Reid, MAYOR Heidi Ferguson, CLERK

*These Minutes have been circulated but are not considered Official until approved by Council.

Page 3 of 3



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES
Tuesday, September 5, 2023 at 7:06pm

PRESENT: Mayor Brenda Reid, Councillors Janice Bowerman, Dwayne Elliott,
Jenntfer Hooper, Robert Maguire

Staff: Alton Hobbs- CAO, Heidi Ferguson- Clerk, Deb MacDonald — Treasurer,
Freda Bond- Tax & Utility Manager, Jackie White- PEC, Ron Cooper- PW
Superintendent.

Moved by Councillor Bowerman:

THAT the meeting be opened with Mayor Reid presiding in the Chair.
CARRIED

Disclosures: None at this time.

la) Veteran's Banner Policy

The Committee reviewed the Draft Veteran's Banner Policy and sought
clarification from staff on a few of the items including if we have bottom
banner arms and if we should include a definitive banner size within the
policy for future purchasing. The committee recommended that we
amend the error in the second paragraph under the Procedures for
Installation, include a copy of the invoice to be attached to the policy for
future purchasing ease and that we amend the policy to specify where we
will store the banners at the Museum to include that they will be stored
inside the Museum.

Moved by Councillor Bowerman, Seconded by Councillor Hooper:
THAT we approve the Veteran's Banner Policy with the changes identified.

CARRIED

1b) Property Standards Clarification:

Staff explained that we have had requests from neighbors regarding
overgrown lots. We have many lots within the Township that have not
been developed and are still forests or were previously developed many
years ago but have returned to their original state.

Staff are seeking guidance from the Committee when we review the
Property Standards By-law on how they would like this addressed within
the by-law and to what standard.

Discussion was had regarding this and whether it is the municipality's
responsibility to cut the grass from the lot line to the sidewalk or the
property owner's responsibility. Staff explained that it has never been

1



municipal policy to cut this portion of grass or ask the property owner
to do so.

lc) In Memoriam Signage Request:

The Committee reviewed a request to have a sign in memory of Andy
Bowerman installed on Rodger's Creek Bridge. As many members of the
Committee mentioned, Andy served as a member of Council for many
years and was one of the members instrumental in getting this bridge.

The Mayor clarified that the request is for the installation of a sign, not
the re- naming of the bridge. After discussion, the Committee asked staff
to explore a number of options including cost, size, placement, and
maintenance and requested that staff bring back a report at the next
Committee of the Whole Meeting.

2a) Public Works Superintendent Report

The Committee was provided with an overview by the Public Works
Superintendent of the work and projects that Public Works has been
completing recently and what projects will be completed in the month of
September. Members of the committee had the opportunity to ask the
Public Works Superintendent their questions regarding Public Works and
the current projects.

Members of the committee thanked the Superintendent for his cost
savings approach and judgement on not proceeding to calcium the
road this Fall.

2b) Birch Street Gravel:

The Public Works Superintendent explained that we had planned to have
this street hard surfaced this year, however the company would not
warranty the work, due to the poor condition of the current hard
surfacing. The Public Works Superintendent is requesting the Committee's
approval to grade the roadway and mix in the remaining hard surfacing
with gravel this Fall. This would mean that this street would temporarily go
back to a gravel road with plans to hard surface next year. The cost to
patch this road otherwise, will be very expensive.

The Committee agreed and advised the Superintendent to proceed and
suggested that the culverts be inspected now, with the hard surfacing to
be discussed when the Budget is reviewed next month.

2c) Sucker Lake Road Maintenance:

The Public Works Superintendent advised Council that typically Public
Works plows the road in the winter all the way to the beach and turns
around in the cul-de-sac, which is private property. The Superintendent
would like to build a turnaround to the right for the snowplow, to stay off
of private property and wanted to advise Council of this.



2d) Sandy Point Subdivision

The Public Works Superintendent explained that as per his email, he has
concerns with where the hydro poles have been installed in the Sandy
Point Subdivision, as they are in the middle of ditch and some very close
to the road and this has been done without consulting the Township or
our permission.

The Public Works Superintendent is recommending that we contact Hydro
One to set up a meeting to share our concerns.

Discussion took place and the Committee agreed and would like staff to
contact Hydro One to share our concerns and invite a representative to a
meeting. The Committee would also like to know what agreements and
processes other communities have with Hydro One and to check with our
neighbors in Wiikwemkoong.

2e) Church Road Status

The Public Works Superintendent informed members of the Committee that
the road has been widened and ditched and should solve the previous
concerns. Discussion was had about drainage and ditching on this road.

2f) Request Maintenance of McLean's Road

Staff explained that we have received a request for McLean's Road, off New
England Road, to be maintained on a year-round basis by a new property
owner who lives there year-round.

Historically this road has not been maintained year-round for a number of
years and was a forced road that was transferred to the Township at least
fifty years ago. The Public Works Superintendent advised that it is
narrower than our regular roads, approximately 50 feet wide, and
there is nowhere to turn around unless you do so in a driveway and to
bring this road up to standards, it will require a lot of work.

The Committee was also advised that this road is only currently
seasonally maintained from May 1St to October 15%.

After discussion, the Committee requested that this item to come back
to the next Committee of the Whole.

The Public Works Superintendent informed members of the
Comimittee that the road has been widened and ditched and should
solve the previous concerns.

Discussion was had about drainage and ditching on this road.

2g) Cardwell Street Speeding

Councillor Hooper advised the Committee that there have been several
complaints and concerns expressed over the speeding on Cardwell Street,
especially where the speed switches from 50km to 70km. There are very
few times that drivers obey the speed limit, and this road has very little
police presence.

3



Discussion took place in regard to suggestions for improvements and the
Committee decided that they would like staff to contact the OPP and ask
for increased enforcement in this area, have our CPAC member bring this
issue up at the next CPAC Meeting, research the rules and regulations
around the signage required in a Community Safety Zone and have Public
Works install additional signage that could include speed limit sign,
Community Safety Zone and Children at Play.

3) Protection and Control
NONE

4a) Petition- Fishing at the Marina

NOTE: Prior to discussion of this item, Councillor Maguire declared a conflict of
interest and abstained from the discussion and any decisions on this matter.

Staff explained that we have received a petition from boaters at the Marina
regarding their concerns about us allowing fishing from the dock.
Discussion took place and the Committee would like to have staff bring a
report back to the next meeting to be discussed.

Moved by Councillor Hooper:

THAT we adjourn at 8:25 p.-m. until the next regular meeting or Call of the
Chair.

CARRIED

Chair: Brenda Reid Recording Officer: Heidi Ferguson

*These Minutes have been circulated but are not considered Official until approved by Council.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL

The Special Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack was
held in the Council Chambers on Tuesday, September 5, 2023, at 7:00 p.m.

Present: Mayor Brenda Reid
Councilior Dwayne Elliott
Councillor Jennifer Hooper
Counciller Robert Maguire
Councillor Janice Bowerman

Staff: Alton Hobbs, CAO
Heidi Ferguson, Clerk
Deb MacDoenald, Treasurer
Freda Bond, Taxes and Utilities Manager
Jackie White, Project Events Coordinator
Ron Cooper, Public Works Superintendent

OPENING:

#199-17-2023 R. Maguire - J. Hooper

THAT the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack be opened for business at 7:00 p.m., with a quorum of members present, with
Mayor Reid presiding in the Chair.

CARRIED

The Land Acknowledgement was read.

AGENDA:

#200-17-2023 R. Maguire — J. Hooper
THAT we adopt the agenda as presented.

CARRIED

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST:

NONE

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Councillor Elfiott shared that the MclLean's Park 6-Hour Bike Relay took place on
September 2" and was held by Sarah and Ben Quackenbush of Breakaway Sports. This
event had 42 participants and Councillor Elfiott thanked the Township for the use of the
trail and donation fowards event insurance.

Page 1 of 3



Councillor Hooper shared that the Summer Market at the Museum has now come to end
and that she wanted to thank the vendors for their commitment to the market each week
and commented on what a great event this was for the museum and how it attracted many
people to town and provided a great vibrancy downtown.

Councillor Bowerman shared that the reason she has been absent from the Council table
is because she had a conflict of interest with her job, however she advised that she has
officially retired and looks forward to being back.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES:

NONE

DELEGATIONS:

NONE

REPORTS:

NONE

ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS:

#201-17-2023 J. Bowerman — D. Elliott

THAT the following tenders have been received for the Provision of Gravel for Red Lodge
Road from the following contractors:

E. Corbiere & Sons $121,616.25 (including HST)
Don Eadie Construction $114,200.63 (including HST)
Mike Varey & Son Excavating  $112,420.87 (including HST)

AND WHEREAS Council accepts and awards this tender to Mike Varey & Son Excavating
in the amount of $112,420.87.

CARRIED

INFORMATION ITEMS:

NONE

BY-LAWS:

#202-17-2023 J. Hooper — R. Maguire

THAT By-law 2023-15, being a by-law to establish and execute an agreement between

adjoining municipalities as to the maintenance and repair of Red Lodge Road, be given
a first, second, third and final reading and enacted in open Council.

Page 2 of 3



CARRIED

NOTE: Discussion was held regarding the By-law to clarify how the expenditures would
be split between both municipalities. Staff explained that for routine maintenance, the
municipality that is responsible for the maintenance during that year would be responsible
to cover those costs and when a capital project or expense arises, then these costs would
be split evenly between both municipalities, as per the agreement.

The Public Works Superintendent provided Council with an overview of the capital project
for Red Lodge Road, including what the project entails and how the work will be
completed.

CLOSED SESSION:

NONE

CLOSING:

#203-17-2023 D. Elliott - J. Bowerman
THAT we adjourn at 7:06 p.m. until the next regular meeting or call of the Chair.

CARRIED

Brenda Reid, MAYOR Heidi Ferguson, CLERK

*These Minutes have been circulated but are not considered Official until approved by Council.

Page 3 of 3



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL

The Special Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack was
held in the Council Chambers on Tuesday, August 29, 2023, at 7:00 p.m.

Present: Mayor Brenda Reid
Councillor Dwayne Elliott
Councillor Jennifer Hooper
Councillor Robert Maguire

Staff: Alton Hobbs, CAO
Heidi Ferguson, Clerk
Deb MacDonald, Treasurer
Freda Bond, Taxes and Utilities Manager
Crystal Lentir, Administrative Assistant
Jackie White, Project Events Coordinator
Ron Cooper, Public Works Superintendent

Public: Denis Marion
Denise Shawana
Frank Klodnicki

Regrets: Councillor Janice Bowerman- Excused

OPENING:

#193-16-2023 R. Maguire — D. Elliott

THAT the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack be opened for business at 7:00 p.m., with a quorum of members present, with
Mayor Reid presiding in the Chair.

CARRIED

The Land Acknowledgement was read.

AGENDA:

#194-16-2023 D. Elliott - R. Maguire
THAT we adopt the agenda as presented.

CARRIED

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST:

NONE

Page 1 of 4



ANNOUNCEMENTS:

NONE

ADOPTION OF MINUTES:

NONE

DELEGATIONS:

NONE
REPORTS:
NONE

ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS:

#195-16-2023 D. Elliott — J. Hooper
THAT we accept the offer from Marine Recycling Corporation to dispose of the Norisle.

Recorded Vote

Councilior Bowerman- Excused
Councillor Elliott- Yea
Councillor Hooper- Yea
Councillor Maguire- Nay
Mayor Reid- Yea

CARRIED

NOTE: Mayor Reid addressed Council and the Public to advise that the Norisle currently
has a number of issues including ongoing maintenance of the vessel and pumps; safety
concerns for staff when they board the ship; risk of fire hazard to Mill; risk to our water
treatment plant; as well as it is on the Coast Guard's list and while we have not heard
from them regarding this, the fines resulting from being on this list can be high.

Mayor Reid explained that we have received a proposal from Marine Recycling
Corporation to dispose of the Norisle in the amount of $ 743,950.00 + taxes. Discussion
then took place regarding this proposal.

When asked how we would pay for this, staff explained that we would have to borrow the
money. Upon initial consultation with the Bank, if amortized over fifteen years, the cost
would be approximately $ 80,000 per year, depending on the interest rate or if
amortized over ten years, the cost would be approximately $ 100,000 per year,
depending on the interest rate.

Page 2 of 4



After much discussion, a resolution to support the proposal received from Marine
Recycling Corporation was put forward, a recorded vote was held, and the resolution was
carried.

NOTE: Discussion regarding the Feasibility Report by EXP for 115 Arthur Street took
place. The Mayor advised members of Council of the two options contained within the
plan and their costs. As per the report, to complete the renovations to the building, it will
cost § 1,322,100.00 and for the new construction option, it will cost $ 1,724,380.00. The
Mayor also presented a third option, which is to put the building up for Sale by Tender.

Council discussed different options they could explore including those proposed within
the report, as well as exploring other options such as using underutilized municipal
spaces to house these tenants, the importance of maintaining these services and not
displacing anyone and putting the building up for sale by tender.

Staff asked for Council’s permission to advertise the building for sale as an option to
explore, with Council understanding that they do not have to take any offers we receive.
Council requested that prior to doing this, that we get it appraised by a Certified Appraiser.
Staff will bring this information back to Council for review.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

NONE
BY-LAWS:
NONE

CLOSED SESSION:

#196-16-2023 D. Elliott - R. Maguire
BE IT RESOLVED THAT in accordance with By-law # 02-02 as amended and Section
239 of the Municipal Act, as amended, Council proceed to a Closed Session at 7:31 p.m.
in order to attend to matters pertaining to:
a) Personal matters about an identifiable individual including municipal or local
board employees.

CARRIED
#197-16-2023  R. Maguire — D. Elliott
THAT we adjourn from our Closed Session at 7:40 p.-m., accept the Minutes of the

previous closed session, and resume our Regular Meeting.

CARRIED

Page 3 of 4



CLOSING:

#198-16-2023 D. Elliott — R. Maguire
THAT we adjourn at 7:44 p.m. until the next regular meeting or call of the Chair.

CARRIED

Brenda Reid, MAYOR Heidi Ferguson, CLERK

*These Minutes have been circulated but are not considered Official until approved by Council.

Page 4 of 4



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

The Special Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack
was held in the Council Chambers on Tuesday, August 22, 2023, at 7:00 p.m.

Present: Mayor Brenda Reid
Councillor Dwayne Elliott
Councillor Jennifer Hooper
Councillor Robert Maguire

Councillor Janice Bowerman- Excused

Staff: Alton Hobbs, CAO
Heidi Ferguson, Clerk
Deb MacDonald, Treasurer
Freda Bond, Taxes and Utilities Manager
Crystal Lentir, Administrative Assistant
Jackie White, Project Events Coordinator
Perry Newman, By-law Enforcement Officer
Paul Methner, Animal Control Officer
Ron Cooper, Public Works Superintendent

Public: Members of the General Public

OPENING:

#186-15-2023 R. Maguire - D. Elliott

THAT the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack be opened for business at 7:00 p.m., with a guorum of members present,
with Mayor Reid presiding in the Chair.

CARRIED

AGENDA:

#187-15-2023 D. Elliott — R. Maguire
THAT we adopt the agenda as presented.

CARRIED

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST:

NONE

Page 1 of 3



ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Councillor Elliott announced that the Assiginack Youth Ball Tournament that took place
August 10" to the 13" was very successful, with 11 youth teams participating from the
Island and Espanola area. There were 28 games played and each game saw spectators
of between 70-100 people in attendance. Councillor Elliott thanked everyone who
helped to make this event a success including the players, coaches, parents,
volunteers, municipal staff, and Assiginack Public School for hosting a BBQ!

ADOPTION OF MINUTES:

NONE

DELEGATIONS:

NONE
REPORTS:
NONE

ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS:

#188-15-2023 R. Maguire - D. Elliott
THAT we accept the summary of the tenders received from the Tax Sale Properties, as
presented by the Treasurer, pending review by staff.

CARRIED

NOTE: Prior to the Tax Sale submissions being opened, the Treasurer informed all
members present that three of the tax sale properties advertised were redeemed and
that we received over 100 submissions in response to the advertisement. We will be
keeping the two highest tenders, and these will be reviewed tomorrow by staff to ensure
they meet the requirements. Staff will open all of the tenders by their file number and at
the end of each file, staff will announce the top two tenders. All deposits will be returned
to all bidders via registered mail.

At the conclusion of the Tax Sale process, Mayor Reid reminded those in attendance
that this was a legal process that the Township followed and that in no way was there
any favouritism shown to any one bidder. The Mayor thanked everyone who was in
atfendance and excused the audience members who wished to leave.

#189-15-2023 R. Maguire - D. Elliott
THAT we award the Request for Prosecution Services to Wishart Law Firm LLP.

CARRIED
Page 2 of 3



NOTE: Staff shared that based on the review of the proposals received, that staffs
recommendation is that Council award the tender to Wishart Law Firm LLP. Based on
their proposal and feedback from their references, it is staffs opinion that we will have
the best working relationship with this firm.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

NONE

BY-LAWS:

NONE

CLOSED SESSION:

#190-15-2023 D. Elliott — R. Maguire
BE IT RESOLVED THAT in accordance with By-law # 02-02 as amended and Section
239 of the Municipal Act, as amended, Council proceed to a Closed Session at 7:45
p.m. in order to attend to matters pertaining to:
a) Personal matters about an identifiable individual including municipal or local
board employees.
b) Litigation, potential litigation including matters before administrative tribunals.

CARRIED

#191-15-2023 D. Elliott — R. Maguire

THAT we adjourn from our Closed Session at 9:24 p.m., accept the Minutes of the
previous closed session, and resume our Regular Meeting.

CARRIED

CLOSING:

#192-15-2023 R. Maguire - D. Elliott
THAT we adjourn at 9:25 p.m. until the next regular meeting or call of the Chair.

CARRIED

Brenda Reid, MAYOR Heidi Ferguson, CLERK

*These Minutes have been circulated but are not considered Official until approved by Counci.

Page 3 of 3



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

The Regular Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack was held in the Council Chambers on Tuesday, August 15, 2023, at
7:00 p.m.

Present: Mayor Brenda Reid
Councillor Dwayne Elliott
Councillor Jennifer Hooper
Councillor Robert Maguire

Staff: Alton Hobbs, CAC
Heidi Ferguson, Clerk
Deb MacDonald, Treasurer
Freda Bond, Taxes and Utilities Manager
Crystal Lentir, Administrative Assistant
Jackie White, Project Events Coordinator

Regrets: Councillor Janice Bowerman- Excused
Ron Cooper, Public Works Superintendent
Press: Tom Sasvari, Manitoulin Expositor
Public: Chris Perry of Perry & Perry Architects
Members of the Burns Wharf Theatre Players
OPENING:
#170-14-2023 D. Elliott — R. Maguire
THAT the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack be opened for business at 7:00 p.m., with a quorum of members
present, with Mayor Reid presiding in the Chair.
CARRIED
AGENDA:
#171-14-2023 D. Elliott — R. Maguire
THAT the agenda for this meeting be amended to remove item 5a.) Public Works
Report.
CARRIED

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST:

Page 1 of 4



Mayor Reid disclosed pecuniary interest in 6a) Payroll (and later abstained from
all discussions and the passing of the resolution).

ANNOUNCEMENTS:
NONE

ADOPTION OF MINUTES:

#172-14-2023 R. Maguire — D. Elliott
THAT we approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council of July 18,
2023,

CARRIED

#173-14-2023 D. Elliott — J. Hooper
THAT we accept the minutes of the Assiginack Museum Committee of August 3,
2023.

CARRIED

NOTE: Mayor Reid and Councillor Hooper shared with Council that the painting
at the Museum has been completed, the repairs to the log buildings will be done
in the Fall and the Museum is currently working on obtaining three quotes for
roofing for the buildings. The Museum’s Market has been very successful and
well attended by both vendors and patrons and the Museurm’s Open House
during Summerfest Weekend was a huge success with 108 visitors throughout
the day.

#174-14-2023 J. Hooper - D. Elliott

THAT we accept the minutes of the Assiginack Museum Committee of July 6,
2023.

CARRIED

#175-14-2023 D. Elliott — J. Hooper

THAT we accept the minutes of the Strategic Planning Advisory Committee of
July 11, 2023.

CARRIED

DELEGATIONS:

#176-14-2023 R. Maguire —- D. Elliott
THAT we thank Chris Perry from Perry and Perry Architects for his presentation
to Council.

CARRIED
Page 2 of 4



NOTE: Chris Perry of Perry & Perry Architects provided Council with background
information regarding the original concept/design of the Assiginack Arts and
Events Center (AAEC), stressing that to meet the quick tum around time of the
funding, a concept to add onto the existing arena building was developed.

He discussed that there is still flexibility and opportunity to re-work the current
design and it is possible to go with a stand-alone concept.

Council had the opportunity to ask their questions regarding the next steps that
should be taken, including consultation with AAEC potential user groups and a
calculation of ongoing operational cost, and it was determined that Chris Perry
would send staff a workplan that outlines what the next steps and a timeline to
move the project forward.

REPORTS:

#177-14-2023 R. Maguire — D. Elliott
THAT we acknowledge receipt of the July 2023 Roller Mills Report and thank
Kelsey Maguire for his report.

CARRIED

ACTION REQUIRED ITEMS:

#178-14-2023 R. Maguire — D. Elliott
THAT Council authorizes the following Accounts for Payment: General
$ 176,482 .99 pursuant to the attached Treasurer's Statement of Accounts.

CARRIED

#179-14-2023 D. Elliott — R. Maguire
THAT Council authorizes the following Accounts for Payment: Payroll
$ 64,189.07 pursuant to the attached Treasurer's Statement of Accounts.

CARRIED

NOTE: Due to Mayor Reid declaring a Pecuniary Interest, she vacated the Chair
and Councillor Elliott called the vote on this matter.

#180-14-2023 R. Maguire - D. Elliott

THAT we approve Manitoulin Streams request to install a bench in memory of
Paul Moffatt on the municipal property located between the Municipal Office and
the Waterfront, in a location to be mutually determined between the Township
and Manitoulin Streams.

CARRIED

Page 3 of 4



INFORMATION ITEM:

#181-14-2023 D. Elliott — R. Maguire

THAT we acknowledge receipt of the correspondence from AMCTO to the Hon.
Doug Ford regarding AMCTOQ's request for the Province to provide direction on
returning to the assessment cycle and we support their request.

CARRIED
BY-LAWS:

#182-14-2023 R. Maguire — J. Hooper

THAT By-Law 2023-14, being a by-law to authorize the temporary closure of
Arthur Street in Manitowaning on September 9, 2023, be given a first, second,
third and final reading and enacted in open Council.

CARRIED
CLOSED SESSION:

#183-14-2023 J. Hooper — R. Maguire

THAT in accordance with By-Law 02-02 and Section 239 of the Municipal Act, as
amended, Council proceed to a Closed Session at 7:27 p.m. in order to attend to
matters pertaining to:

c.) A proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality.

CARRIED

#184-14-2023 R. Maguire — J. Hooper

THAT we adjourn from our Closed Session at 8:15 p.m., accept the Minutes of
the previous closed session, and resume our Regular Meeting.

CARRIED

CLOSING:

#185-14-2023 J. Hooper — R. Maguire
THAT we adjourn at 8:16 p.m. until the next regular meeting or call of the Chair.

CARRIED

Brenda Reid, MAYOR Heidi Ferguson, CLERK

*These Minutes have been circulated but are not considered Official until approved by Council.
Page 4 of 4



7
;«f’& AUGUST 8, 2023 SPAC COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

Toanptig 03
AASICINACK

PRESENT:
COMMITTEE:
Brenda Reid, Jennifer Hooper. Dwayne Elliot (7:30)

Absent. Rob Maguire

STAFF:
EDQ: Shelba Millette, and CAQ: Alton Hobbs

1. MEETING DECLARED OPEN BY CHAIR @ 7:00 P.M.

2, APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION: 2023 -010
Moved by: J.Bowerman Seconded by: J.Hooper

WHEREAS SPAC has been provided the Agenda for the meeting of August 8, 2023,
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the agenda for this meeting be approved. CARRIED

3. APPROVAL OF SPAC July 11, 2023 MEETING MINUTES

MOTION: 2023 - 11
Moved by:  J.Hooper Seconded by: J Bowerman

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Minutes be accepted as presented. CARRIED
4. EDO POWERPOINT: TASK 3

MOTION: 2023-12
Moved by:  J.Hooper Seconded by: D. Elliot

That SPAC recognize EDO: Shelba Millette's presentation: TASK 3 CARRIED

5. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: 2023 -13
Moved by:  J Bowerman

WHEREAS the business of the SPAC meeting has concluded,
BE IT RESOLVED THAT this meeting be adjourned at 7:45 P.M. CARRIED

Signature: SPAC Committee Chair: Signature: SPAC Recording Secretary:

DATE: August, 10 2023

1ofl



Ontario @

Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de FEnvironnement, de la Protection de
Conservation and Parks la nature et des Parcs
Drinking Water and Environmental Division de la conformité en matiére d'eau potable

Compliance Division, Northern Region et d’environnement, Direction régionale du Nord

933 Ramsey Lake Road 932, rue Ramsey Lake

4" Floor 4* étage

Sudbury ON P3E 6B5 Sudbury ON P3E 685

Tel.: 705 564-3237 Tél. : 705 564-3237

Toll Free: 1-800-890-8516 Nurnéro sans frais: 1-800-890-8516
Fax: 705 564-4180 Téléc. : 705 564-4180

September 8, 2023

Mr. Alton Hobbs
Clerk/Treasurer

Municipality of Assiginack

Box 238, Manitowaning, Ontario
POP 1NQ

Dear Mr. Hobbs:
Attached is the annual inspection report for the Sunsite Estates Drinking Water System.

The report format in use for MECP inspections is new. Please note the following:
* There are no non-compliance situations outlined in the report.

* A description of the components of the drinking water system can be found in
Appendix E.

» Of note is the Inspection Rating Record (normally attached) which will be sent
under separate cover within one month.

Section 19 of the Safe Drinking Water Act (Standard of Care) creates obligations for
individuals who exercise decision-making authority over municipal drinking water
systems. Please be aware the Ministry has encouraged such individuals, particularly
municipal councillors, to take steps to be better informed about drinking water systems
over which they have decision-making authority. These steps could include asking for a
copy of this inspection report and a review of its findings. Further information about
Section 19 can be found in “Taking Care of Your Drinking Water: A guide for members
of municipal council” found under “Resources” on the Drinking Water Ontario website at
www ontario.ca/drinkingwater.”

The operating authority’s cooperation during the inspection was appreciated. Please
feel free to contact me at 705 929-7029, should you have questions.



Sincerely,

A cgbrirfr&y
Maureen Spinney
Water Inspector

Sudbury District Office

cc. Ms. Sarah Beaulieu, OCWA
Mr. Burgess Hawkins, PHSD



Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la

Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs Ontario @

Ontario @

SUNSITE ESTATES SUBDIVISION DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
15 MOGGY FAIRWAY, ASSIGINACK, ON,

INSPECTION REPORT

Entity: CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
ONTARIO CLEAN WATER
AGENCY
Inspection Start Date: July 13, 2023
Inspection End Date: September 08, 2023
Inspected By: Maureen Spinney
Badge #: 467
Inspected By: Marnie Managhan
Badge #: 718

We want to hear from you. How was my service? You can provide feedback at
1-888-745-8888 or Qntario.calinspectionfeedback
Page 1 of 25



Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la = @
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs O nta rio

{signature) v

We want to hear from you. How was my service? You can provide feedback at

1-888-745-8888 or Ontario.ca/inspectionfeedback
Page 2 of 25



Ministry of the Envirenment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o ntario @
NON-COMPLIANCE

This should not be construed as a confirmation of full compliance with all potential applicable
legal requirements. These inspection findings are limited to the components and/or activities
that were assessed, and the legislative framework(s) that were applied. It remains the
responsibility of the owner to ensure compliance with all applicable legislative and reguiatory
requirements.

If you have any questions related to this inspection, please contact the signed Provincial Officer.

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 3 of 25



Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la

Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o nta rito @

RECOMMENDATIONS

This should not be construed as a confirmation of full conformance with ali potential applicable
BMPs. These inspection findings are limited to the components and/or activities that were
assessed, and the legislative framework(s) that were applied. It remains the responsibility of the
owner to ensure compliance with all applicable legislative and regulatory requirements.

If you have any questions related to this inspection, please contact the signed Provincial Officer.

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 4 of 25



Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de FEnvironnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o nta rio

INSPECTION DETAILS
This section includes all questions that were assessed during the inspection.

Ministry Program: DRINKING WATER | Regulated Activity: DW Municipal Residential

Question 1D DWMR1001000 Question Type | Information

Legislative Requirement(s):
Not Applicable

Question:
What was the scope of this inspection?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The primary focus of this inspection is to confirm compliance with Ministry of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks (MECP) legislation as well as evaluating conformance with ministry
drinking water policies and guidelines during the inspection period. The ministry utilizes a
comprehensive, multi-barrier approach in the inspection of water systems that focuses on the
source, treatment, and distribution components as well as management practices.

This drinking water system is subject to the legislative requirements of the Safe Drinking Water
Act, 2002 (SDWA) and regulations made therein, including Ontario Regulation 170/03, "Drinking
Water Systems™" (O. Reg. 170/03). This inspection has been conducted pursuant to Section 81
of the SDWA.

This inspection report does not suggest that all applicable legislation and regulations were
evaluated. It remains the responsibility of the owner to ensure compliance with all applicable
legislative and regulatory requirements.

Drinking Water Inspector {DWI) notes that the review period of this announced, detailed
inspection is October 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.

Question ID DWMR1000000 Question Type | Information

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Does this drinking water system provide primary disinfection?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

This drinking water system provides for both primary and secondary disinfection and distribution
of water.

Question ID DWMR1010000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):
Not Applicable

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 5 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de Ia = @
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs O n ta rio

Question:
Are trends in source water quality being monitored?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
Trends in source water quality were being monitored.

Question ID DWMR1012000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA |31 (1);

Question:

Does the owner have a harmful algal bloom monitoring plan in place that meets the
requirements of the MDWL_?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
The owner had a harmful algal bloom montitoring plan in place.

Question ID DWMR1014000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | 31 (1);

Question:

Is there sufficient monitoring of flow as required by the MDWL or DWWP issued under Part V of
the SDWA?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

There was sufficient monitoring of flow as required by the Municipal Drinking Water Licence or
Drinking Water Works Permit issued under Part V of the SDWA.

Question ID DWMR1015000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | 31| (1);

Question:

Are the flow measuring devices calibrated or verified in accordance with the requirements of the
MDWL issued under Part V of the SDWA?

Compiiance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The flow measuring devices were calibrated or verified in accordance with the requirements of
the MDWL issued under Part V of the SWDA.

DWiI, notes Schedule C of the Drinking Water Works Permit requires the use, and calibration of
flow meters at the following locations:

-Treated water flowing to the distribution system. Calibration dates are June 30, 2022, and July
5, 2023,

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 6 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs O ntario @

-Raw water flowing into the treatment system. Calibration dates are June 30, 2022, and July 5,
2023.

Question ID DWMR1016000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | 31| (1);

Question:

Is the owner in compliance with the conditions associated with maximum flow rate or the rated
capacity conditions in the MDWL issued under Part V of the SDWA?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
The owner was in compliance with the conditions associated with maximum flow rate or the

rated capacity conditions in the Municipal Drinking Water Licence issued under Part V of the
SDWA.

DWI notes:

PTTW #7151-ABEK4P establishes a maximum instantaneous flow rate of 379L/min (6.317
L/sec) andfor a maximum of 276,480 L/day (276.5m3/day). Data provided indicates raw water
maximum flow rate of 126.04m3/day (per June 2023 data summary) and a maximum
instantaneous flow rate of 4.08L/sec (as per December 2022 data summary).

Schedule C of the MDWL (254-101) establishes a rated capacity of 220m3/day. During review
period, records indicate a treated water maximum flow rate of 124.97 m3/day which is 57% of
capacity (per June 2023 data summary).

Question ID DWMR1013000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

OWRA | 341 (3);

Question:

Is the owner in compliance with all conditions of the PTTW?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
The owner was in compliance with all conditions of the PTTW.

Question ID DWMR1018000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA |31} (1);

Question:

Has the owner ensured that all equipment is installed in accordance with Schedule A and
Schedule C of the Drinking Water Works Permit?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 7 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Pretection de la nature et des Parcs O nta rio

The owner had ensured that all equipment was installed in accordance with Schedule A and
Schedule C of the Drinking Water Works Permit.

Question 1D DWMR1021000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | 31| (1);

Question:

Is the owner/operating authority able to demonstrate that, when required during the inspection
period, Form 2 documents were prepared in accordance with their Drinking Water Works
Permit?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s}):

The owner/operating authority was in compliance with the requirement to prepare Form 2
documents as required by their Drinking Water Works Permit during the inspection period.

Question 1D DWMR1028000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA |31 (1)

Question:

Are up-to-date plans for the drinking water system kept in place, or made available in such a
manner, that they may be readily viewed by all persons responsible for all or part of the
operation of the drinking water system in accordance with the DWWP and MDWL issued under
Part V of the SDWA?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Up-to-date plans for the drinking water system were kept in a place, or made available in such a
manner, that they could be readily viewed by all persons responsible for all or part of the
operation of the drinking water system in accordance with the DWWP and MDWL issued under
Part V of the SDWA.

Question ID DWMR1025000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | 31| (1)

Question:

Were all parts of the drinking water system that came in contact with drinking water (added,
modified, replaced or extended) disinfected in accordance with a procedure listed in Schedule B
of the Drinking Water Works Permit?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All parts of the drinking water system were disinfected in accordance with a procedure listed in
Schedule B of the Drinking Water Works Permit.

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 8 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de 'Environnement, de la =
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs Ontario @

Question ID DWMR1023000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 1-2 | (2);

Question:

Do records indicate that the treatment equipment was operated in a manner that achieved the
design capabilities required under Ontario Regulation 170/03 or a DWWP and/or MDWL issued
under Part V of the SDWA at all times that water was being supplied to consumers?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action{s)/Observation(s):

Records indicated that the treatment equipment was operated in a manner that achieved the
design capabilities required under O. Reg. 170/03 or a Drinking Water Works Permit and/or
Municipal Drinking Water Licence issued under Part V of the SDWA at all times that water was
being supplied to consumers.

DWI notes the Sunsite Estates water plant uses a process that includes membrane filtration
(ultrafiltration) followed by chemical disinfection with sodium hypochlorite to achieve the required
log removalfinactivation credits.

Please see Appendices, specifically Schedule E of the MDWL for a summary of the plant
processes and their respective log removal credits. As per Schedule E the following criteria for
membrane filtration must be met at all times:

1. Maintain effective backwash procedures. During review period there was no indication of
problems.

2. Monitor the integrity of the membranes by continuous particle counting or equivalent means (i.
e. pressure decay measurements). During review period operator indicates pressure decay
testing occurred normally. Operator indicates filters are set to run backwash cycles and
membrane integrity tests on pre-set schedules with pressure decay tests every 24 hours.

3. Continuously monitor filtrate turbidity. During review period there was no clear indication of
problems.

4. Meet the performance criterion for filtered water turbidity of less than or equal to 0.1 NTU in
99% of the measurements each month. A new SCADA system was installed greatly improving
accuracy of data summaries.

As per Schedule E the following criteria for the chlorination process must be met at all times:
The chlorine disinfection component of this system must achieve a minimum of 0.5-log
inactivation of Giardia and 4-log inactivation of viruses. A standard operating procedure has
been developed for this facility that requires a CT calculation to be completed and recorded any
time the chlorine levels leaving the clearwell are 0.80 mg/L or less.

Question iD DWMR 1024000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 1-2 | (2);

Question:

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 9 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs O nta no @

Do records confirm that the water treatment equipment which provides chlorination or
chloramination for secondary disinfection purposes was operated as required?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Records confirmed that the water treatment equipment which provides chlorination or
chloramination for secondary disinfection purposes was operated so that at all times and all
locations in the distribution system the chlorine residual was never less than 0.05 mg/l free or
0.25 mg/l combined.

Question |D DWMR1034000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 7-2 | (5); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 7-2 | (6);

Question:

Is the secondary disinfectant residual measured as required for the small municipal residential
distribution system?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The secondary disinfectant residual was measured as required for the small municipal
residential distribution system.

DWI notes Schedule 7, Regulation 170 requires at least 2 distribution samples be taken each
week, at least 48 hours apart. Samples to be measured for free chiorine residual. Residuals
always greater than 1.0mg/l.

Question |D DWMR1049000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Do records confirm that disinfectant residuals are routinely checked at the extremities and dead
ends of the distribution system?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Records confirmed that disinfectant residuals were routinely checked at the extremities and
dead ends of the distribution system.

DWI notes this system is quite small with only two dead ends, two smail diameter (1.5 inch)
blowoffs and no hydrants. Bleeders are used to assure good chlorine residual levels.

Question ID DWMR1030000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 7-2 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 7-2 | (2);

Question:

Is primary disinfection chlorine monitoring being conducted at a location approved by MDWL

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 10 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la - @
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o nta rio

and/or DWWP issued under Part V of the SDWA, or at/near a location where the intended CT
has just been achieved?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Primary disinfection chlorine monitoring was conducted at a location approved by Municipal
Drinking Water Licence and/or Drinking Water Works Permit issued under Part V of the SDWA,
or at/near a location where the intended CT has just been achieved.

DW! notes chlorine is injected just past completion of filtration, as water enters contact tank. A
sample is drawn from a point as water is leaving the clearwell. A seldom used manually
triggered trim chlorine system is also available which would inject sodium hypochlorite at a point
just prior to water entering the distribution system. The operator is aware that due to a lack of
contact time, using only the trim chlorine system may mean water is not properly disinfected
prior to use by the first consumer.

Question ID DWMR1031000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Are operators aware of the operational criteria necessary to achieve primary disinfection within
the drinking water system?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Operators were aware of the operational criteria necessary to achieve primary disinfection within
the drinking water system.

DWi notes during inspection process Schedule E is discussed. OCWA pursues training on
Schedule E during monthly meetings.

Question ID DWMR 1032000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 7-3 | (2);

Question:

If the drinking water system obtains water from a surface water source and provides filtration, is
continuous monitoring of each filter effluent line being performed for turbidity?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Continuous monitoring of each filter effluent line was being performed for turbidity.

Question ID DWMR1035000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)1-4; SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)5-10;
Question:

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 11 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o nta rio @

Are operators examining continuous monitoring test results and are they examining the results
within 72 hours of the test?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Operators were examining continuous monitoring test results and they were examining the
results within 72 hours of the test.

Question ID DWMR1038000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)1-4;

Question:

Is continuous monitoring equipment that is being utilized to fulfill O. Reg. 170/03 requirements
performing tests for the parameters with at least the minimum frequency specified in the Table in
Schedule 6 of O. Reg. 170/03 and recording data with the prescribed format?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Continuous monitoring equipment that was being utilized to fulfill O. Reg. 170/03 requirements
was performing tests for the parameters with at least the minimum frequency specified in the
Table in Schedule 6 of O. Reg. 170/03 and recording data with the prescribed format.

Question ID DWMR1037000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)1-4; SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)5-10; SDWA | O. Reg.
170/03 16-5 | (1.1);

Question:

Are all continuous monitoring equipment utilized for sampling and testing required by O. Reg.
170/03, or MDWL or DWWP or order, equipped with alarms or shut-off mechanisms that satisfy
the standards described in Schedule 67

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All continuous monitoring equipment utilized for sampling and testing required by O. Reg.
170/03, or Municipal Drinking Water Licence or Drinking Water Works Permit or order, were
equipped with alarms or shut-off mechanisms that satisfy the standards described in Schedule
6.

DW! notes the attending operator calculates CT when levels are less than 0.8mg/l. Chlorine
alarms are set at 1.0mg/l. A lowlift pump lockout occurs when chlorine sinks below alarm level.

Filtrate turbidity alarms are set at 0.1NTU, with no set delay. The operator tracks filtrate turbidity
in excess of 0.1NTU in order to evaluate filter efficiency ratings.

Question ID DWMR1040000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 12 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o nta ro @

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)1-4; SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)5-10;

Question:

Are all continuous analysers calibrated, maintained, and operated, in accordance with the
manufacturer's instructions or the regulation?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All continuous analysers were calibrated, maintained, and operated, in accordance with the
manufacturer's instructions or the regulation.

Question ID DWMR1108000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)1-4; SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-5 | (1)5-10; SDWA | O. Reg.
170/03|6-5| (1.1);

Question:

Where continuous monitoring equipment used for the monitoring of free chlorine residual, total
chlorine residual, combined chlorine residual or turbidity, required by O. Reg. 170/03, an Order,
MDWL, or DWWP issued under Part V, SDWA, has triggered an alarm or an automatic shut-off,
did a qualified person respond in a timely manner and take appropriate actions?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Where required continuous monitoring equipment used for the monitoring of chlorine residual
and/or turbidity triggered an alarm or an automatic shut-off, a qualified person responded in a
timely manner and took appropriate actions.

Question ID DWMR1098000 Question Type [ Information

Legislative Requirement(s):
Not Applicable
Question:

Do records show that all water sample results taken during the inspection review period did not
exceed the values of tables 1, 2 and 3 of the Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standards (O. Reg.
169/03)7

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Records showed that all water sample results taken during the inspection review period did not
exceed the values of tables 1, 2 and 3 of the Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standards {O. Reg.
169/03).

Question ID DWMR1082000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 11-2 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 11-2 | (2); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03
| 11-2} (6);

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 13 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o ntario @

Question:

For SMR systems, are all microbiological water quality monitoring requirements for distribution
samples prescribed by legislation being met?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All microbiological water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation for
distribution samples in a small municipal residential system were being met.

DWI notes sampling in the distribution system is required once every two weeks with testing for
E.coli, total coliforms and heterotrophic plate count.

Question ID DWMR1096000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-3 | (1),

Question:

Do records confirm that chiorine residual tests are being conducted at the same time and at the
same location that microbiological samples are obtained?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Records confirmed that chlorine residual tests were being conducted at the same time and at
the same location that microbiological samples were obtained.

Question ID DWMR1084000 Question Type | Legislative

Legisiative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-2;

Question:

Are all inorganic water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation conducted
within the required frequency?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All inorganic water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted
within the required frequency.

DW!I notes samples are required to be taken at least once every 60 months. The last sets of
samples were taken January 15, 2015, and January 16, 2019.

Question ID DWMR1085000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-4 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-4 | (2); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03
| 13-4 ] (3);

Question:

Are all organic water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation conducted within
the required frequency?

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 14 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs 0 ntario @

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All organic water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted
within the required frequency.

DWI notes samples are required to be taken at least once every 60 months. The last sets of
samples were taken January 15, 2015, and January 18, 2019.

Question 1D DWMR1086000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6.1 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6.1 | (2); SDWA | O. Reg.
170/03 | 13-6.1 | (3); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6.1 | (4); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6.1 |
(5); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6.1 | (6):

Question:

Are all haloacetic acid water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation conducted
within the required frequency and at the required location?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All haloacetic acid water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were
conducted within the required frequency and at the required location.

DWI notes the operating authority pursues sampling a minimum of once every 3 months as
follows:

July 19, 2022 @ 19.4ug/

October 18, 2022, @ 19.2ug/|

January 23, 2023 @ 13.4ug/|

April 17, 2023 @ 13.8ug/l

Question ID DWMR1087000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6 | (2); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03
| 13-6 | (3); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6 | (4); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-6 | (5); SDWA | O.
Reg. 170/03 | 13-6 | (6);

Question:

Have all trihalomethane water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation been
conducted within the required frequency and at the required location?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All trihalomethane water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were
conducted within the required frequency and at the required location.

DW!I notes the operating authority pursues sampling a minimum of once every 3 months as
follows:

July 19, 2022 @ 39ugf|

October 18, 2022, @ 34ug/l

January 23, 2023 @ 26ug/|

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 15 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o ntario @

April 17, 2023 @ 23ug/!

Question ID DWMR 1088000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-7;

Question:

Are all nitrate/nitrite water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation conducted
within the required frequency for the DWS?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All nitrate/nitrite water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted
within the required frequency.

Question ID DWMR1083000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-8;

Question:

Are all sodium water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation conducted within
the required frequency?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All sodium water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted
within the required frequency.

DWI notes the operating authority pursues sampling, a minimum of once every 60 months. Last
samples occurred on January 7, 2014, with results of 6.91mg/l, and January 16, 2019, with
results of 6.08mg/l.

Question ID DWMR1090000 Question Type | Legislative

L.egislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13-9;

Question:

Where fluoridation is not practiced, are all fluoride water quality monitoring requirements
prescribed by legislation conducted within the required frequency?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All fluoride water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted
within the required frequency.

DWI notes the operating authority pursues sampling, a minimum of once every 60 months. Last
samples occurred on January 7, 2014, and January 18, 2019.

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 16 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs Ontario @

Question ID DWMR 1082000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-2;

Question:

Has the owner ensured that water samples are taken at the prescribed location?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The owner ensured that water samples were taken at the prescribed location.

Question ID DWMR 1094000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA [ 311 (1)

Question:

Are all water quality monitoring requirements imposed by the MDWL and DWWP being met?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All water quality monitoring requirements imposed by the MDWL or DWWP issued under Part V
of the SDWA were being met.

DWI notes Question 1044000 provides further information on required water quality monitoring.

Question ID DWMR1095000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-10; SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-4 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg.
170/03 | 15.1-5 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-5 | (10); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-5 |
(11); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-5 | (12); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-5 | (2); SDWA | O.
Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-5 | (3); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 [ 15.1-5| (4); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-
5| (5); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-5 | (6); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03115.1-5 | (7); SDWA | O.
Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-5 | (8); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-5 | (9); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1- ;
7| (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-7 | {2); SDWA | 0. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-7 | (3); SDWA| O.

| Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-7 | (4); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 ] 15.1-9 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-
| 9] (2); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-9 ] (3); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-9 | (4); SDWA | O.
Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-9 | (5); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 1 15.1-9 ] (6); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-
91 (7); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-9 | (8); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 15.1-9 1 (9),

Question:
Have all lead sampling requirements prescribed by Schedule 15.1 of O. Reg. 170/03 been met?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

All sampling requirements for lead prescribed by schedule 15.1 of O. Reg. 170/03 were being
met.

DWI notes that the Sunsite Estates water treatment system qualifies for the exempt stage of
lead sampling.
The operating authority ensures every third year, a minimum of 1 lead sample is taken in the

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 17 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs O ntario @

distribution system during the winter (December 15th to April 15th) and summer {(June 15th to
October 15th) sampling period and, pH and alkalinity are taken every sampling period (winter
and summer).

Last Lead samples:

5 January 2021 @ 0.11ug/l is a winter sample.

13 April 2021 @ 0.12ug/l is a winter sample.

15 June 2021 @ 0.12ug/l is 2 summer sample.

Alkalinity and pH samples were taken in January and June.

Question ID DWMR1098000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13| (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 13 | (2); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 |
13 (3

Question:

Has the owner indicated that the required records are kept and will be kept for the required time
period?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The owner indicated that the required records are kept and will be kept for the required time
period.

Question ID DWMR1110000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 11 ] (6);

Question:

Was an Annual Report containing the required information prepared by February 28 of the
foliowing year?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The Annual Report containing the required information was prepared by February 28th of the
following year.

Question ID DWMR1111000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 22-2 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 22-2 | (2), SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03
| 22-2 | (3); SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 22-2 | (4);

Question:

Have Summary Reports for municipal council been completed on time, include the required
content, and distributed in accordance with the regulatory requirements?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 18 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de 'Environnement, de la =
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs O nta rio @
Summary Reports for municipal council were completed on time, included the required content,

and were distributed in accordance with the regulatory requirements.

DWI notes Council minutes were provided indicating the Summary and Annual reports were
presented and distributed to Council on March 21, 2023.

Question |ID DWMR1043000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA |31 (1);

Question:

Are the process wastewater and residual solids/siudges being treated, handled and disposed of
in accordance with the design requirements approved under the Drinking Water Works Permit
and the Municipal Drinking Water Licence?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The process wastewater and residual solids/sludges were treated, handled and disposed of in
accordance with the design requirements approved under the Drinking Water Works Permit and
the Municipal Drinking Water Licence.

DWi notes sludge depth should be measured and disposed of as necessary.

Question ID DWMR 1044000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | 31| (1);

Question:

Does the process wastewater discharge monitoring program and discharge quality comply with
requirements established in the MDWL issued under Part V of the SDWA?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The process wastewater discharge monitoring program and discharge quality complied with
requirements established in the Municipal Drinking Water Licence Issued under Part V of the
SDWA.

DWI notes Tables 3 and 7 of Schedule C, MDWL require quarterly composite sampling of
backwash water at point of discharge for total suspended solids(TSS). The annual average
concentration shall not exceed 25mg/l. The operating authority pursues sampling a minimum of
once every 3 months as follows:

July 19, 2022 @ 14mg/l

October 18, 2022 @ 7mg/l

January 23, 2023 @ <2mg/|

April 17, 2023 @ 3mg/l

As of January 24, 2022, Tables 3 and 7 of Schedule C, MDWL require quarterly grab sampling
of backwash water at point of discharge for total chiorine residual. The annual average
concentration shall not exceed 0.02mg/l. This testing was accomplished.

Event Number; 1-207766061 Page 19 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs 0 nta rio @

Question 1D DWMR1053000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):
Not Applicable

Question:

Is the Owner able to maintain proper pressures in the distribution system and is pressure
monitored to alert the operator of conditions which may lead to loss of pressure below the value
under which the system is designed to operate?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The owner was able to maintain proper pressures in the distribution system and pressure was
monitored to alert the operator of conditions which may lead to loss of pressure below the value
under which the system is designed to operate.

Question ID DWMR1047000 Question Type | BMP
Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Does the owner have a program or maintain a schedule for routine cleanout, inspection and
maintenance of reservoirs and elevated storage tanks within the distribution system?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The owner had a program or maintained a schedule for routine cleanout, inspection and
maintenance of reservoirs and elevated storage tanks within the distribution system.

DWI notes clearwells are maintained effectively.

Question ID DWMR1050000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Is there a program in place for inspecting and exercising valves?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
There was a program in place for inspecting and exercising valves.

There are 11 valves in the system with each location mapped. OCWA attempts to exercise
valves at least once per year.

Question ID DWMR1058000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 28;

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 20 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la - @
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o nta rio

Question:
Do operators and maintenance personnel have ready access to operations and maintenance
manuals?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Operators and maintenance personnel had ready access to operations and maintenance
manuals.

Question ID DWMR1059000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 28;

Question:

Do the operations and maintenance manuals contain plans, drawings and process descriptions
sufficient for the safe and efficient operation of the system?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The operations and maintenance manuals contained plans, drawings and process descriptions
sufficient for the safe and efficient operation of the system.

Question ID DWMR1060000 Question Type | Legislative
Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | 31| (1);

Question:

Do the operations and maintenance manuals meet the requirements of the DWWP and MDWL
issued under Part V of the SDWA?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The operations and maintenance manuals met the requirements of the Drinking Water Works
Permit and Municipal Drinking Water Licence issued under Part V of the SDWA.

Question ID DWMR1061000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s}:

SDWA | O. Req. 128/04 | 27 | (1); SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 27 | (2); SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 |
27| (3); SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 27 | (4); SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 27 | (5);, SDWA | O. Reg.
128/04 | 27 | (6); SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 27 | (7);

Question:

Are logbooks properly maintained and contain the required information?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Logbooks were properly maintained and contained the required information.

DWI notes e-logs are in use within the Espanola hub.

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 21 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I’'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs 0 n ta rio

Question ID DWMR1063000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 6-10 | (1);

Question:

For every required operational test and for every required sample, is a record made of the date,
time, location, name of the person conducting the test and result of the test?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

For every required operational test and every required sample, a record was made of the date,
time, location, name of the person conducting the test and result of the test.

Question ID DWMR1064000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s).
SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 26 | (2),

Question:

Did the operator-in-charge ensure that records were maintained of all adjustments made to the
processes within his or her responsibility?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The operator-in-charge ensured that records were maintained of all adjustments made to the
processes within his or her responsibility.

Question ID DWMR1065000 Question Type | Legislative

Legisiative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 27 | (6);

Question:

Are logs and other record keeping mechanisms available for at least five (5) years?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Logs or other record keeping mechanisms were available for at least five (5) years.

Question ID DWMR1066000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):
Not Applicable

Question:
Is spill containment provided for process chemicals and standby power generator fuel?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
Spill containment was provided for process chemicals and/or standby power generator fuel.

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 22 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de ia =
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs O ntario @

DWi notes generator is propane powered.

Question ID DWMR1067000 Question Type |BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Are clean-up equipment and materials in place for the clean up of spills?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
Clean-up equipment and materials were in place for the clean up of spills.

Question iD DWMR1068000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

If available, are standby power generators tested under normal load conditions?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
Standby power generators were tested under normal load conditions.

Question ID DWMR1069000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Are all storage facilities completely covered and secure?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
All storage facilities were completely covered and secure.

Question ID DWMR1070000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):
Not Applicable

Question:

Are air vents and overflows associated with reservoirs and elevated storage structures equipped
with screens?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action{s)/Observation(s):

Air vents and overflows associated with reservoirs and elevated storage structures were
equipped with screens.

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 23 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de ia =
Conservation and Parks Protecticn de la nature et des Parcs O ntario @

Question ID DWMR1071000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Has the owner provided security measures to protect components of the drinking water system?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The owner had provided security measures to protect components of the drinking water system.

Question ID DWMR1072000 Question Type | BMP

Legislative Requirement(s):

Not Applicable

Question:

Has the owner and/or operating authority undertaken efforts to promote water conservation and
reduce water losses in their system?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

The owner and/or operating authority undertook efforts to promote water conservation and
reduce water losses in their system.

DWI notes Bylaw 02-26, dated 2002, provides for conservation measures to be taken (lawn
water measures) during the summer months.

Question ID DWMR1073000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 123 | (1),
Question:

Has the overall responsible operator been designated for all subsystems which comprise the
drinking water system?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
The overall responsible operator had been designated for each subsystem.

DWI notes the ORO is placed with operator on call. Operators are aware of the on call rotation.

Question ID DWMR1074000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):
SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 251 (1);
Question:

Have operators-in-charge been designated for all subsystems which comprise the drinking water
system?

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 24 of 25




Ministry of the Environment, Ministére de I'Environnement, de la -
Conservation and Parks Protection de la nature et des Parcs o ntario @

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
Operators-in-charge had been designated for all subsystems which comprise the drinking water
system.

DWI notes the OIC is the operator on duty.

Question ID DWMR1075000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 128/04 | 22;

Question:

Do all operators possess the required certification?

Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):
All operators possessed the required certification.

Question 1D DWMR1076000 Question Type | Legislative

Legislative Requirement(s):

SDWA | O. Reg. 170/03 | 1-2 | (2),

Question:

Do only certified operators make adjustments to the treatment equipment?
Compliance Response(s)/Corrective Action(s)/Observation(s):

Only certified operators made adjustments to the treatment equipment.

Event Number: 1-207766061 Page 25 of 25




Appendix A



Key Reference and Guidance Material

March 2019

for

Municipal Residential Drmkmg Water Systems

Many useful materials are available to help you
operate your drinking water system. Below is a list
of key materials owners and operators of municipal
residential drinking water systems frequently use.

To access these materials online click on their
titles in the table below or use your web browser to
search for their titles. Contact the Ministry if you
need assistance or have questions at 1-866-793-
2588 or waterforms@ontario.ca.

For more information on Ontario’s drinking water
visit www.ontario.ca/drinkingwater

2
FORMS:
Drinking Water System Profile Information 012-2149E
Laboratory Services Notification 012-2148E
Adverse Test Result Notification 012-4444E
Taking Care of Your Drinking Water: A Guide for Members of Municipal Councils Website
Procedure for Disinfection of Drinking Water in Ontario Website
Strategies for Minimizing the Disinfection Products Trihalomethanes and Haloacetic Acids Website
Filtration Processes Technical Bulletin Website
Ultraviolet Disinfection Technical Bulietin Website
Guide for Applying for Drinking Water Works Permit Amendments, & License )
Amendments Websile
Certification Guide for Operators and Water Quality Analysts Website
Guide to Drinking Water Operator Training Requirements 9802E
Community Sampling and Testing for Lead: Standard and Reduced Sampling and Eligibility for )
Exemption Website
Drinking Water System Contact List 7128E01
Ontario's Drinking Water Quality Management Standard - Pocket Guide Webhsite
Watermain Disinfection Procedure Website
List of Licensed Laboratories Website
__-—-—'—__-'--

PIBS 8990b01

D L Ontario



Mars 2019

Prlnc:.lpaux gmdes et documents de reference
sur les réseaux résidentiels municipaux d’eau

potable

De nombreux documents utiles peuvent vous
aider & exploiter votre réseau d’eau potable. Vous
trouverez ci-aprés une liste de documents que les
propriétaires et exploitants de réseaux
résidentiels municipaux d’eau potable utilisent
fréquemment. Pour accéder a ces documents en
ligne, cliquez sur leur titre dans le tableau ci-
dessous ou faites une recherche a l'aide de votre
navigateur Web. Communiguez avec le ministére

au 1-866-793-2588, ou encore a Pour plus de renseignements sur l'eau potable

waterforms@ontario.ca st vous avez des en Ontario, consultez le site
questions ou besoin d'aide. www.ontario.caleaupotable

TRE & ; T iy :I : .“ Tk 3 e 2 _"
Renselgnements sur Ie prof il du réseau d eau potable 012- 214QF
Avis de demande de services de laboratoire 012-2148F
Avis de résultats d'analyse insatisfaisants et de réglement des problémes 012-4444F
Prendre soin de votre eau potable - Un guide destiné aux membres des conseils municipaux Site Web
Marche & suivre pour désinfecter I'eau portable en Ontario Site Web
Stratégies pour minimiser les trihalométhanes et les acides haloacétiques de sous-produits de .

. . Site Web
deésinfection
Fiitration Processes Technical Bulletin (en anglais seulement) Site Web
Ultraviclet Disinfection Technical Bulletin {en anglais seulement) Site Web
Guide de présentation d'une demande de modification du permis d'aménagement de station de .
production d’eau potable Site Web
Guide sur l'accréditation des exploitanis de réseaux d'eau potable et des analystes de la qualité de .

. . . Site Web
l'eau de réseaux d'eau potable

Guide sur les exigences relatives a 1a formation des exploitants de réseaux d'eau potable 9802F
Echantillonnage et analyse du plomb dans les coliectivités : échantillonnage normalisé ou réduit et )
admissibilité a {'exemption Site Web
Liste des personnes-ressources du réseau d'eau potable Site Web
['eau potable en Ontario - Norme de gestion de la qualité - Guide de poche Site Web
Procédure de désinfection des conduites principales Site Web
Laboratoires autorisés Site Web

PIBS 8980001

} L/ Ontario



Appendix B



Ontario @

MUNICIPAL DRINKING WATER LICENCE

Licence Number: 254-101
Issue Number: 4
Pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002, S.0. 2002, ¢. 32, and the regulations made thereunder
and subject to the limitations thereof, | hereby issue this municipal drinking water licence under Part V of
the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002, S.0. 2002, ¢. 32 to:
The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
156 Arthur St
Manitowaning, ON POP 1NO

For the following municipal residential drinking water system:
Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
This municipal drinking water licence includes the following:

Schedule Description

Schedule A Drinking Water System Information

Schedule B General Conditions

Schedule C System-Specific Conditions

Schedule D Conditions for Relief from Regulatory Requirements
Schedule E Pathogen Log Removal/lnactivation Credits

Upon the effective date of this drinking water licence # 254-101, all previously issued versions of licence #
254-101 are revoked and replaced by this licence.
DATED at TORONTO this 24t day of January, 2022

Signature

Aziz Ahmed, P.Eng.

Director
Pant V, Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002



Schedule A: Drinking Water System Information

System Owner The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
Licence Number 254101

Drinking Water System Name Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
Licence Effective Date January 24, 2022

1.0 Licence Information

Licence Issue Date January 24, 2022
Licence Effective Date January 24, 2022
Licence Expiry Date January 23, 2027
Appiication for Licence Renewal Date July 24, 2026

2,0  Incorporated Documents

The following documents are applicable to the above drinking water system and form part of this licence:

2.1 Drinking Water Works Permit

Drinking Water System Name Permit Number issue Date
Sunsite Eslates Subdivision Drinking Water 254-201 January 24, 2022
System

2.2 Permits to Take Water

Water Taking Location Permit Number Issue Date

Lake Huron 7151-ABEK4P July 14, 2016

3.0 Financial Plans

The Financial Plan Number for the Financial Plan required to be developed | 254-301
for this drinking water system in accordance with O. Reg. 453/07 shall be:

Alternately, if one Financial Plan is developed for all drinking water 254-301A
systems owned by the owner, the Financial Plan Number shall be:

4.0  Accredited Operating Authority

Drinking Water System or Accredited Operating Authority | Operational Operating
Operational Subsystems Plan No. Authority No.

Sunsite Estates Drinking Water | Ontario Clean Water Agency 254-401 254-0A1
System




Schedule B: General Conditions

System Owner The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
Licence Number 254101

Drinking Water System Name Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
Licence Effective Date Janhuary 24, 2022

1.0 Definitions

1.1

1.2

Words and phrases not defined in this licence and the associated drinking water works
permit shall be given the same meaning as those set out in the SDWA and any
regulations made in accordance with that act, unless the context requires otherwise.

In this licence and the associated drinking water works permit:

“adverse effect”, "contaminant” and “natural environment® shall have the same
meanings as in the EPA,

“alteration” may include the following in respect of this drinking water system:

(a) An addition to the system,

(b} A modification of the system,

(c) A replacement of part of the system, and
{d} An extension of the system;

"compound of concern” means a contaminant described in paragraph 4 subsection 26
(1) of O. Reg. 419/05, namely, a contaminant that is discharged to the air from a
component of the drinking water system in an amount that is not negligible;

"CT" means the CT Disinfection Concept, as described in subsection 3.1.1 of the
Ministry's Procedure for Disinfection of Drinking Water in Ontario, dated July 29 2016.

“Director’ means a Director appointed pursuant to section 6 of the SDWA for the
purposes of Part V of the SDWA,;

“drinking water works permit” means the drinking water works permit for the drinking
water system, as identified in Schedule A of this licence and as amended from time to
time;

“emission summary table" means a table described in paragraph 14 of subsection 26
(1) of O. Reg. 419/05;

“EPA” means the Environmental Protection Act, R.5.0. 1990, ¢. E.19;
“financial plan™ means the financial plan required by O. Reg. 453/07;

“Harmful Algal Bloom (HAB)” means an overgrowth of aguatic algal bacteria that
produce or have the potential to produce toxins in the surrounding water, when the algal




254-101

Scheduie B January 24, 2022

cells are damaged or die. Such bacteria are harmful to people and animals and include
microcystins produced by cyanobacterial blooms,

“licence” means this municipal drinking water licence for the municipal drinking water
system identified in Schedule A of this licence;

“Ministry” means the Ontario Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks;

“operational plan” means an operational plan developed in accordance with the
Director's Directions — Minimum Requirements for Operational Plans made under the
authority of subsection 15(1) of the SDWA,;

“owner” means the owner of the drinking water system as identified in Schedule A of this
licence;

“OWRA" means the Ontario Water Resources Act, R.5.0. 1990, ¢. 0.40;

“permit to take water” means the permit to take water that is associated with the taking
of water for purposes of the operation of the drinking water system, as identified in
Schedule A of this licence and as amended from time to time;

"point of impingement” has the same meaning as in section 2 of O. Reg. 419/05 under
the EPA,;

"point of impingement limit" means the appropriate standard from Schedule 2 or 3 of
O. Reg. 419/05 under the EPA and if a standard is not provided for a compound of
concern, the concentration set out for the compound of concern in the document titled
“Air Contaminants Benchmarks (ACB) List: Standards, guidelines and screening levels
for assessing point of impingement concentrations of air contaminants”, as amended
from time to time and published by the Ministry and available on a government of Ontario
website;

“licensed engineering practitioner” means a person who holds a licence, limited
licence or temporary licence under the Professional Engineers Act;

"provincial officer" means a provincial officer designated pursuant to section 8 of the
SDWA,;

“publication NPC-300" means the Ministry publication titled “Environmental Noise
Guideline: Stationary and Transportation Sources — Approvai and Planning” dated August
2013, as amended;

“SCADA system” means a supervisory control and data acquisition system used for
process monitoring, automation, recording and/or reporting within the drinking water
system;

“SDWA" means the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002, S.0. 2002, ¢. 32;



254-101 Schedule B January 24, 2022

“sensitive receptor” means any location where routine or normal activities occurring at
reasonably expected times would experience adverse effect(s) from a discharge to air
from an emergency generator that is a component of the drinking water system, including
one or a combination of:

(a) private residences or public facilities where people sleep (e.g.: single and multi-
unit dwellings, nursing homes, hospitals, trailer parks, camping grounds, etc.),

(b) institutional facilities (e.g.: schools, churches, community centres, day care
centres, recreational centres, etc.),

(c) outdoor public recreational areas (e.g.: traiter parks, play grounds, picnic areas,
etc.), and

(d) other outdoor public areas where there are continuous human activities {e.g.:
commercial plazas and office buildings).

‘sub-system” has the same meaning as in Ontario Regulation 128/04 (Certification of
Drinking Water System Operators and Water Quality Analysts) under the SDWA:

“surface water” means water bodies (lakes, wetlands, ponds - including dug-outs), water
courses (rivers, streams, water-filled drainage ditches), infiltration trenches, and areas of
seasonal wetlands;

"UV" means ultraviolet, as in ultraviolet light produced from an ultraviolet reactor.

2.0 Applicability

21 In addition to any other applicable legal requirements, the drinking water system
identified above shall be established, altered and operated in accordance with the
conditions of the drinking water works permit and this licence.

3.0 Licence Expiry

31 This licence expires on the date identified as the licence expiry date in Schedule A of this
licence.

4.0 Licence Renewal

4.1 Any application to renew this licence shall be made on or before the date identified as the
application for licence renewal date set out in Schedule A of this licence.

5.0 Compliance

51 The owner and operating authority shall ensure that any person authorized to carry out
work on or to operate any aspect of the drinking water system has been informed of the
SDWA, all applicable regulations made in accordance with that act, the drinking water
works permit and this licence and shall take all reasonable measures to ensure any such
person complies with the same.



254-101

Schedule B January 24, 2022

6.0 Licence and Drinking Water Works Permit Availability

6.1 At least one copy of this licence and the drinking water works permit shall be stored in
such a manner that they are readily viewable by all persons involved in the operation of
the drinking water system.

7.0 Permit to Take Water and Drinking Water Works Permit

71 A permit to take water identified in Schedule A of this licence is the applicable permit on
the date identified as the Effective Date of this licence.

7.2 A drinking water works permit identified in Schedule A of this licence is the applicable
permit on the date identified as the Effective Date of this licence.

8.0 Financial Plan

8.1 For every financial plan prepared in accordance with subsections 2(1) and 3(1) of
0. Reg. 453/07, the owner of the drinking water system shall:

8.1.1

8.1.2

Ensure that the financial plan contains on the front page of the financial plan, the
appropriate financial plan number as set out in Schedute A of this licence; and

Submit a copy of the financial plan to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Housing within three (3) months of receiving approval by a resolution of
municipal council or the governing body of the owner.

9.0 Interpretation

9.1 Where there is a conflict between the provisions of this licence and any other document,
the following hierarchy shall be used to determine the provision that takes precedence;

9.11

The SDWA;

A condition imposed in this licence that explicitly overrides a prescribed
regulatory requirement;

A condition imposed in the drinking water works permit that explicitly overrides a
prescribed regulatory requirement:

Any regulation made under the SDWA;

Any provision of this licence that does not explicitly override a prescribed
regulatory requirement:

Any provision of the drinking water works permit that does not explicitly override
a prescribed regulatory requirement;

Any application documents listed in this licence, or the drinking water works
permit from the most recent to the earliest; and



254-101

Schedule B January 24, 2022

10.0

9.2

23

9.4

9.1.8 Al other documents listed in this licence, or the drinking water works permit from
the most recent to the earliest.

9.1.9  Any other technical bulletin or procedure issued by the Ministry from the most
recent to the earliest,

if any requirement of this licence or the drinking water works permit is found to be invalid
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining requirements of this licence and the
drinking water works permit shall continue to apply.

The issuance of and compliance with the conditions of this licence and the drinking water
works permit does not:

9.3.1 Relieve any person of any obligation to comply with any provision of any
applicable statute, regulation or other legal requirement, including the
Environmental Assessment Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. E.18; and

9.3.2 Limitin any way the authority of the appointed Directors and provincial officers of
the Ministry to require certain steps be taken or to require the owner to fumnish
any further information related to compliance with the conditions of this licence or
the drinking water works permit.

For greater certainty, nothing in this licence or the drinking water works permit shall be
read to provide relief from regulatory requirements in accordance with section 46 of the
SDWA, except as expressly provided in the licence or the drinking water works permit.

Adverse Effects

10.1

10.2

10.3

Nothing in this licence or the drinking water works permit shall be read as to pertnit:

10.1.1 The discharge of a contaminant into the natural environment that causes or is
likely to cause an adverse effect; or

10.1.2 The discharge of any material of any kind into or in any waters or on any shore or
bank thereof or into or in any place that may impair the quality of the water of any
waters.

All reasonable steps shall be taken to minimize and ameliorate any adverse effect on the
natural environment or impairment of the quality of water of any waters resuiting from the
operation of the drinking water system including such accelerated or additional
monitoring as may be necessary to determine the nature and extent of the effect or
impairment.

Fuffillment of one or more conditions imposed by this licence or the drinking water works
permit does not eliminate the requirement to fulfill any other condition of this licence or
the drinking water works permit.



254101

Schedule B January 24, 2022

11.0  Change of Owner or Operating Authority

12.0

13.0

14.0

11.4

11.2

This iicence is not transferable without the prior written consent of the Director.

The owner shall notify the Director in writing at least 30 days prior to a change of any
operating authority identified in Schedule A of this licence.

11.2.1 Where the change of operating authority is the result of an emergency situation,
the owner shall notify the Director in writing of the change as soon as practicable.

information to be Provided

121

Any information requested by a Director or a provincial officer concerning the drinking
water system and its operation, including but not limited to any records required to be
kept by this licence or the drinking water works permit, shall be provided upon request.

Records Retention

13.1

Except as otherwise required in this licence or the drinking water works permit, any
records required by or created in accordance with this licence or the drinking water works
permit, other than the records specifically referenced in section 12 or section 13 of O.
Reg. 170/03, shall be retained for at least 5 years and made available for inspection by a
provincial officer, upon request.

Chemicals and Materials

14.1

14.2

14.3

All chemicals and materials used in the alteration or operation of the drinking water
system that come into contact with water within the system shall meet all applicable
standards set by both the American Water Works Association ("AWWA") and the
American National Standards Institute ("ANSI") safety criteria standards NSF/60, NSF/61
and NSF/372.

14.1.1 In the event that the standards are updated, the owner may request authorization
from the Director to use any on hand chemicals and materials that previously met
the applicable standards.

The most current chemical and material product registration documentation from a testing
institution accredited by either the Standards Council of Canada or by the American
National Standards Institution ("ANSI") shall be available at all times for each chemical
and material used in the operation of the drinking water system that comes into contact
with water within the system.

Conditions 14.1 and 14.2 do not apply in the case of the following:

14.3.1 Water pipe and pipe fittings meeting AWWA specifications made from ductile
iron, cast iron, PVC, fibre and/or steel wire reinforced cement pipe or high density
polyethylene (HDPE};

14.3.2 Articles made from stainless steel, glass, HDPE or Teflon®;



254-101

Schedule B January 24, 2022

14.3.3 Cement mortar for watermain lining and for water contacting surfaces of concrete
structures made from washed aggregates and Portland cement;

14.3.4 Gaskets that are made from NSF approved materials;

14.3.5 Food grade oils and lubricants, food grade anti-freeze, and other food grade
chemicals and materials that are compatible for drinking water use that may
come into contact with drinking water, but are not added directly to the drinking
water; or

14.3.6 Any particular chemical or material where the owner has written documentation
signed by the Director that indicates that the Ministry is satisfied that the
chemical or material is acceptable for use within the drinking water system and
the chemical or material is only used as permitted by the documentation.

15.0 Drawings

16.0

15.1

15.2

15.3

All drawings and diagrams in the possession of the owner that show any treatment
subsystem as constructed shall be retained by the owner unless the drawings and
diagrams are replaced by a revised or updated version showing the subsystem as
constructed subsequent to the alleration.

Any alteration to any treatment subsystem shall be incorporated into process flow
diagrams, process and instrumentation diagrams, and record drawings and diagrams
within one year of the alteration being completed or placed into service.

Process flow diagrams and process and instrumentation diagrams for any treatment
subsystem shall be kept in a place, or made available in such a manner, that they may be
readily viewed by all persons responsible for all or part of the operation of the drinking
water system.

Operations and Maintenance Manual

16.1

16.2

An up-to-date operations and maintenance manual or manuals shall be maintained and
applicable parts of the manual or manuals shall be made available for reference to all
persons responsible for alf or part of the operation or maintenance of the drinking water
system.

The operations and maintenance manual or manuals, shall include at a minimum:
16.2.1 The requirements of this licence and associated procedures;

16.2.2 The requirements of the drinking water works permit for the drinking water
system;

16.2.3 A description of the processes used to achieve primary and secondary
disinfection within the drinking water system including where applicable:

a) A copy of the CT calculations that were used as the basis for primary
disinfection under worst case operating conditions and other operating
conditions, if applicable; and



254-101

Schedule B January 24, 2022

16.3

16.4

16.2.4

16.2.5

16.2.6

16.2.7

b) The validated operating conditions for UV disinfection equipment, including a
copy of the validation certificate;

Procedures for monitoring and recording the in-process parameters necessary
for the control of any treatment subsystem and for assessing the performance of
the drinking water system;

Procedures for the operation and maintenance of monitoring equipment;

Contingency plans and procedures for the provision of adequate equipment and
material to deal with emergencies, upset conditions and equipment breakdown:;

Procedures for dealing with complaints related to the drinking water system,
including the recording of the nature of the complaint and any investigation and
corrective action taken in respect of the complaint;

Procedures necessary for the operation and maintenance of any alterations to the
drinking water system shall be incorporated into the operations and maintenance manual
or manuals prior to those alterations coming into operation.

All of the procedures included or referenced within the operations and maintenance
manuai must be implemented.



Schedule C: System-Specific Conditions

System Owner The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
Licence Number 254-101

Drinking Water System Name Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
Licence Effective Date January 24, 2022

1.0 System Performance
Rated Capacity
1.1 For each treatment subsystem listed in column 1 of Table 1, the maximum daily volume

of treated water that flows from the treatment subsystem to the distribution system shall
not exceed the value identified as the rated capacity in column 2 of the same row.

Table 1: Rated Capacity

Column 1 Column 2
Treatment Subsystem Name Rated Capacity (m*/day)
Sunsite Estates Water Treatment Plant 220

Maximum Flow Rates

1.2 For each treatment subsystem listed in column 1 of Table 2, the maximum flow rate of
water that flows into a treatment subsystem component listed in column 2 shall not
exceed the value listed in column 3 of the same row.

Table 2: Maximum Flow Rates

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
Treatment Subsystem Name Treatment Subsystem Component Maximum Flow Rate (L/s}
Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

1.3 Despite conditions 1.1 and 1.2, a treatment subsystem may be operated temporarily at a
maximum daily volume and/or a maximum flow rate above the values set out in column 2
of Table 1 and column 3 of Table 2 respectively for the purposes of fighting a large fire or
for the maintenance of the drinking water system.

14 Condition 1.3 does not authorize the discharge into the distribution system of any water
that does not meet all of the requirements of this licence and all other regulatory
requirements, including compliance with the Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standards.



254-101 Schedule C January 24, 2022

Residuals Management

1.5 In respect of an effluent discharged into the natural environment from a treatment
subsystem or treatment subsystem component listed in column 1 of Table 3:

1.5.1  The annual average concentration of a test parameter identified in column 2

shall:
a) not exceed the value in column 3 of the same row; and
b) be calculated at least once quarterly as the running annual average

based on the previous four quarterly results;

152 Where the average concentration of a test parameter identified in column 2
exceeds the value in column 3, the concentration shall be reported to the local
Ministry district office within 72 hours of receipt of the last lab result used in the
calculation;

1.5.3 The maximum concentration of a test parameter identified in column 2 shall not
exceed the value in column 4 of the same row:

1.5.4 Where the maximum concentration of a test parameter identified in column 2
exceeds the value in column 4, the discharge shall be reported in accordance
with 5.13.2 of O. Reg. 675.98 and recorded in accordance with s.12.2 of O, Reg.
675.88 within 24 hours of receipt of the lab result; and,

1.5.5 The test parameters listed in column 2 of Table 3 shall be sampled in accordance
with conditions 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4 of Schedule C in this Licence.

Table 3: Residuals Management

Column 1 Column 2 Coltumn 3 Celumn 4
Treatment Subsystem or Test Parameter Annual Average Maximum
Treatment Subsystem Concentration {mg/L}) Concentration {mgiL})
Component Name
Sunsite Estates Water Total Suspended Solids 25 Not Applicable
Treatment Plant
Sunsite Estates Water Total Chlorine Residual 0.02 Not Applicable

Treatment Plant

UV Disinfection Equipment Performance

1.6 For each treatment subsystem or treatment subsystem component listed in column 1 of
Table 4, and while directing water to the distribution system and being used to meet
pathogen iog removal/inactivation credits specified in Schedule E:

1.6.1  The UV disinfection equipment shall be operated within the validated limits for
the equipment at all times such that a continuous pass-through UV dose is
maintained throughout the life time of the UV lamp(s) that is at least the minimum
continuous pass-through UV dose set out in column 2 of the same row



254-101

Schedule C January 24, 2022

1.6.2 In addition to any other sampling, analysis and recording that may be required,
the ultraviolet light disinfection equipment shall test for the test parameters set
out in column 4 of the same row at a testing frequency of once every five (5)
minutes or less and record the test data at a recording frequency of once every
four (4) hours or less;

1.6.3 If there is a UV disinfection equipment alarm signaling that the disinfection
equipment is maifunctioning, has lost power, or is not providing the appropriate
level of disinfection the test parameters set out in column 4 of the same row shall
be recorded at a recording frequency of once every five minutes or less until the
alarm condition has been corrected;

1.64 A monthly summary report shall be prepared at the end of each calendar month
which sets out the time, date and duration of each UV equipment alarm
described in condition 1.6.3, the volume of water treated during each alarm
period and the actions taken by the operating authority to correct the alarm

situation;
Tahle 4. UV Disinfection Equipment
Column 1 Column 2 Colurmn 3 Column 4
Treatment Subsystem or Minimum Continuous Control Strategy Test Parameter
Treatment Subsystem Pass-Through UV Dose
Component Name {mJicm?)
Nol Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicabie Not Applicable

2.0  Flow Measurement and Recording Requirements

241

2.2

23

For each treatment subsystem identified in column 1 of Tabie 1 and in addition to any
other flow measurement and recording that may be required, continuous flow
measurement and recording shall be undertaken for:

21.1 The flow rate (L/s) and daily volume (m3/day) of treated water that flows from the
treatment subsystem to the distribution system.

212 The flow rate (L/s) and daily volume (m3/day) of water that flows into the
treatment subsystem.

For each treatment subsystem component identified in column 2 of Table 2 and in
addition to any other flow measurement and recording that may be required, continuous
flow measurement and recording shall be undertaken for the flow rate and daily volume of
water that flows into the treatment subsystem component.

Where a rated capacity from Table 1 or a maximum flow rate from Table 2 is exceeded,
the following shall be recorded:

23.1 The difference between the measured amount and the applicable rated capacity
or maximum flow rate specified in Table 1 or Table 2;



254-101

Schedule C January 24, 2022

2.3.2 The time and date of the measurement;
2.3.3 The reason for the exceedance; and
234 The duration of time that lapses between the applicable rated capacity or

maximum flow rate first being exceeded and the next measurement where the
applicable rated capacity or maximum flow rate is no longer exceeded.

3.0  Calibration of Flow Measuring Devices

34

3.2

All flow measuring devices that are required by regulation, by a condition in the drinking
water works permit 254-201, or by a condition otherwise imposed by the Ministry, shall be
checked and where necessary calibrated in accordance with the manufacturer's
instructions.

If the manufacturer’s instructions do not indicate how often to check and calibrate a flow
measuring device, the equipment shall be checked and where necessary calibrated at
least once every 12 months during which the drinking water system is in operation.

3.2.1  For greater certainty, if condition 3.2 applies, the equipment shall be checked
and where necessary calibrated not more than 30 days after the first anniversary
of the day the equipment was checked and calibrated in the previous 12-month
period.

4.0  Calibration of CT Monitoring System

4.1

Any measuring instrumentation that forms part of the monitoring system for CT shall be
checked and where necessary calibrated at least once every 12 months during which the
drinking water system is in operation, or more frequently in accordance with the
manufacturer's instructions.

4.1.1  For greater certainty, if condition 4.1 applies, the instrumentation shall be
checked and where necessary calibrated not more than 30 days after the first
anniversary of the day the equipment was checked and calibrated in the previous
12-month period.

5.0  Additional Sampling, Testing and Monitoring

Drinking Water Health and Non-Health Related Parameters

5.1

For each treatment subsystem or treatment subsystem component identified in column 1
of Tables 5 and 6 and in addition to any other sampling, testing and monitoring that may
be required, sampling, testing and monitoring shall be undertaken for a test parameter
listed in column 2 at the sampling frequency listed in column 3 and at the monitoring
location listed in column 4 of the same row.



254101 Schedule C January 24, 2022

Table §: Drinking Water Health Related Parameters

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Treatment Subsystem or Test Parameter Sampling Frequency Monitoring Location
Treatment Subsystem

Component Name

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

Table 6: Drinking Water Non-Health Related Parameters

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Treatment Subsystem or Test Parameter Sampling Frequency Monitering Location
Treatment Subsystem

Component Name

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Appiicable Not Applicable

Environmental Discharge Parameters

5.2 For each treatment subsystem or treatment subsystem component identified in column 1
of Table 7 and in addition to any other sampling, testing and monitering that may be
required, sampling, testing and monitoring shalf be undertaken for a test parameter listed
in column 2 using the sample type identified in column 3 at the sampling frequency listed
in column 4 and at the monitoring location listed in column 5 of the same row.

5.3 For the purposes of Table 7:

5.3.1  Manual Composite means the mean of at least three grab samples taken during
a discharge eveni, with one sample being taken immediately following the
commencement of the discharge event, one sample being taken approximately
at the mid-point of the discharge event and one sample being taken immediately
before the end of the discharge event; and

5.3.2 Automated Composite means samples must be taken during a discharge event
by an automated sampler at a minimum sampling frequency of once per hour.

54 Any sampling, testing and monitoring for the test parameter Total Suspended Solids shall
be performed in accordance with the requirements set out in the publication “Standard
Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater”, 239 Edition, 2017, or as
amended from time to time by more recently published editions.




254-101 Schedule C January 24, 2022
Table 7: Environmental Discharge Parameters
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5
Treatment Subsystem or Test Parameter Sample Type Sampling Monitoring Location
Treatment Subsystem Freguency
Component Name
Sunsite Estates Water Total Suspended Manual Quarterly Paoint of discharge to
Treatment Plant Solids Composite drainage ditch
Sunsite Estates Water Total Chlorine Grab Quarterly Point of discharge to
Treatment Plant Residual drainage ditch

5.5 Pursuant to Condition 10 of Schedule B of this ficence, the owner may undertake the
following environmental discharges associated with the maintenance and/or repair of the
drinking water system:

5.51
552

5.5.3

554

55.5

5.5.6

The discharge of potable water from a watermain to a road or storm sewer:

The discharge of potable water from a water storage facility or pumping station:

a) To a road or storm sewer; or

b) To a watercourse where the discharge has been dechlorinated and if
necessary, sediment and erosion control measures have been
implemented,

The discharge of dechlorinated non-potable water from a watermain, water
storage facility or pumping station to a road or storm sewer;

The discharge of raw water from a groundwater well to the environment where if
necessary, sediment and erosion control measures have been implemented; and

The discharge of raw water, potable water or non-potable water from a treatment
subsystem to the environment where if necessary, the discharge has been
dechlorinated and sediment and erosion control measures have been
implemented.

The discharge of any excess water to a road, storm sewer or the environment,
associated with the management of materials excavated as part of watermain
construction or repair, where necessary sediment, erosion and environmental
control measures have been implemented.

6.0 Studies Required

Harmful Algal Blooms

6.1 The owner shall develop and keep up to date a Harmful Algal Bioom monitoring, reporting
and sampling plan, herein known as the “Plan’, to be implemented when a potential
harmful aigai bloom is suspected or present. The owner shall have the Plan in place on
or before February 10, 2022.



254101

Schedule C January 24, 2022

6.2

6.3

611

6.1.3

The owner must have a copy of the Plan available onsite at the drinking water
system, for inspection upon request by Ministry staff.

The owner must implement the Plan annually during the harmfui algal bloom
season, during but not limited to the warm seasonal period between June 1 and
October 31 each year, or as otherwise directed by the Ministry or the Medical
Officer of Health.

The owner must train all relevant drinking water system staff on the Plan prior to
the beginning of each warm season, as described in Condition 6.1.2.

For clarity, a Harmful Algal Bloom is considered suspected or accurring when:

6.21

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

the owner or operating authority has observed an algal bloom:

a) near the shoreline at or near the source water intake(s) described in
drinking water works permit # 254-201, or

b) where the intake has an Intake Protection Zone in a source protection
plan, within IPZ-1, or

c) within a circle that has a radius, measured from the intake, equal to the
distance from the intake to the farthest edge of IPZ.2.

microcystin has been detected in a raw or treated water sample; and/or,

the owner has received any form of natification related to an algal bioom from the
Ministry, a Medical Officer of Health, or the public; or,

the presence of or identification of cyanobacteria has been determined though
optical probes or other analytic techniques used by the drinking water system.

The Plan described in condition 6.1 must include, at a minimum:

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

details relating to visual monitoring for harmful algal blooms at or near the
drinking water system intake(s),

a) as described in drinking water works permit # 254-201, or

b) where the intake has an Intake Protection Zone in a source protection
plan, within IPZ-1, or

c) within a circle that has a radius, measured from the intake, equal to the
distance from the intake to the farthest edge of IPZ-2.

details relating to visual monitoring of shoreline; this is applicable to drinking
water systems where the proximity of the intake(s) may be of concern.

details relating to reporting the observed or suspected harmful algal bloom, as
described in section 6.2;

a) to the Overall Responsible Operator(s) and/or Operator(s)-in-Charge if
the blooms have been observed or suspected by a duty operator; the



254-11 Schedule C Janvary 24, 2022
Plan shall include wording that directs relevant drinking water staff to
follow the instructions provided by the Overall Responsible Operator(s}
or the Operator(s)-in-Charge;

b) to the medical officer of health; and
c) to the iocal MECP representative and the Ministry's Spills Action
Centre.,

6.3.4 asampling plan, including the identification of sample location(s) and frequencies
that at a minimum match those described in condition 6.4.

6.3.5 triggers that may increase the required sampling frequency;

6.3.6 up-to-date records that document staff training on the harmful algal bloom
monitoring, reporting, and sampling procedures.

6.4 Any water samples collected under Condition 6.3.4 must be;

6.4.1 collected, at a minimum, once per week, or as otherwise directed by the Ministry
or the medical officer of health;

6.4.2 collected prior to any treatment, if the sample is taken from raw water:

6.4.3 collected at the point of entry into the distribution system, if the sample is taken
from treated water,;

8.4.4 collected from the shoreline by the drinking water system, if applicable based on
Condition 6.3.1;

6.4.5 submitted to a laboratory licensed to perform ELISA testing for total microcystin;

6.4.6 repeatediy collected until 3 consecutive samples have shown nan-detection of
microcystin and the algal bloom is no longer suspected or visually observed.

7.0 Source Protection

71

7.2

7.3

The owner of the drinking water system shall implement risk management measures, as
appropriate, to manage any potential threat to drinking water that results from the
operation of the drinking water system.

The owner of the system shall notify the Director in writing within thirty (30} days of any
approved changes to an applicable source protection plan that impact the assessed
threat ievel of a fuel oil system identified in Schedule A of drinking water works permit.

The notification required in condition 7.2 shall include:

7.3.1 A description of the changes and their impact on the assessed threat leve! of the
fuel oil system(s}; and,



254101

Schedule C January 24, 2022

7.3.2 A timeline for re-assessing the threat level and providing the results of the
assessment to the Director.

8.0 CT Calculations

81

On or before July 24, 2022, the owner shall submit to the Director the copy of the updated
CT calculations including the following information;

8.1.1 A drawing/sketch showing Chlorine Contact Tank configurations including tank
dimensions {(Length, Width, Height); location of high-lift pump suction pipes; inlet
and outlet locations, chlorine injection and chlorine analyzer locations and flow
path

8.1.2  The baffling factor used in the CT calculations with justifications on how baffling
factor was selected.

8.1.3 The minimum depth required to achieve CT for worst case conditions and how
the minimum depth is maintained in the chlorine contact tank,



Schedule D: Conditions for Relief from Regulatory

Requirements
Systemn Owner The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
Licence Number 254101
Drinking Water System Name Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
Licence Effective Date January 24, 2022

Effective January 24, 2022, no relief from regulatory requirements is authorized by the Director under
seclion 46 of the SDWA in respect of the drinking water system.



Schedule E: Pathogen Log Removal/lnactivation Credits

System Owner
Licence Number

Drinking Water System Name

Licence Effective Date

The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
254-101

Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
January 24, 2022

1

.0

Primary Disinfection Pathogen Log Removal/lnactivation Credits

Sunsite Estates Water Supply Plant

Maritowaning Buy [SURFACE WATER]

Minimum l.og Removal/ Cryptosporidium Qocysts Giardia Cysts ® Viruses ®
Inactivation Required

Sunsite Estates Water 2 3 4
Supply Plant

L]

* Atleast 0.5 log inactivation of Giardia shall be achieved by the disinfection portion of the overall water treatment process.

At least 2 log inactivation of viruses shall be achieved by disinfection.

Log Removalfinactivation Cryptosporidium Qocysts Giardia Cysts Viruses
Credits Assigned *

Microfiltration 24 3 0
Chilorination [CT: Ghiorina Contact o 05 4+
Tank}

Log removalfinactivation credit assignment is based on each treatment process being fully operational and the applicable log
removalfinactivation credit assignment criteria being met.

Applies only when the treatment process has been specifically tested and confirmed for the specified removaliinactivation of
Cryplosponidium Cocysts or the removal of surrogate particles

Treatment Component

Log Removal/inactivation Credit Assignment Criteria

Microfiltration

S

Effective backwash procedures shall be maintained including filter-to-waste or an equivalent
procedure to ensure that the effluent turbidity requirements are met at all times;

Membrane integrity shall be monitored by continuous particle counting or by an equivalently
effeclive means such as intermitient pressure decay measurements;

Filtrate turbidity shall be continuously monitored;

Performance criterion for filtered waler turbidity of less than or equal to 0.1 NTU in 99% of
the measurements each month shall be met for each filter train; and

Membrane filtration process shall be specifically tested and confirmed by an independent
tesling agency or the approving Director for 2-log removal or inactivation of Cryptasporidium
oocysts or removal of surrogale particles.

Chiorination

Sampling and tesling for free chlorine residual shall be carried out by continuous monitoring
equipment in the treatment process at or near a location where the intended conlact lime
has just been completed in accordance with the Ministry’s Procedure for Disinfection of
Drinking Water in Ontario; and

Atall times, CT provided shall be greater than or equal to the CT required to achieve the log
removal credits assigned.

Primary Disinfection
Notes




Appendix C



Ontario @
DRINKING WATER WORKS PERMIT

Permit Number: 254-201
Issue Number: 3

Pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002, S.0. 2002, c. 32, and the regulations made thereunder
and subject to the limitations thereof, | hereby issue this drinking water works permit under Part V of the
Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002, S.0. 2002, ¢. 32 to:

The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
156 Arthur St
Manitowaning, ON POP 1NO
For the following municipal residential drinking water system:

Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System

This drinking water works permit includes the following:

Schedule Description

Scheduie A Drinking Water System Description

Schedule B General

Schedule C All documents issued as Schedule C to this drinking water works permit which
authorize alterations to the drinking water system

Schedule D Process Flow Diagrams

Upon the effective date of this drinking water works permit #254-201, all previously issued versions of
permit #254-201 are revoked and replaced by this permit.

DATED at TORONTO this 24™ day of January, 2022

Signature

Aziz Ahmed, P.Eng.

Director
Part V, Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002



Schedule A: Drinking Water System Description

System Owner The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
Permit Number 254-201

Drinking Water System Name Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
Permit Effective Date January 24, 2022

1.0 System Description

1.1 The following is a summary description of the works comprising the above drinking water
system:

Overview

The Sunsite Estates Drinking Water System consists of one (1) drinking water
treatment plant and approximately 2 kilometers of distribution watermains.

Sunsite Estates Water Supply Plant

Location and System Type

Street Address 15 Moggy Parkway, Assiginack
UTM Coordinates NAD 27, UTM Zone 17: 435000 m E., 5074200 m N
System Type Surface water supply and treatment
Notes
Surface Water Supply

Intake Facility

Description Raw water intake system extending into Manitowaning Bay

Equipment 185 m long 150 mm diameter intake pipe and intake crib with screen extended
from the low lift pumping station into approx. 140 m off shore

A 12 mm diameter internal line for delivering chlorine solution at intake crib
diffuser for zebra mussel control

A 25 mm diameter internal line extending beyond the chlorine diffuser for raw
water sampling

Notes




254-201 Schedule A January 24, 2022

Low Lift Works

Low Lift Pumping Station

Description Low lift pumping station with a 1.5 m diameter wet well for delivering raw water
Discharge to Water treatment plant through approx. 145 m long 75 mm diameter watermain
Equipment One (1) submersible pump at 276 m3/day at 35 m TDH

Two (2) metering pumps complete with storage tank for feeding chlorine
solution for zebra mussel control at intake crib

Notes

Membrane Filtration System

Membrane Filters

Description Micro-filtration membranes

Equipment Two (2) micro-filtration membranes trains each at 220 m¥day, each train
consisting of six (6) modules with nominal membrane pore size of 0.1 microns
and absolute pore size of 0.2 microns

One (1) feed/backwash pump per filter

One (1) backwash air supply system common to both

One (1) backwash energy dissipation system common to both

Notes

Membrane Cleaning System

Description Membrane clean-in-place (CIP) system

Equipment One (1) sodium hypochlorite manual pump and one (1) chemical storage tank
for CIP cycles (manually added)

One (1) citric acid manual pump for CIP cycles (manually added)

One (1} sodium hydroxide metering pump and one (1) chemical storage tank
for neutralization

One (1) sedium bisulfite metering pump and one (1) chemical storage tank for
dechlorination

One (1) 795 L tank for neutralization

Notes




254-201 Schedule A January 24, 2022

Chemical Addition

Pre-treatment

Description Chemical addition for pH adjustment

Feed Point Upstream of the membrane filters

Equipment Two (2) metering pumps {duty and standby)
One (1) storage tank complete with a mixer and spill containment

Notes

Coagulant

Description Coagulation feed system

Feed Points Upstream of the membrane filters

Equipment Two (2) metering pumps (duty and standby)
One (1) storage tank complete with a mixer and spill containment

Notes

Chlorine

Description Sodium hypochlorite solution for disinfection

Feed Points Chlorine contact tank (pre-chlorination)
High lift discharge header (post-chlorination)

Equipment Pre-chlorination: two (2) metering pumps (duty and standby) complete with one
(1) storage tank and spill containment
Post-chlorination: two (2) metering pumps (duty and standby) complete with
one (1) storage tank and spiil containment

Notes

Waste Residual Management System

Settling Tank

Description One (1) baffled wastewater and sludge settling tank

Dimensions 24 m?

Discharge to Effluent to a nearby ditch discharging into Manitowaning Bay
Sludge to be transported off site

Equipment Two (2) submersible pumps for discharging effluent

Notes




254-201

Schedule A

On-Site Storage

Chlorine Contact Tank

Description One (1) baffled chlorine contact tank with overflow weir
Dimensions 18 m3
Discharge to Clearwells

Notes

Clearwells and High Lift Pumps

Description

Two (2) baffled clearwells installed with high lift pumps

Dimensions

Total 93 m?

Discharge to

Distribution system

Equipment

Three (3) submersible high lift pumps each at 259 m3¥day at 65 m TDH

Notes

Instrumentation and Control

SCADA System

SCADA System

A Plant SCADA System

Flow Measurement
Locations

One (1) flowmeter on raw supply line

One (1) flowmeter on treated header

Level Measurement
Locations

One (1) level sensor located above clearwell

Process Analyzer

One (1) chlorine analyzer at the contact tank

el One (1) pH meter on raw supply line
Twa (2) turbidity analyzers on fiitrate effiuent lines
One (1) turbidity analyzer on raw supply line
Notes

Emergency Power

Backup Power Supply

Description

One (1) standby liquid propane generator rated 60 kW

Fuel Storage

Propane fuel storage tank — 1000 liters

Notes

January 24, 2022




254201

Schedule A January 24, 2022

Fuel Oil Systems

Fuel Storage Locations

Location Not Applicable
Description Not Applicable
Fuel Type Not Applicable
Source Protection Not Applicable
Area

Notes

Watermains
1.2 Watermains within the distribution system comprise:

1.2.1  Watermains that have been set out in each document or file identified in column

1 of Tabie 1.
Table 1: Watermains
Column 1 Column 2
Document or File Name Date
Sunsite Estates Distribution - May 28, 2021.pdf May 28, 2021

1.2.2 Watermains that have been added, modified, replaced or extended further to the
provisions of Schedule C of this drinking water works permit on or after the date
identified in column 2 of Table 1 for each document or file identified in column 1.

1.2.3 Watermains that have been added, modified, replaced or extended further to an
authorization by the Director on or after the date identified in column 2 of Table 1
for each document or fite identified in column 1.



System Owner The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
Permit Number 254-201

Drinking Water System Name Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
Permit Effective Date January 24, 2022

Schedule B: General

1.0

2.0

Applicability

1.1

1.2

In addition to any other applicable legal requirements, the drinking water system
identified above shall be altered and operated in accordance with the conditions of this
drinking water works permit and the licence #254-101.

The definitions and conditions of licence #254-101 are incorporated into this permit and
also apply to this drinking water system.

Alterations to the Drinking Water System

21

2.2

23

Any document issued by the Director to be incorporated into Schedule C to this drinking
water works permit shall provide authority to alter the drinking water system in
accordance with the applicable conditions of this drinking water works permit and licence
#254-101.

All documents issued by the Director as described in condition 2.1 shall form part of this
drinking water works permit.

All parts of the drinking water system in contact with drinking water that are added,
modified, replaced, extended shall be disinfected in accordance with a procedure
approved by the Director or in accordance with the applicable provisions of the following
documents:

a} Until July 23, 2022 the ministry’s Watermain Disinfection Procedure, dated
November 2015. As of July 24, 2022 the ministry’s Watermain Disinfection
Procedure, dated August 1, 2020;

b) Subject to condition 2.3.2, any updated version of the ministry's
Watermain Disinfection Procedure;

¢) AWWA C652 — Standard for Disinfection of Water-Storage Facilities;

d) AWWA C653 — Standard for Disinfection of Water Treatment Plants; and

e) AWWA C654 - Standard for Disinfection of Wells.

231 For greater clarity, where an activity has occurred that could introduce
contamination, including but not limited to repair, maintenance, or physical /
video inspection, all equipment that may come in contact with the drinking water
system shall be disinfected in accordance with the requirements of condition 2.3.
above.

232 Updated requirements described in condition 2.3 b) are effective six months from
the date of publication of the updated Watermain Disinfection Procedure.



254-201

Schedule B January 24, 2022

3.0

2.4

2.5

26

27

28

The owner shall notify the Director in writing within thirty (30) days of the placing into
service or the completion of any addition, modification, repiacement, removal or
extension of the drinking water system which had been authorized through:

2.4.1  Schedule B to this drinking water works permit which would require an alteration
of the description of a drinking water system component described in Schedule A
of this drinking water works permit;

24.2 Any document to be incorporated in Schedule C to this drinking water works
permit respecting works other than watermains; or

243 Any approval issued prior to the issue date of the first drinking water works
permit respecting works other than watermains which were not in service at the
time of the issuance of the first drinking water works permit,

The notification required in condition 2.4 shall be submitted using the “Director
Notification Form" published by the Ministry.

For greater certainty, the notification requirements set out in condition 2.4 do not apply to
any addition, modification, replacement, removal or extension in respect of the drinking
water system which:

26.1 s exempt from subsection 31(1) of the SDWA by subsection 9.(2) of O. Reg.
170/03;

2.8.2 Constitutes maintenance or repair of the drinking water system:; or

2.6.3 Is a watermain authorized by condition 3.1 of Schedule B of this drinking water
works permit.

The owner shall notify the legal owner of any part of the drinking water system that is
prescribed as a municipal drinking water system by section 2 of O. Reg. 172/03 of the
requirements of the licence and this drinking water works permit as applicable to the
prescribed system.

For greater certainty, the owner may only carry out alterations to the drinking water
system in accordance with this drinking water works permit after having satisfied other
applicable legal obligations, including those arising from the Environmental Assessment
Act, Niagara Escarpment Planning and Development Act, Oak Ridges Moraine
Conservation Act, 2001 and Greenbelt Act, 2005.

Watermain Additions, Modifications, Replacements and Extensions

3.1

The owner may alter the drinking water system, or permit it to be altered by a person
acting on the owner's behalf, by adding, modifying, replacing or extending a watermain
within the distribution system subject to the following conditions:

3.1.1  The design of the watermain addition, modification, replacement or extension:

a} Has been prepared by a licensed engineering practitioner;

b) Has been designed only to transmit water and has not been designed to treat
water;



254-201

Schedule B January 24, 2022

3.2

¢) Satisfies the design criteria set out in the Ministry publication “Watermain
Design Criteria for Future Alterations Authorized under a Drinking Water
Works Permit — June 2012", as amended from time to time; and

d) Is consistent with or otherwise addresses the design objectives contained
within the Ministry publication “Design Guidelines for Drinking Water
Systems, 2008", as amended from time to time.

The maximum demand for water exerted by consumers who are serviced by the
addition, modification, replacement or extension of the watermain will not resuit in
an exceedance of the rated capacity of a treatment subsystem or the maximum
flow rate for a treatment subsystem component as specified in the licence, or the
creation of adverse conditions within the drinking water system.

The watermain addition, modification, replacement or extension will not adversely
affect the distribution system’s ability to maintain a minimum pressure of 140 kPa
at ground level at all points in the distribution system under maximum day
demand plus fire fiow conditions.

Secondary disinfection will be provided to water within the added, modified,
replaced or extended watermain to meet the requirements of O. Reg. 170/03.

The watermain addition, modification, replacement or extension is wholly located
within the municipal boundary over which the owner has jurisdiction.

The owner of the drinking water system consents in writing to the watermain
addition, modification, replacement or extension.

A licensed engineering practitioner has verified in writing that the watermain
addition, modification, replacement or extension meets the requirements of
condition 3.1.1.

The owner of the drinking water system has verified in writing that the watermain
addition, modification, replacement or extension meets the requirements of
conditions 3.1.2 {0 3.1.6.

The authorization for the addition, maodification, replacement or extension of a watermain
provided for in condition 3.1 does not include the addition, modification, replacement or
extension of a watermain that:

321

3.2.2

3.23

3.24

Passes under or through a body of surface water, unless trenchless construction
methods are used;

Has a nominal diameter greater than 600 mm;

Results in the fragmentation of the drinking water system; or

Connects to another drinking water system, unless:

a) Prior to construction, the owner of the drinking water system seeking the

connection obtains written consent from the owner or owner's delegate of the
drinking water system being connected to; and



254-201

Schedule B January 24, 2022

33

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

b) The owner of the drinking water system seeking the connection retains a
copy of the written consent from the owner or owner's delegate of the
drinking water system being connected to as part of the record that is
recorded and retained under condition 3.3.

The verifications required in conditions 3.1.7 and 3.1.8 shall be:

3.31 Recorded on “Form 1 - Record of Watermains Authorized as a Future
Alteration”, as published by the Ministry, prior to the watermain addition,
madification, replacement or extension being placed into service; and

3.3.2 Retained for a period of ten (10) years by the owner,

For greater certainty, the verification requirements set out in condition 3.3 do not apply to
any addition, modification, replacement or extension in respect of the drinking water
system which:;

3.41 Is exempt from subsection 31(1) of the SDWA by subsection 9.(2) of
0. Reg. 170/03; or

3.4.2  Constitutes maintenance or repair of the drinking water system.

The document or file referenced in Column 1 of Table 1 of Schedule A of this drinking
water works permit that sets out watermains shall be retained by the owner and shall be
updated to include watermain additions, modifications, replacements and extensions
within 12 months of the addition, modification, replacement or extension.

The updates required by condition 3.5 shall include watermain location relative to named
streets or easements and watermain diameter.

Despite clause (a) of condition 3.1.1 and condition 3.1.7, with respect to the replacement
of an existing watermain or section of watermain that is 6.1 meters in length or less, if a
licensed engineering practitioner has:

3.7.1  inspected the replacement prior to it being put into service;

3.7.2 prepared a report confirming that the replacement satisfies clauses (b), (c) and
(d) of condition 3.1.1 (i.e. “Form 1 - Record of Watermains Authorized by a
Future Alteration” (Form 1), Part 3, items No. 2, 3 and 4); and

3.7.3 appended the report referred to in condition 3.7.2 to the completed Form 1,

the replacement is exempt from the requirements that the design of the replacement be
prepared by a licensed engineering practitioner and that a licensed engineering
practitioner verify on Form 1, Part 3, item No. 1 that a licensed engineering practitioner
prepared the design of the replacement.

For greater certainty, the exemption in condition 3.7 does not apply to the replacement of
an existing watermain or section of watermain if two or more sections of pipe, each of
which is 6.1 meters in length or less, are joined together, if the total length of replacement
pipes joined together is greater than 6.1 meters.



254-201

Schedule B January 24, 2022

4.0  Minor Madifications to the Drinking Water System

4.1

4.2

The drinking water system may be altered by adding, modifying or replacing the following
components in the drinking water system:;

4.1.1

Coagulant feed systems in the treatment system, including the location and
number of dosing points:

a) Prior to making any alteration to the drinking water system under
condition 4.1.1, the owner shall undertake a review of the impacts that
the afteration might have on corrosion control or other treatment
processes; and

b) The owner shall notify the Director in writing within thirty (30) days of any
alteration made under condition 4.1.1 and shall provide the Director with
a copy of the review,

c) The notification required in condition 4.1.1 b) shall be submitted using the
“Director Notification Form” published by the Ministry

Instrumentation and controls, including new SCADA systems and upgrades to
SCADA system hardware;

SCADA system software or programming that:

a) Measures, monitors or reports on a regulated parameter;

b) Measures, monitor or reports on a parameter that is used to calculate CT: or,

c) Calculates CT for the system or is part of the process algorithm that
calculates log removal, where the impacts of addition, modification or
replacement have been reviewed by a licensed engineering practitioner;

Filter media, backwashing equipment, filter troughs, and under-drains and
associated equipment in the treatment system;

Spill containment works; or,

Coarse screens and fine screens

The drinking water system may be altered by adding, modifying, replacing or removing
the following components in the drinking water system:

4.21

422

423

424

4.25

Treated water pumps, pressure tanks, and associated equipment;
Raw water pumps and process pumps in the treatment system;

Inline booster pumping stations that are not associated with distribution system
storage facilities and are on a watermain with a nominal diameter not exceeding
200 mm;

Re-circulation devices within distribution system storage facilities;

Indine mixing equipment;



254-201

Schedule B January 24, 2022

4.3

4.4

4.26

427

4.2.8

429

Chemical metering pumps and chemical handling pumps;

Chemical storage tanks (exciuding fuel storage tanks) and associated
equipment; or,

Measuring and monitoring devices that are not required by regulation, by a
condition in the Drinking Water Works Permit, or by a condition otherwise
imposed by the Ministry.

Chemical injection points;

4.2.10 Valves.

The drinking water system may be altered by replacing the following:

4.3.1

432

4.3.3

Raw water piping, treatment process piping or treated water piping within the
treatment subsystem;

Measuring and monitoring devices that are required by regulation, by a condition
in the Drinking Water Works Permit or by a condition otherwise imposed by the
Ministry.

Coagulants and pH adjustment chemicals, where the replacement chemicals
perform the same function;

a) Prior to making any alteration to the drinking water system under condition
4.3.3, the owner shall undertake a review of the impacts that the alteration
might have on corrosion control or other treatment processes; and

b) The owner shali notify the Director in writing within thirty (30) days of any
alteration made under condition 4.3.3 and shall provide the Director with a
copy of the review.

¢) The notification required in condition 4.3.3 b) shall be submitted using the
“Director Notification Form” published by the Ministry.

Any alteration of the drinking water system made under conditions 4.1, 4.2 or 4.3 shall

not result in;

441 An exceedance of a treatment subsystem rated capacity or a treatment
subsystem component maximum flow rate as specified in the licence;

442 The bypassing or removal of any unit process within a treatment subsystem;

4.4.3 The addition of any new unit process other than coagulation within a treatment
subsystem;

4.4.4 A deterioration in the quality of drinking water provided to consumers;



254-201

Schedule B January 24, 2022

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

4.4.5 A reduction in the reliability or redundancy of any component of the drinking
water system;

446 A negative impact on the ability to undertake compliance and other monitoring
necessary for the operation of the drinking water system; or

4.4.7 An adverse effect on the environment.
The owner shall verify in writing that any addition, modification, replacement or removal

of drinking water system components in accordance with conditions 4.1, 4.2 or 4.3 has
met the requirements of the conditions listed in condition 4.4.

The verifications and documentation required in condition 4.5 shall be:

46.1 Recorded on “Form 2 — Record of Minor Modifications or Replacements to the
Drinking Water System” published by the Ministry, prior to the modified or
replaced components being placed into service; and

4.6.2 Retained for a period of ten (10} years by the owner.
For greater certainty, the verification requirements set out in conditions 4.5 and 4.6 do not
apply to any addition, modification, replacement or removal in respect of the drinking

water system which:

471 Is exempt from subsection 31(1) of the SDWA by subsection 9.(2) of O. Reg.
170/03; or

4.7.2 Constitutes maintenance or repair of the drinking water system, including
software changes to a SCADA system that are not listed in condition 4.1.3

The owner shall update any drawings maintained for the drinking water system to refiect
the modification or replacement of the works, where applicable.

5.0 Equipment with Emissions to the Air

5.1

The drinking water system may be altered by adding, modifying or replacing any of the
following drinking water system components that may discharge or alter the rate or
manner of a discharge of a compound of concern to the air:

5.1.1  Any equipment, apparatus, mechanism or thing that is used for the transfer of
outdoor air into a building or structure that is not a cooling tower;

5.1.2  Any equipment, apparatus, mechanism or thing that is used for the transfer of
indoor air out of a space used for the production, processing, repair,
maintenance or storage of goods or materials, including chemical storage;

5.1.3  Laboratory fume hoods used for drinking water testing, quality control and quality
assurance purposes,

5.1.4 Low temperature handling of compounds with a vapor pressure of less than 1
kilopascal,



254.201

Schedule B January 24, 2022

52

5.3

54

5.1.5 Maintenance welding stations;

51.6 Minor painting operations used for maintenance purposes;

5.1.7 Parts washers for maintenance shops;

5.1.8 Emergency chlorine and ammonia gas scrubbers and absorbers;

5.1.9 Venting for activated carbon units for drinking water taste and odour control;
5.1.10 Venting for a stripping unit for methane removal from a groundwater supply;
2.1.11 Venting for an ozone treatment unit;

3.1.12 Natural gas or propane fired boilers, water heaters, space heaters and make-up
air units with a total facility-wide heat input rating of less than 20 million kilojoules
per hour, and with an individual fuel energy input of less than or equal to 10.5
gigajoules per hour; or

5.1.13 Emergency generators that fire No. 2 fuel oil (diesel fuel) with a sulphur content
of 0.5 per cent or less measured by weight, natural gas, propane, gasoline or
biofuel, and that are used for emergency duty only with periodic testing.

The owner shall not make an addition, modification, or replacement described in
condition 5.1 in relation to an activity that is not related to the treatment and/or distribution
of drinking water.

The emergency generators identified in condition 5.1.13 shall not be used for non-
emergency purposes including the generation of electricity for sale or for peak shaving
purposes.

The owner shall prepare an emission summary table for nitrogen oxides emissions only,
for each addition, modification or replacement of emergency generators identified in
condition 5.1.13.

Performance Limits

5.5

The owner shall ensure that a drinking water system component identified in conditions
5.1.110 5.1.13 is operated at all times to comply with the following limits:

5.5.1  For equipment other than emergency generators, the maximum concentration of
any compound of concern at a point of impingement shall not exceed the
corresponding point of impingement limit;

5.5.2 For emergency generators, the maximum concentration of nitrogen oxides at
sensitive receptors shall not exceed the applicable point of impingement limit,
and at non-sensitive receptors shall not exceed the Ministry half-hourly screening
level of 1880 ug/m?® as amended; and

5.5.3 The noise emissions comply at all times with the limits set out in publication
NPC-300, as applicable.



254-201

Schedule B January 24, 2022

6.0

7.0

8.0

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

The owner shall verify in writing that any addition, modification or replacement of works in
accordance with condition 5.1 has met the requirements of the conditions listed in
condition 5.5,

The owner shall document how compliance with the performance limits outlined in
condition 5.5.3 is being achieved, through noise abatement equipment and/or operational
procedures.

The verifications and documentation required in conditions 5.6 and 5.7 shall be:

5.8.1 Recorded on “Form 3 — Record of Addition, Modification or Replacement of
Equipment Discharging a Contaminant of Concern to the Atmosphere®, as
published by the Ministry, pricr to the additional, modified or replacement
equipment being placed into service; and

5.8.2 Retained for a period of ten (10) years by the owner.

For greater certainty, the verification and documentation requirements set out in
conditions 5.6 and 5.8 do not apply to any addition, modification or replacement in
respect of the drinking water system which:

59.1 Is exempt from subsection 31(1) of the SDWA by subsection 9.(2) of Q. Reg.
170/03; or

5.9.2 Constitutes maintenance or repair of the drinking water system.

The owner shall update any drawings maintained for the works to reflect the addition,
modification or replacement of the works, where applicable.

Previously Approved Works

6.1

The owner may add, modify, replace or extend, and operate part of a municipal drinking
water system if:

6.1.1  An appraval was issued after January 1, 2004 under section 36 of the SDWA in
respect of the addition, modification, replacement or extension and operation of
that part of the municipal drinking water system;

6.1.2 The approval expired by virtue of subsection 36(4) of the SDWA. and

6.1.3 The addition, modification, replacement or extension commenced within five
years of the date that activity was approved by the expired approval.

System-Specific Conditions

7.1

Not Applicable

Source Protection

8.1

Nat Applicable



Schedule C: Authorization to Alter the Drinking Water System

System Owner The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
Permit Number 254-201
Drinking Water System Name Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
Permit Effective Date January 24, 2022
1.0 General
11 Table 2 provides a reference list of all documents to be incorporated into Schedule C that

have been issued as of the date that this permit was issued.

1.1.1 Table 2 is not intended to be a comprehensive list of ali documents that are part
of Schedule C. For clarity, any document issued by the Director to be
incorporated into Schedule C after this permit has been issued is considered part
of this drinking water works permit.

Table 2: Schedule C Documents

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5
Issue # Issued Date Description Status DN#
Instaltation of
September 13, . . Not
1 2011 Granular Activated Archived Applicable

Carbon filters

Use ultra-filtration
fo replace the
existing micro-

filtration

2 August 20, 2018 Archived 1

1.2 For each document described in columns 1, 2 and 3 of Table 2, the status of the
document is indicated in column 4. Where this status is listed as ‘Archived’, the approved
alterations have been completed and relevant portions of this permit have been updated
to reflect the altered works. These ‘Archived’ Schedule C documents remain as a record
of the alterations.



Schedule D: Process Flow Diagrams

System Owner The Corporation of the Township of Assigniack
Permit Number 254-201

Drinking Water System Name Sunsite Estates Subdivision Drinking Water System
Permit Effective Date January 24, 2022

1.0 Process Flow Diagrams

Sunshine Estates Water Treatment Plant

Acet Vianbog.
Srsiem

’@
sk
Analyzar e
- ]
! Turtwgay
Anabeer

Duatroubon

CMF1

Bachwash
Taak

[Source: Assiginack Operational Plan 2020, August 15, 2018)

Note: this process flow diagram is for reference only, and represents a high level overview of the
system as of August 15, 2018.



Appendix D



F
> > . Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change
) ) Ontar O Ministére de 'Environnement et de I'Action en
matiére de changement climatigue

PERMIT TO TAKE WATER
Surface Water
NUMBER 7151-ABEK4P

Pursuant to Section 34.1 of the Ontario Water Resources Act, R.S.O. 1990 this Permit To Take
Water is hereby issued to:

‘The Corporation of the Township of Assiginack
25B Spragge St

Manitowaning, Ontario, POP 1NO

Canada

For the water 1). Lake Huron
taking from:

Located at: Lot 24, Concession 6, Geographic Township of Sheguiandah
Assiginack, District of Manitoulin

For the purposes of this Permit, and the terms and conditions specified below, the following
definitions apply:

DEFINITIONS

(a) "Director” means any person appointed in writing as a Director pursuant to section 5 of the
OWRA for the purposes of section 34.1, OWRA.

(b)  “Provincial Officer” means any person designated in writing by the Minister as a Provincial
Officer pursuant to section 5 of the OWRA.

(c) "Ministry" means Ontario Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change.
(@ "District Office" means the Sudbury, SHEGUIANDAH District Office.

(e) "Permit" means this Permit to Take Water No. 7151-ABEK4P including its Schedules, if any,
issued in accordance with Section 34.1 of the OWRA.

3] "Permit Holder" means The Corporation of the Township of Assiginack.

(g) "OWRA " means the Ontario Water Resources Act, R.S.0.1990, c. O. 40, as amended.

Page 1 - NUMBER 7151-ABEK4P



You are hereby notified that this Permit is issued subject to the terms and conditions outlined below:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Compliance with Permit

1.1 Except where modified by this Permit, the water taking shall be in accordance with the
application for this Permit To Take Water, dated April 27, 2016 and signed by Alton Hobbs, and
all Schedules included in this Permit.

1.2 The Permit Holder shall ensure that any person authorized by the Permit Holder to take water
under this Permit is provided with a copy of this Permit and shall take all reasonable measures
to ensure that any such person complies with the conditions of this Permit.

1.3 Any person authorized by the Permit Holder to take water under this Permit shall comply with
the conditions of this Permit.

14 This Permit is not transferable to another person.

L5 This Permit provides the Permit Holder with permission to take water in accordance with the
conditions of this Permit, up to the date of the expiry of this Permit. This Permit does not
constitute a legal right, vested or otherwise, to a water allocation, and the issuance of this Permit
does not guarantee that, upon its expiry, it will be renewed.

1.6 The Permit Holder shall keep this Permit available at all times at or near the site of the taking,
and shall produce this Permit immediately for inspection by a Provincial Officer upon his or her
request.

1.7 The Permit Holder shall report any changes of address to the Director within thirty days of any
such change. The Permit Holder shall report any change of ownership of the property for which
this Permit is issued within thirty days of any such change. A change in ownership in the
property shall cause this Permit to be cancelled.

2. General Conditions and Interpretation

2.1 Inspections
The Permit Holder must forthwith, upon presentation of credentials, permit a Provincial Officer
to carry out any and all inspections authorized by the OWRA, the Environmental Protection Act ,
R.8.0. 1990, the Pesticides Act , R.S.0. 1990, or the Safe Drinking Water Act, S. 0. 2002.

2.2 Other Approvals
The issuance of, and compliance with this Permit, does not:

(a) relieve the Permit Holder or any other person from any obligation to comply with any other

Page 2 - NUMBER 7151-ABEK4P



2.3

24

2.5

2.6

31

applicable legal requirements, including the provisions of the Ontario Water Resources Act , and
the Environmental Protection Act , and any regulations made thereunder; or

(b} limit in any way any authority of the Ministry, a Director, or a Provincial Officer, including
the authority to require certain steps be taken or to require the Permit Holder to furnish any
further information related to this Permit.

2.2.1 Prior to the taking of any water under the authorization of this Permit, the Permit Holder
shall ensure compliance with the Safe Drinking Water Act, S.0. 2002 and its
regulations. At no time does this permit authorize the taking of water when out of
compliance with the Safe Drinking Water Aci, S.0. 2002 and its regulations.

Information

The receipt of any information by the Ministry, the failure of the Ministry to take any action or
require any person to take any action in relation to the information, or the failure of a Provincial
Officer to prosecute any person in relation to the information, shall not be construed as:

(a) an approval, wajver or justification by the Ministry of any act or omission of any person that
contravenes this Permit or other legal requirement; or

(b) acceptance by the Ministry of the information's completeness or accuracy.

Rights of Action

The issuance of, and compliance with this Permit shall not be construed as precluding or
limiting any legal claims or rights of action that any person, including the Crown in right of
Ontario or any agency thereof, has or may have against the Permit Holder, its officers,
employees, agents, and contractors.

Severability

The requirements of this Permit are severable. If any requirements of this Permit, or the
application of any requirements of this Permit to any circumstance, is held invalid or
unenforceable, the application of such requirements to other circumstances and the remainder of
this Permit shall not be affected thereby.

Conflicts

Where there is a conflict between a provision of any submitted document referred to in this
Permit, including its Schedules, and the conditions of this Permit, the conditions in this Permit
shall take precedence.

Water Takings Authorized by This Permit

Expiry
This Permit expires on July 14, 2026. No water shall be taken under authority of this Permit
after the expiry date.

Page 3 - NUMBER 7151-ABEK4P



32

Amounts of Taking Permitted
The Permit Holder shall only take water from the source, during the periods and at the rates and

amounts of taking specified in Table A. Water takings are authorized only for the purposes
specified in Table A.

Table A
Source Name| Source: | Taking | Taking |  Max. Max. Num. | Max. Taken [Max. Num. of ~ Zone/
1 Description: Type: Specific | Major Taken per |of Hrs Take perDay | Days Taken| Easting/
Purpose: Category: Minute per Day: {litres); per Year: | Northing:
o : Zuind SR e (Htres ) | e & e W et
1 | Lake Huron | Lake Communal | Water Supply 379 24 276,480 365 17
| 435400
| | AT P | ER Wit 0 U O _| 5074000
Total 276,480 |
o - e i Taking: | I _ _J
4, Monitoring
4.1  The Permit Holder shall, on each day water is taken under the authorization of this Permit,

5.1

5.2

record the date, the volume of water taken on that date and the rate at which it was taken,
The daily volume of water taken shall be measured by a flow meter or calculated in
accordance with the method described in the application for this Permit or as otherwise
accepted by the Director. A separate record shall be maintained for each source. The
Permit Holder shall keep all records required by this condition current and available at or
near the site of the taking and shall produce the records immediately for inspection by a
Provincial Officer upon his or her request. The Permit Holder, unless otherwise required
by the Director, shall submit, on or before March 31" in every year, the daily water taking

data collected and recorded for the previous year to the ministry’s Water Taking
Reporting System.

Impacts of the Water Taking

Notification

The Permit Holder shall immediately notify the local District Office of any complaint arising
from the taking of water authorized under this Permit and shall report any action which has been
taken or is proposed with regard to such complaint. The Permit Holder shall immediately notify
the local District Office if the taking of water is observed to have any significant impact on the

surrounding waters. After hours, calls shall be directed to the Ministry's Spills Action Centre at
1-800-268-6060.

For Surface-Water Takings
The taking of water (including the taking of water into storage and the subsequent or
simultaneous withdrawal from storage) shall be carried out in such a manner that streamflow is

not stopped and is not reduced to a rate that will cause interference with downstream uses of
water or with the natural functions of the stream.

Page 4 - NUMBER 7151-ABEK4P



Director May Amend Permit

The Director may amend this Permit by letter requiring the Permit Holder to suspend or reduce
the taking to an amount or threshold specified by the Director in the letter. The suspension or
reduction in taking shall be effective immediately and may be revoked at any time upon
notification by the Director. This condition does not affect your right to appeal the suspension
or reduction in taking to the Environmental Review Tribunal under the Ontario Water
Resources Act , Section 100 (4).

The reasons for the imposition of these terms and conditions are as Jollows:

1.

Condition 1 is included to ensure that the conditions in this Permit are complied with and can be
enforced.

Condition 2 is included to clarify the legal interpretation of aspects of this Permit,

Conditions 3 through 6 are included to protect the quality of the natural environment so as to
safeguard the ecosystem and human health and foster efficient use and conservation of waters.
These conditions allow for the beneficial use of waters while ensuring the fair sharing,
conservation and sustainable use of the waters of Ontario. The conditions also specify the water
takings that are authorized by this Permit and the scope of this Permit.

Page 5 - NUMBER 7151-ABEK4P



In accordance with Section 100 of the Ontario Water Resources Act. R.S. O, 990, you may by written
Notice served upon me and the Environmental Review Tribunal within 15 days after receipt of this
Notice, require a hearing by the Tribunal. Section 101 of the Oniario Water Resources Acl, R.S.0.
1990, as amended, provides that the Notice requiring the hearing shall state:

1. The portions of the Permit or each term or condition in the Permit in respect of which the hearing is
required, and;
2. The grounds on which you intend to rely at the hearing in relation to each portion appealed.

In addition to these legal requirements, the Notice should also include:

a. The name of the appellant;
b. The address of the appellant;
¢. The Permit to Take Water number;
d. The date of the Permit to Take Water;
€. The name of the Director;
f. The municipality within which the works are located;
This notice must be served upon:
The Secretary The Director, Section 34.1, Ministry of the
Environmentald Review Tribunal AND Environment and Climare Change
655 Bay Street, 15th Fioor 334-435 James St §
Toronto ON Thunder Bay ON PTE 657
M5G 1E5 Fa: (807) 475-1754

Fax: (416) 326-5370
Email: ERTTribunalsecretary@ontario.ca

Further information on the Environmental Review Tribunal’s requirements for an appeal can be obtained directly from
the Tribunal:

by Telephone at by Fax at by e-mail at
(416) 212-6349 (416) 326-5370 www.ert.gov.on.ca
Toll Free 1(866) 448-2248 Toll Free 1(844) 213-3474

This Permit cancels and replaces Permit Number 3842-8UZHVS6, issued on 2012/06/15.

Dated at Thunder Bay this 14th day of July, 2016.

Carrie Hutchison
Director, Section 34.1
Ontario Water Resources Act , R.S.0. 1990

Page 6 - NUMBER 7151-ABEK4P



Schedule A

This Schedule “A” forms part of Permit To Take Water 7151-ABEK4P, dated July 14, 2016,

Page 7 - NUMBER 7151-ABEK4P



Appendix E



Sunsite Estates Drinking Water System Components

Site (Name): SOURCE WATER

Type: Source Sub Type: Surface Water

Comments:

The Sunsite Estates Water Treatment Plant intake lies in Manitowaning Bay, just off the North Channel of
Georgian Bay in Lake Huron. Raw water has been characterized as typical Lake Huron/Georgian Bay
water, which is low in colour and turbidity.

The Drinking Water Works Permit indicates the intake is 185 m long, 150 mm in diameter with a flared
elbow intake inside a cribbed structure. A zebra mussel chiorine injection line with chemical diffuser has
been installed at the intake screen along with a raw water sampling line (25 mm in diameter). Water is
gravity fed to the low lift pumping station.

A low lift pump and the zebra mussel control system are located in the low lift pump station. A 75mm
diameter raw water line runs from the low lift station to the plant (approximately 145 metres).

Site (Name): TREATED WATER

Type: Treated Water POE Sub Type: Treatment Facility

Comments:

The Class 2 membrane filtration water treatment plant has been operational since June 20, 2007. The
system has been operated by Ontario Clean Water Agency (OCWA) since October 2007.

Pre-treatment includes straining and addition of pH adjustment (if necessary). To date, PH adjustment is
not necessary at this plant.

Treatment includes Evoqua skid mounted membrane filtration units (2 trains, each can be isolated for
maintenance) followed by pre chlorination in baffled contact cells beside the facility. GAC filters, included
in DWWP/MDWL, to be used when taste and odour are problematic, and may be installed in the future.

Post chlorination injection is available (injection at header - just prior to discharge} at the plant but is not
required.

Membranes in use are rated as ultrafiltration with associated pore sizes of 0.04 microns. Two below
ground clear wells located adjacent to the plant provide a total storage volume of 93 cubic metres. The
membrane cleaning process involves backwash cycles using low pressure blower air introduced at the
bottom of and distributed throughout modules. Clean in Place (CIP) cycles occur as necessary and
include treatment with sodium hypochlorite which assists in removal of organics and citric acid for the
removal of inorganics. Neutralization of CiP effluent occurs using “Captor” which is a calcium thiosulfate
solution or caustic soda. CIP analyzer determines ORP on wastewater prior to discharge. Backwash
reservoir waste and neutralized wastewater are discharged to a nearby ditch and on to Manitowaning
Bay.

The operating system (SCADA) in use includes control features at site and in nearby Manitowaning. On
site there is a panel display and a datalogger.



Site (Name): DISTRIBUTION

Type: Other Sub Type: Class |

Comments:

This distribution system, commissioned in 1973, is a Class 1 system servicing approximately 65
permanent and seasonal residents.

This distribution system serves approximately 64 lots, 42 of which include buildings. Many of these
locations are seasonal cottages. This small distribution system has two dead end locations, 2 x 1.5 inch
blowoffs and a half inch goose neck pipe {formerly allowed to flow continuously but now with a curb stop
this site is used for sampling). The system is constructed of PVC pipes. No hydrants are connected nor
are there private lines connected to the system.

Metering is not in place on water services.

An outside tap is located at water plant but is purely used by operator and is thus valved off inside the
plant.



System: 2023-08-14 136123 AM The Township of Assiginack Page: 1
User Date: 2023-08-14 User ID: d=b
CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT Ser
Payables Management

Ranges: From: To: From: To:

Vendor ID First Last Chequebock ID First Last

Vendor Name First Last Cheque Number 0033352 0033347

Cheque Date First Last

Sorted By: Chegue Number

Distribution Types Included: All

[ chatto: | 0033352 [pate: | 2023-08-14  JVendor:] ARMIEC LIMITED PARTNERSHIP | Amount § £32,279.95]
InvNo: 6-309783 InvDesc: pipe for ditch (track icip gr) Invamt: $32,279.95

[ chao: | 0033353 |pata: | 2023-0s-14 [vendor:| BELL canaDpa Temoune] 519.94]
InvNo: 2023 08 01 InvDesc: (pll free line Invamt: 519,94

[eharto: Too33357 [oate: | 023-08-14  [Vendor:| comeutrex | Amount { 5941, 66]
InvNo: 28073 InvDese: august remate server mgmt InvAmt: SHET. 42
InvNo: 28029 InvDasc: offsite backup storage InvAmt: $74.724

{_ChaNo: | 0033355 |pata: | 2023-08-14  |Vender:| c. pEARsON & SON EXCAVATION & HAULAGE | Amount { £31, 106.08]
InvNo: 6407 InvDesc: ditching & lagoon InvAmt: $31,106.08

ChaNo: | 0033356 |pate: | 2023-068-14  [vender:| enstiin | Amoune | 52,001.99]
InvNo: 20411936 InvDesc: consolidated tel billing InvAmt: £2,001.99

[ chawo: T 0033357 |pate: | 2023-08-14 [vendor:} 6. stephEN WATT, BRRRISTER | Amount: § £514.15]
InvNo: 4105 InvDasc: general legal InvAmt: 2514.15

| chado: | oc3ssss |pate: | o023-0s-14  Jvendor:| entanpen [amount ] s62.74]
InvNo: 337943 InvDesc: arena-socan lic InvAmt: $62.74

Fchaio: | cosasse [pate: | 023-08-14  [Vendor:] GERRY STRONG | Amount { 5234.62
InvNo: AUG 14 2023 InvDesc: bldg insp mileage InvAmt: $234. 62

cheio: | 0033340 |pate: [ 2023-08-14  Vendor:] GrL euvirowMENTAL INC 2010 { Amount { 57,731.12]
InvNo: GO0000028532 InvDesc: july recycling transport InvaAmt: $7,731.1:

ChaNo: | 0033361 |pate: | 2023-0s-14  [vendor:] nypRO ONE NETWORKS InC, | Amount § s5, 045, 28]
InvNo: JULY 28 2023 LAGOON  InvDesc: lagoon Invhmt: $5,107.10
InvNo: JULY 27 2023 LITES InvDesc: street lites Invamt: $735.17
IrvMo: AUG 2 2023 ICE PLNT InvDesc: arena-ice plant {actual readin Irvhmt - $1,110.47
InvMe: AUG 2 2023 PW InvDesc: pw Invhmt: $347.76
InwNo:r AUG 2 2023 NORISLE InvDesc: norisle heritage park Invimt: $130.38
Invo: AUG 10 2023 SCHLHSE InvDeac: clvr valley schoolhouse Inwhmt : $31.20
Invlo: AUG 8 2023 OFFICE InvDesc: pun.ofice InvhAmt: $583.18

[ chgie: | 1033362 |pate: | c023-08-14  [vendor:| MANITOWANING MILL & KOME BUILDING CENTRE | Amount] 51, 439,93
InvNo: (277650 InvDesc: hacksaw & blades InvAmt: $39.73
InvNo: 0277607 InvDese: nparkers/coffee Invamt: $72.15
InwNo: (277457 InvDesc: abs fittings {wtr trusk Invhmt: $20.64
InvMo: 0276371 InvDM8ST  propane/coupling Inwvhmt : $16.58



11:36:23 AM

System: 2023=-08-14
User Date: 2023-08-14

The Township of Assiginack
CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT
Payables Management

Page: ?
User ID: deb

Invde: 0276310 InvDasc: white wire/foam {ball shed) Invhmt: $52.53
InvMo: 0276747 InvDesc: lumber (ball shed) TInvhmt: $111.28
InvMo: 0276208 InvDasc: deck screws (ball shed) Tovvhant : 5$39.54
InvHo: 0276142 InvDa#c: hose connector Invhmt : $7.56
InvMo: (0275941 InvDesc: rake InvAmt: 524.85
InvMo: 0272629 InvDasc: bolts (marinal InvhAmt : $24.82
Treelior 0272457 IavDess: chain & lock (landfill) IRvAmE: $71.17
Irvbio: 0271758 InvDese: string line InvAst: $61.00
Inwho: 0271736 InvDesc: marking powder (track] Inwhme : $122.00
Invilo: 0271542 InvDesc: bug spray Invhmt : 528,24
Invio: 0271614 InvDesc: lag bolts (marina) InvAmE $52.32
InvMo: (271622 InvDesc: concrete bolts (marinal Invhmt : $7.90
InvNo: (271509 InvDase: drill bits IrvAmt : §12.42
InvNo: (271367 InvDesc: water line {marina) Invhmt: $126.84
InvNo: (271247 InvDasc: tap/teflon (marina) Invimt : 511.05
InvMo: 0271074 InvDesc: fittings (marina) InvAme: $76.25
InvHo: 0271240 InvDese: rope/fittings {marina) Invh=t: $159.02
Inwlo: (0276218 InvDe@sc: ofice=broom Inwhmt 1 518.07
Inwlio: 0276219 InvDesc: 1ib bldg-batteries/toilet brus Inwhmt : $23.71
Inviio: 0276220 InvDesc: po-g.bags InvAmt : $44.06
Invilor 0276651 InvDesc: marina-fittings Irvhmt : $5.19
Invilo: 0276926 InvDesc: pavillion-lights/tarp Invhmt : $62.13
InwHe: (276950 InvDasc: pavillion-stapler/staples/lite Invhmt: $48.56
InvMio: 0277220 InvDesc: fd-insecticide Invhmt: $10.59
Invio: 0277478 InvDesc: fd-storage totes Trvhamt : $29.36
InvRo: (0277842 InvDesc: po-toilet lever Invhmt: $11.29
InvNo: 0278202 InvDesc: arena-cleaning supplies Invhmt: $75.58
[ ehado: 0033363 [pate: |  2023-08-14  |Jvendor:| maniToULTN ExeosrToR [Amount | £3, 291, 26|
InvNo: 117704 InvDesc: rtax sale advertisements InvAmt: $2,928.01
InvNo: 117678 InvDesc: pec/arena-advert Invamt: $363.25
[ chave: | 0033364 Joate: | 2023-08-14  vender:[wanirowantne FRESHMART | Amount { $57.71]




System: 2023-08-14 11:36:23 AM The Township of Assiginack page: 3
User Date: 2023-08-14 d s
CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT User ID:  deb
Payables Management

InvHo: (0189569 InvDesSt: pw-cs 5 of water InvAmt: $20.97
InvHo: 00048061 InvDesc: pw-css of waler InvAmt: $27.96
InvNo: 00196627 Invbesc: admin-tea IavAmt: $4.79
InvNo: 00197167 InvDesc: admin-water refill InvAmt: $3.99

Chalo: | 5033365 Jpata: | :023-08-14  [vendor:| mcooucalni FUELS [Pmount] 5501, 92)
InvNo: (6532094 InvDesc: Jib-service call InvAmt: 2501.497

[ chato: [ 0033366 [pate: | 2023-08-14  [vendor:| mike VAREY EXCAVATING & EQUIPMENT [Amount ] 5165, 298, 52|
InvNo: INV-0589 InvDasc: gravel 2023 InvAmt: 165, 208.5

| chae: | 0033367 [pate: | 2023-08-14  [Vendor:| MinIsTER OF FINANCE ] Amoune { 539, 00]
InvNo: 32137 InvDesc: rax sale adv (ont.gazettel InvAmt: §339.00

| chawo: | noa33se [pate: | 2023-08-14  [vendor:]| vEw womrTH FUELS INC { Amcunt { 52, 44,84
InvNo: 660355 InvDesc: pw-diesel InvAmt: $1,368.90
InvNo: 660351 InvDesc: pw-dyed diesel InvAmt: $1,075.74

| chare: | 0032369 [pate: |  2023-08-12  |vender:] worTHEan 011 {amount] £480. 62]
InvNo: 21216-08012023 InvDesc: august 911 dispatch Invhmt : F460. 62

[ chave: | 0033370 [pate: | 2023-08-1a _ [vendor:| prus mMeTHNER amount ] 51, 100.00]
InvNo: §2023-07-30 InvDesc: july animal control InvAmt: $1,100.00

{ ChaNo: | 0033371 Joate: |  2023-08-14  [vendor:| pErry newyan [ amount { 5617.44]
InvNo: pUG 14 2023 InvDesc: bylaw mileage InvAmt: $617.44

{ chave: | 0033372 [pate: |  -023-08-14  |Vendor:| prrnev works i Amount | 52, 280. 60|
InvNo: RUG 3 2023 InvDesec: postage meter refill Invhst: $2,280.60

[ Chawo: | 0033373 [pate: | 2023-08-14  |vendor:| RECE:VER GENERAL [amount. ] 539, 397.01]
InvNo: JULY 2023 InvDesc: july source deducticns InvAmt: $39,397.01

| chao: | 0033374 [pate: [ 2u-3-08-14  [Vendor:| supErIca PROPANE INC. Tamount | sg9, 27|
InvNa: 45164852 InvDesc: arena-rental contract InvAmt: $89.27

l chato: | 0033375 [pate: | J023-06-14  [vendor:] srmnLam ] amount { 5508 . 50|
InvNo: 1501 InvDesc: website maintenance InvAmt: §508.50

[ chawe: { 0033376 |pate: |  0:3-08-14  [vender:] assicruack pupLIc scHooL [ Amount § £291.00]
InvNo: 2023 BALL TOURNAMENT ImvDesc: pec=ball tournament InvAmt: 52G1,00

[ehatio: [ 0033377 [pata: | 2023-08-14  |vender:| cooL swors puoTosRARHY [amount ] 563550
InvNe: TOAYRTZO23 InvDesc: pec-youth ball tournament InvAmt: 5635.50

[ chawo: | co33278 [pate: | 2023-08-14  [Vendor:] 15LAND PAINTING & DECOR } Amount { 5754,1]
InvNo: 10 FINAL InvDesc: museum-final pyt re" painting InvAmt: §754.11

{ chaMo: | 0033370 |pate: |  -023-08-14  [vender:| marcIT ALpEaTI | amount { £1,000.00}
InvNo: SUMMER 2023 InvDesc: pec-2 wk robotics camp InvAmt: $1,000.00

[(enaNo: | 0033380 [Date: | 023 08-14  vender:| surLoon WATSON | Amount § 592,45
InvHo: AUG 1 2023 InvDesc: reimb tax overpyt Invhmt: $92.45

| chaNo: | 0033381 |pate: | 2023-08-14  [Vendor:] sonn BrADLEY [Amount ] s2a4.00]
InvNo: AUG 1 2023 InvDesc: reimb tx overpyt InvAmt: §244.00



System: 2023-08~14 16:23 AM The Township of Assiginack Page: a
User bate: 2023706-14 CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT User 1D:  geb
Payables Management

| chao: | po3a382 [pate: | 2023-08-14 _ [Vendor:| roromMONT CAT | Amount { 5607.95]
InvNe: WOB00942570 InvDesc: 1000 hr maintenance InvAmt: S607. 95

| chapio: | 0033383 [pate: I  2023-08-14  [vendor:| war suppLIES | Amount s12.41]
InvMo: 201246 InvDasc: cdelivery fees InvAmt : 512.41

[ chaNo: | 0033384 [pate: |  2023-08-14  [Vendor:|wnrTE's sHELL | Amount { 81,126.50
InvNo: 3615 InvDasc: gas #8 InvAmt : $126.50
InvHo: 3620 InvDasc: gas #8 InvAmt: $160.00
InvNe: 3559 InvDesc: gas #8 InvAmt: 5158.00
InvNo: 3581 InvDesc: gas #8 InvAmt: $66.00
InvNo: 3588 InvDasc: gas #8 InvAmt: 5175.00
EnvNo: 2401 InvDesc: gas #H InvAmt: $179.00
InvNo: 3¢22 InvDesc: gas § 8 InvAmt: 5262.00

[ chatio: | 0033335 [pate: | -n23-08-14  |vender:]winpows unniMITED | Amount | 53, 653. 66|
InvNo: 2023-22 InvDesc: posadmin/lib cleaning InvAmt: 53, 653. 66

| Chato: | 0033386 [oate: | 2023-03-14  [vendor:| wocD wyanT cammDA INC | Amount | 157.22]
InvNo: 124922 InvDesc: arena-floor cleaner supplies InvAmt: 5157

[ehaio: | 0033387 Joate: | 2023-08-14  [Vender:| xerox_cruapa LTD. | Amount | a,355]
InvNe: §5733210 InvDesc: monthly copier usage InvAmt: $259.55

sk ok o

td* End of Report

Report Total:

309,598.31



System: 2023-08-28 10:26:39 AM The Township of Assiginack page: 1
User Date: 2023-08-28 r 1ID: deb
CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT use i
Payables Management

Ranges: From: To: From: To:

Vendor ID First Last Chequebook ID First Last

Vendor Name First Last Cheque Number 0033402 0033422

Cheque Date First Last

Sorted By: Cheque Number

Distribution Types Included:All

Chalo: | 0033402 [Date: | 2023-08-28  [Vendor:| ASTLINK Tamount ] 133.30)
InvNo: AYG 10 2023 MARINA InvDasc: marina/pw dsl InvAmt: $135.29

[‘chapo: | ao33403 [pate: | 202308-28  [vender:] Exp SERVICES TuC. | Amount § 519,122 44]
InvNo: 763877 InvDese: po/bnk-bldg feasibility report InvAmt : $5.650.00
InvNo: 763430 InvbDesc: landfill eca InvAmt: $3,535.49
InvNo: 764511 InvD@se: mryg wip/lagoon capacity ass't InvAmt: $9,936,095

| chamo: § 0023404 [pata: | 2023-08-23  |Vendor:| FREELANDT CALDWELL RETLLY | amount { 515,101.35]
InvNo: CJH-79718 InvDese: final audit completion InvAmt: §15,181.55

[chae: | 0033405 [pate: | 2023-08-28  fvendoz:| GERRY STRONG | Amount { 5234, 62]
InvHo: AUG 28 2023 InvDesc: bldg insp mileage InvAmt: $234.62

[cnapio: Joo2406 Joate: | 2023-08-28 _ |Vendor:] HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. | amoune { 136.39)
InvNo: AUG 14 2023 DEPOT InvDesc: recycling depot InvAmt: $148.62
InvNo: AUG 16 2023 QUEEN PK InvDese: queens park Invhat: $33.89
InvNo: AUG 21 2023 ARENA InvDese: arena Invamt: $696.60
InvNo: AUG 21 2023 SS WTP InvDasc: s5 wtp Tnvhmt: $54.02
InvNo: AUG 21 2023 TENNIS InvDasc: tennis courts InvAmt: $133.38
InvHo: RUG 21 2023 INFC 5TH InvDase: info booth InvAmt: $39.26
InvNo: ayUG 21 2023 SHWRHSE  InvDase: marina showerhouse InvAmt: $151.80
InvNo: AUG 21 2023 DOCKS InvDase: marina docks InvAmt: $107.01
InvNo: AUG 21 2023 PO/BNK InvDasc: po/bnk Invhmt: 5801.55
InvNo: AuG 21 2023 LIB BLDG InvDesc: 1lib bldg InvAmt: $569.26

[ ehario: | on33207 |pate: |  c003-08-238 [vender:| Jackic whITE | Amount { se6e.44]
InvNo: 2077117100 InvDesc: pec-sccial media sch.app reimb InvAmt: 664 .44

[ chawo: | 0033408 [Date: |  20:3-08-28  {vendor:| i1rEsavING SOCIETY | Amount { 5270.57]
InvNo: 117494 InvDasc: swinmming lesson badges InvAmt: §270.52

| chawo: | co33409 [Date: | 2023-08-28 _ [Vendor:] Man1TOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SOCIAL SERVIC | Amount | 533, 218,33]
InvNo: INODOOZ1335 InvDesc: sept amb/social assist InvAmt: §33,218.33

{"Chavio: | 0033410 [oate: | 2023-08-28 _ [Vendor:| MANITOULIN CENTENNIAL MANOR | Amount { $11,246.90]
InvNo: 2023 38D QTR InvDess: 2023 3rd qrr requistian InvAmt: $11,246.90

| enawe: | 0033411 [pate: | -023-08-28  [Vendor:| ManiTouLin EXPOSITOR j Amount{ 5274, 52]
InvNe: 117734 InvDasc: advertising InvAmt : $137.26
TnvNa: 1177R9 InvDasc: advertisina InvAmt: 5137.26



System: 2023-08-28 10:26:39 AM The Township of Assiginack Pages
User Date: 2023-08-28
CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT User ID:  deb
Payables Management

| chawe: | 0033412 jpate: | 2023-08-28 [vendor:| MANITOWANING FRESHMART [ Amount { &.57]
InvNo: 00199104 InvDesc: admin-tea InvAmt: 54.79
InvNo: 00200810 InvDese: arena-back kitchen supplies Invamt: $24.80
InvNe: 00201497 InvDesc: admin-water/tea InvAmt: 56.98

[ chaNe: | 0033413 [pate: | 023-08-26  [vendor:] ONTARIO PROPERTY SERVICES [amount ] 52, 004.75]
InvNo: 459 InvDesc: tx arrears canc cert (3 prop) InvAmt: $2,004.75

| chato: | 0033414 [oate: |  -023-08-23  |vendor:| pERRY NEWMAN [Amount ] 57178, 60|
InvNo: AUG 28 2023 InvDesc: bylaw miieage InvAme: £7178.60

{ Chao: | 0033415 [pate: | 2023-08-28  [Vendor:| puroLATOR COURIER | amount | a4, 18]
InvNo: 4154132593 InvDasc: freight InvAmt: 544.18

[ chawo: | 0033416 [oate: [ 2023-c8-28  |vendor:| supsury & DISTRICT HEALTH UNLT [amount | 53,817, 55
InvNo: RC020035710 InvDesc: sept health unit levy Invhmt: 53,817.55

[ ChaWo: | 0033417 [Date: | 2023 08-28  |Vender:| keiri HARFIELD [amount | 51,314.60]
InvNe: MAY 26 2023 InvDesc: wildlife damage comp (may 26} InvAmt: $1,314.60

| chaie: | opaza1s {pate: | 2073-08-28  |Vendor:| waGG'S PETROLEUM EQUIBMENT LTD [amount § s2,184.56
InvNo: WB4959 InvDesc: marina-tfuel pump repairs InvAmt : $2,194.56

[ chaio: on33ato [oate: | 2023-08-28  [vendor:| chrrsTiNe McwAuGHTON | Amount § 5204.07]
InvNo: 471 InvDese: pec-chicken katsu wrkshp InvAmt: £204.07

| chado: | 00azazo [pata: |  2023-08-20 _ [Vendor:| murray GrMMIE | Amount { 51,755.80|
InvNo: JUNE 14 2023 InvDesc: wildlife damage comp {(juneld) InvAmt: $1,255.80

[ chaie: | oo33421 [pate: |  2023-08-28  [Vendor:| UNVERSUS SOFTWARE CANADALTD | Amount { 5121.94)
InvNo: THV-1320 InvDesa: bookking ecommerce fees InvAmt: E171.94

[ chaio: § 0033422 [pate: | 2023-08-28  vender:| wiypows unLimiTED [ Amount { 53,011.46]
InvNo: 2023-46 InvDesc: garbage pickup/prks/grass InvAmt: $3,572.46
InvNo: AUG 28 2023 - 42 InvDesc: lib-extra cleaning/garb.summer InvAmt: $339.00

*#%% End of Repoxrt ***

Report Total:

98,767.11



System: 2023-08-30 125:06 AM The Township of Assiginack Page: 1
User Date: 2023-08-30 CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORH User 1Di deb
Payabkles Management

Rangas : From: To: From: Tar

Vendor ID First Last Chequebook ID First Last

Vendor Name First Last Chegue Number 0033423 0033428

Cheque Llate First Last

Sorted By: Cheque Number

Distribution Types Included: All

{ Chapo: | 1033423 [pate: | 2022-08-30  |Vender:| ALLEN'S AUTOMOTIVE GROUP [2mount { sn49, 20|
InvNo: §30813 InvDasc: hydraulic oil InvAmt: §277.39
InvNo: 479826 InvDesc: shop vac InvAmt: $210.14
InvNo: 520350 InvDesc: Lrimmer line InvAmt : $16.94
InvNo: 828796 InvDesc: wire InvAmt: $44 .73

[ chawo: | co33a24 [oate: | 2023-08-30  |vendor:| B.A.M.M, -BRENDAN ADDISCN MOBILE MECHANICI [ amount | 52,102, 31)
InvNo: 3477 InvDesc: repair broken hub #16 InvAmt: $2,102. 31

| chapo: | 0033425 [Date: |  2023-08-30  |vendor:| seacon 1maces | amount § 5310, 73]
InvNe: 5066 InvDesc: G011 §'s & signs InvAmt: 5310.7%

[ chaio: | 0033426 [Data: | 2023-08-30  [Vendor:| pEAMISH CONSTRUCTION INC [Amount | 55, 133. 92
InvNe: 02728 InvDasc: cold patch InvAmt: 5%,133, 92

CheNo: | 0033427 [Date: | 2023-03-30  [Vendor:] BLACX ARMOUR LTD [ Amount § £16,158.10]

InvMo: 16 InvDesc: line painting InvAmt: 516,158.10

| enado: J 0033428 [pate: | 2023-08-30  [Vendor:| MIKE VAREY EXCAVATING § EQUIPMENT | Amount { 53, 911. 65]
InvNo: INV-0594 InvDese: excavator rent {(landfill) InvAmt: $3,0911.65

**%* Fnd of Report

*AR

Report Total:

$28,165.93



System: 2023-09-11 2:30:24 PM The Township of Assiginack Page:
User Date: 2023-09-11 User ID: deb
CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPORT
Payables Management

Ranges: From: To: From: Ta:

Vendor ID First Last Chequebock ID First Last

Vender Name First Last Cheque Number 0033439 0033460

Chegue Date First Last

Sorted By: Cheque Number

Distribution Types Included: All

| chawo: | 0033439 [pate: |  z623-05-11 [vendor :| BEAMISH CONSTRUCTION ING | Amount { 3, 074 .79]
InvHo: 73012 InvDesc: surface treatment InvAmt: £559, 024,79

[Lchamo: | 0033440 [pate: | 2023-09-11  [vendor:] crry oF GREATER supBuRy | Amount § $1,157.84]
InvNo: 001288688 InvDesc: june recyclable material InvAnt: $1,157.84

| chaio: | 0033441 [oate: | 2023-03-11  [vender:| computrEK [Amount 51,004,846
InvNo: 23245 InvDesc: sept remote server mgmt InvAmt: $867.42
InvNo: 28199 InvDaesc: offsite backup data storage Invhmt: $137.44

| ChaMo: | 0033442 [pate: | 2023-00-11  [Vendor:| GERRY STRONG [ Amount | 5234, 62]
InvNo: SEPT 11 2023 InvDesc: pldg insp mileage InvAmt.: §234.62

| chaie: | 0033443 [pate: | -023-00-11  [vendoxr:| GrL EnvironMeENTAL INC 2019 | Amount 59, 277.38|
InvNo: GO0000G29151 InvDesc: august recycl transport Invhmt: 9, 33

ChgNo: | 9033444 [oate: | 2023-09-11  Jvender:| uypro OME NETWORKS INC. | amount { 59, 663.47]
InvNe: AUG 28 2023 LAGOON InvDesa: lagocn InvAmt: 54,096.26
InvNo: AUG 26 2023 LITES InvDese: sireet lites InvAmt: $761.81
InvNo: pUG 23 2023 MTG WTp  InvDesc: mig wip InvAmt.: 54,771.51
InvNo: SEPT 11 2023 CLVR Vy InvDesc: clover valley scheclhouse InvAmt: $33.89

| ehado: | 0033445 [pate: |~ :023-05-11  |vender:| joun peroRGE ] Amount { s1, 789, 92]
InvNo: 088650 InvDesc: info booth-spray insulaticn Invimt: §1,78%, 82

| chao: | 0023446 [oate: | 2023-00-1L__ JVendor:| MANITOWANING MILL & HOME BUILDING CENTRE | Amount] sa46. 05|
InvNo: 0279460 InvDesc: norisle-sump pumps/hoses/ EovRSLE $589.70
InvNo: (275478 InvDesc: norisle-coupling/clamps IovAmt: $8.56
InvNo: 0280561 InvDesc: po-spider ban InvAmt : 533.88
InvNo: 0280563 InvDesc: office-insecticide InvAmt: $41.80
InvNo: (0280564 InvDesc: lib-insecticide InvAmt: $41.80
InwHo: (280640 InvDesc: fd-keys/key rings Touwrhme : $9.47
InwHo: (280789 InvDasc: arena-fridge thermostat Inmvhmt : $13.55
InvNe: (281095 InvDesc: arena-cement/caulking InvAmt: $107.29

[ chawo: | 0033447 [oata: | 2023-00-11  [vendor:| mAnITOWANING FRESHMART | amount 537.54)
InvNo: (00129232 InvDese: pu-cases water InvAmt: $27.96
InvNo: (302023331 InvDesc: admin-tea InvAmt: 59,58

ChaMo: | 0033443 [pate: [ z023-09-11  |vendor:| minisTsr oF FInANCE | Amount { 22, 243,00

InvNo: 317R0A7731403011 InvDesc: julv volicina costs InvAmt: $22,612.0¢



System: 2023-09-11  Z2:30: L The Township of Assiginack Page: :
User Date: 2023-09-11 .
CHEQUE DISTRIBUTION REPOCRT User ID:  deb
Payables Management
{ chaie: | ao33a40 |pate: | 023-09-11 [vendor:| nEw noRTH FUELS INC | amount{ 51, 680.19]
InvNo: Ge26E66 InvDesc: pw-diesel InvAmt: 51, 680,19
ChaNo: | 0033450 [pate: | 2023-00-11  [vendor:| norrHERN 011 | Amount { 546062}
InvNo: 21716-06012073 InvDesc: fd-5611 dispatch sept InvAmt: §460. 62
Lchato: 0033451 [ate: | 2023.09-11  Jvendor:| paur METHNER | Amount | $1,100.00]
InvNo: §2073-08-31 InvDesc: august animal control Invhmt: $1,100.00
[chave: | 03345 [oate: | -oc3-n09-11  [Vendor:| pERRY NEWMAN | rmount { 5671.84]
InvNo: SEPT 11 2073 InvDesc: bylaw enforce-mileage InvAmt: $671.84
[ ehado: | coazasa [oate: | :023-09-11  Jvendor:| RECEIVER GENERAL | Amount { 526, 683.69]
InvNo: AUG 7073 InvDesc: august source deductions InvAmt: $26,683.69
| chawo: | na33454 [oate: | 2023-09-1:  Jvendor:] supErIoR PROPANE INC. | Amount.{ 535 . 60]
InvNo: 45360692 InvDesc: pw-cylinder rental InvAmt: 511.8
InvNo: 45360693 InvDesc: arena-cylinder rental InvAmt: $23.73
| chaio: | co3sass |pate: | zov3-n9-11 [vendor:| assicinack pusLIC ScHooL | amount § 584.50]
Invio: SEPT 8 2023 InvDesc: arena-pop for canteen InvAnt: $84.50
{ chado: | 0033456 [oate: |  023-09-11  [vendor:| 1an‘s kEATING AND SERVICE INC [Amount] 123,75}
InvNo: 1528 InvDasc: arena-wtr heater hookup/ InvAmt: §423.75
[ chadio: | 0033457 Joate: [ 2023-09-:1  [Vendor:| GRANVILLE B VICKERMAN & ASSOCIATES | Amount { 512, 260.09]
InvNe: RH23064 InvDesc: arena-engineering retainer InvAmt: $12,200.00
| chatie: | 0033458 [pate: | -023-05-11  |vendor:] unisync gROuP LIMITED | Amount { 5110.74]
Invlo: 10846626 InvDese: fd-officer cap/badge InvAmt : $110.74
| ehaio: | 0033450 [pate: | -023-09-11  [vendor:| war_suppLiES | amount { 00.4]
InvNo: 252935 InvbDesc: 1ib bldg-L.tisuse/g.bags InvAmt: $87.10
InvNo: 202936 InvDase: sropa-b.tlssue InvAmt: 557.80
InvNo: 202034 InvDase: po-urinal pucks InvAmt: $55.58
| chavo: | 0033460 |pate: | 2023-09-11 [vendor:| winpows unLIMITED | Amount 53,853, 56]
InvNo: 2023-23 InvDesc: po/admin/lib cleaning InvAmt: 53,853.66

*#* End of Report **#*

Report Total:

$652,644.51



Date @ 2023-09-11 Tne Township of Assiginack Page: 1
Time : 12:312:38 PM

‘ayment § Emaunt  Date 3ztch # tmoloyee 1D Emplovee lame Status Payment Method
033423 2023-09-11 Q9%/11C0M3 122 EOBBS, RLTIN OUTSTENDING Cheque
10334305 2023-0%-11 09/11COMB 126 MacDONALD, DEBORAE QUTSTANDING Cregue
1033431 2023-09-11 09/11COMB 133 BOND, FREDA QUTSTANDING Cheque
3033432 2023-09-11 09/11C0M3 222 ELLIOTT, OW=YNE OUTSTANDING Chegue
1333433 2023-03-11  09/11COMB 38 MILLETTE, SHZ QUTSTENDING Chegue

103343 2023-09-11 09/11COMB 383 MENDE, JONRTERN UTSTENDING Cheque
3033435 2023-05-11 O03/1iCQM3 374 £asz, Lol UTSTRHDING Cregue
3033436 2023-09-11 0%/11C0MB 353 COOPER, MAX QUTSTANDING Cheque

;
137 2623-09-11 09/11COMB 397 CRITMORE, tlizzpeth OUTSTANDING Chegue
38 2023-09=11 09/11COMB 398 farz, Yavier QUTSTANDING Cheque

(%)
o

7 2023-09-11  G%/11COMB COOPIR, ROWRLD OUTSTANDING Direct Depcsit
12 2023-09-11 03/11COME

i3 2023-03-11 03/1iCOuE [}
2023-09-11 (09/11C0MB
2023-09-11 03/11C0H3
2023-0%-11 (9/11COMB

3

g STRONG, GERRY QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit

] MEGUIRE, RzlEZ¥ OUTSTRNDING Direct Deposit

& RIID, B3ZNLA QUTSTANDING Direct Deposit
8%, ROBZRY OUTSTRNDING Direst Depesit

JENICE OUTSTANDING Direct Deposit

CL I

[
[ 8]
b

L%
()
(%

Ead L L) tw
€143 LnoLn U
1

-1
o

3397 2023-0%-11 03/11COMs 234 I3 OUTSTANDING Dirgct Deposit
3574 2023-0%-11 0%/11COMB 3233 WHITE, JRCQUELINC QUTSTANDING direct Deposit
3373 2023-03%-11 (9/11C0MB 382 3iGLEL, =oDY QUTSTANDING Direct Degosit
3380 2023-03-11 09/11C0OM3 3ed 3¢ND, RYLI QUISTANDING Direct Deposit
3281 2023-09-11 Q5/1iCOMB 3635 OUTSTAENDING Direct Degosit
3582 2023-0%-11 05/11C0M3 370 QUTSTENDING Direct Deposit
3583 2023-0%-11 09/11COME 351 COOFER, JTIREMY Direct Deposit
3zes 2023-09-11 (9/11C0M3 ELT] NIWMEM, PEZRRY Dirsct Deposit
3353 2023-09-11 03/11C0M2 330 0 Direct Deposit
itEg 2323-0%-11 03/11C0M2 KES 0 Direct Deposit
3hE7 25723-03-11 Ca/ilicoMz EEL TERGUSCN, HEIDI QUTSTZNDING Direct Deposit
Teral $79,451€.30



2023-06-2% The Page: I
9:57:38 aM
Payment % Amcunt  Date gatch ¢

0033330 2023-08-28  05/25COMB z A03538, ALTONM Creque

4033332 2023-08-28  (5/28C0M3 £ HacDONALD, DIZ0RRE Qi Chegue

0033332 2023=08-28  QR/2ZEC0M3 3 Z0WD, IRZDA oUT Cregue

0033383 2023-08=-28 (8/28COM3 242 OUTSTANDING Cheque

0633394 2023=08-28 03/28C0M3 378 OUTSTANDING Cheque

003339 25 08/28C0M3 383 QUTSTANDING Chegue
33 25 /28

iXy <o

2023-08-

[w]
o
3
w
L)

OUTSTANDING Chegue

0533357 2023-05-25 [5/23C0MB 387 QUTSTANDING Cheque
0033393 2023-08-28 0B/Z8COMB 335 OUTSTANDING Chegue
0033353 2023-08-28 (8/z5C0M3 3935 COOPER, M2 OUTSTANDING Chegue
0033400 2023-08-23 QB/23C0M3 397 CASZMORZ, Elizabetn OUTSTANDING Chegua
$03340 2023-08-28  03/23C0M3 398 Mara, CUTSTENDING Chegue
3333 2023-08-28 (%/25C0M2 ii€ OQUTSTANDING Direzt Deposi:
3334 2023-08=-23  08/z5C0M3 16E CUTSTAKDING Direct Deposiz
3533 2023-08=-28 (5/25C0N8 ig3 UTSTENDING Direct Deposit
333 2023=08-28 08/25C0M3 219 Direct Deposi-
3857 2023-08-25 0%/26C0M 221 Direct Deposit
3558 2023-0G8-28  0&/23C0M3 273 Direct Degosiz
3535 2023-08-25 08/29C0u3 i24 Direct
3G 2023-78-28  05/2800M5 323
3561 2023-02=28 (1% /280043 362 i
EEEY 2023-08-28  Q8/ZR00ME Jed
L] 2023-03-28 08/25C0M3 363 3
s 2023-08-3% (8/I5C0OM3 kit Di
3365 2023-0%-25  0E/2500M3 351 a3
3365 2023-05-23  08/Z8COMS 356 i
A £023-03-28  0z/2970M3 35 Dir
33 2023-095-28  0%/23COoMB 330 0
3382 Z023-G3-28  08/2300M3 132 READNIZYICE, ¢ Bl
3210 2023-08-22  (9/28c0M e TIRGUSON, EZIDI Di
Tezal §3% 235 47



Zratus

miemmme e
e

(A}
()

nad
qai

Fea

dar

34991 35

i
uk
sl

A e




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN Page{1of 9

MUNICIPALITY OF ASSIGINACK

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
Operation of the Toboggan Hill Canteen

Sealed submissions must be clearly marked
“Operation of Toboggan Hill Canteen RFP”
and must be received by:
October 13", 2023, at 12:00 (NOON) to the undersigned:

TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
C/O HEIDI FERGUSON, CLERK
BOX 238, 156 ARTHUR STREET
MANITOWANING, ON., POP 1NO

*Please note* that FAXED or EMAILED Proposals will not be accepted




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN Page|20f 9

PURPOSE/SCOPE OF THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

The Township of Assiginack is currently accepting proposals from interested businesses,
individuals, and organizations to operate a commercial food/convenience and/or retail
type business from the Toboggan Hill Canteen, located at 15589 Highway 6, as part of a
Pilot Program the Township is implementing.

The intent of this RFP is to have these types of services available for those community
members who utilize Toboggan Hill during the winter months.

PLEASE NOTE: The successful proponent is not permitted to offer alcohol or cannabis
products for sale or consumption on municipal property.

The anticipated start date for the provision of this service is Winter 2023-2024 and the
successful proponent will function as a tenant of the building. As this is a Pilot Program
the municipality is implementing, there will be no charge for the use of the building and
the successful proponent will be a tenant for an initial six-month period (November 2023-
April 2024), with the possibility of a six-month extension, upon review and approval by
Council.

REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROPONENT

This Call for Proposals is strictly for the operation of a commercial food/convenience
and/or retail business at the Toboggan Hill Canteen. The successful proponent is not
responsible for the operation of and/or maintenance of Toboggan Hill.

The Township requires that the successful proponent must operate the facility, at a
minimum during the weekends, primarily Friday night and Saturday until 9:00pm.
Proponents that demonstrate their ability to meet this criterion will receive a higher score.

As part of the lease agreement with the Township, the successful proponent will be
required to be responsible for the following:
» Continue to provide free Wi-fi to customers and the public.
* Regular cleaning of the interior of the building and its washrooms to ensure
sanitary conditions for the public.
e Regular cleaning of the exterior of the building surface, windows, and decked area.
» Regular removal of the snow on the pathway to the building and on the decked
area. The Proponent/Tenant agrees to ensure that the pathway, decked area, and
building are free from ice and snow hazards.
* Removal and disposal of all garbage generated from the use of the facility.
e Ensuring that all applicable municipal, provincial, and federal legislation is followed
and adhered to.




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN Page 3af 9

¢ Advising and reporting all incidents, injuries, accidents that occur on municipat
property to the municipality immediately and reporting all building deficiencies in a
timely manner.

e Provision of a first aid kit on site. Proponents who have demonstrated certification
in First Aid and CPR will receive a higher score.

MUNICIPALITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES
As the landlord, the Township of Assiginack is responsible for the following:
e Development of the lease agreement with the Proponent/Tenant.
e Maintenance and operation of Toboggan Hill.
e Maintenance and snow removal of the parking lot.
e Maintenance and cutting of the grass on the property.
e Any capital maintenance to the building, other than regular cleaning maintenance
of the building.
» Provision and payment of utilities for the building (hydro, water/sewer, internet)
during the term of the lease agreement.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE SPACE

The Toboggan Hill Canteen is the former Assiginack Information Center and is located at
15589 Highway 6 in Manitowaning. This is a municipal building owned by the Township of
Assiginack.

This newly renovated space has lots of business potential, as it is ideally located on
Highway 6 and is within close proximity to Toboggan Hill and the Assiginack Arena and
Fairgrounds.

This municipal facility contains the following amenities:
- Ample room for a small commercial/retail space.

- Two washrooms.

- Municipal water and services.

- Internet Services and Free Public Wi-fi.

- Parking.

- Large, attached outdoor deck space with picnic tables.
- Fridge and stove will be included.

QUESTIONS & CLARIFICATION

It is the responsibility of the proponent to clarify all questions and details within this RFP
prior to the submission of their proposal. The municipality will accept questions regarding
the facility and all inquiries must be made in writing or by email by October 9, 2023 at

12:00 p.m. (Noon) to:




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN Page |4 of 9

Heidi Ferguson, Clerk
156 Arthur Street, Box 238
Manitowaning, ON., POP 1NO
hferguson@assiginack.ca

* Please be advised that all questions and answers will be shared and distributed
to all prospective known proponents, to ensure a fair and transparent process.

SITE VISIT

The Township of Assiginack will provide all interested candidates with an opportunity to
view the space prior to the deadline for proposals. This will take place on Wednesday,
October 4th, 2023 between 10:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. Interested candidates are
recommended to contact the Clerk to schedule their appointment time.

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS
Ali proponents must complete the attached submission form, found on Pages 8 & 9, and
attach a detailed business plan that includes the following information:

¢ Describe how the space will be utilized.

o What types of products/amenities will be available to purchase.

» Specify the days, hours, and times of operation.

» A brief background/information synopsis about you, your business or organization,

including your qualifications, experience, and list of relevant certifications.
* Attest to the requirements of the RFP on the attached submission form.

SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS
All proposals must be clearly marked “Operation of the Toboggan Hill Canteen” and

must be submitted no later than October 13, 2023, at 12:00 (NOON} in writing to:

TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
C/O HEIDI FERGUSON, CLERK
BOX 238, 156 ARTHUR STREET
MANITOWANING, ON., POP 1NO

*Please note that Emailed or Faxed Proposals will not be accepted.
The onus unequivocally remains with the Proponent to ensure that the Township of
Assiginack receives your submission prior to the deadline and in accordance with the
submission process. Proposals received after the deadline will not be considered.

In submitting a proposal, the Proponent acknowledges that they have read, completely
understand, and accept the terms and conditions of the RFP in full. The Township of
Assiginack is not responsible for any misunderstanding in the RFP.




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN Page |5of 9

EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS

Staff will evaluate all proposals submitted utilizing defined assessment criteria and
provide these recommendations to Council. Council will then review the
recommendations and/or proposals and award the RFP.

All proponents will be notified of the decision by Council in writing, by either regular mail
or e-mail.

AWARDING OF RFP
Upon award of the RFP, the successful proponent will be required to provide the
Township with the following information:

o Sign a Lease Agreement with the Township of Assiginack.

» Proof of Insurance: The Applicant agrees to provide proof of a minimum of $2
million in liability insurance, with the Township of Assiginack being named as an
additional insured on the policy and Certificate of Insurance.

* Proof of WSIB Clearance Certificate (if required).

« Proof of any certifications as listed within the business case document submission.

* The Applicant agrees that they will consult with Public Health Sudbury & Districts
regarding the requirements for serving food to the public and if required, they will
provide proof of a recent copy of the Inspection Report completed by the Public
Health Sudbury & Districts to the Township of Assiginack.

RESERVED RIGHTS OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
The Township of Assiginack reserves the right to:

a) Make public the names of any or all Proponents.

b) Disqualify any Proponent or the Proposal of any Proponent who has
engaged in conduct prohibited by this RFP.

c) Make any changes to this RFP provided that those changes are issued by
way of addenda.

d) Cancel this RFP process at any stage and issue a new RFP for the same or
similar deliverables.

e) Accept or reject any or all proposals in whole or in part.

f) Discuss with any Proponent different or additional terms to those
contemplated in this RFP or in any proposal.

These reserved rights are in addition to any other expressed rights or any other rights
which may be implied in the circumstances.

NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR COSTS, CONDITION OR SERVICES
The Township of Assiginack shall not pay any costs associated with the preparation,
submission, or presentation of the proposal. The Township of Assiginack shall not be

o




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN Page |60f 8

liable for any expenses, costs or losses suffered by the Proponent or any third party
resulting from the Township of Assiginack exercising any of its expressed or implied
rights under this RFP.

CONFIDENTIALITY AND OWNERSHIP

Any information provided to the Proponent by the Township of Assiginack before, during
or after the project is completed shall be treated as confidential and shall not be used or
communicated by the Proponent or any third party in any way unless otherwise identified
or permitted by the Township of Assiginack. The information, documentation, plans, etc.
that are produced by the successful Proponent in response to this Call for Proposals shall
become the exclusive property of the Township of Assiginack. However, intellectual
property, such as specific tools, templates, processes, etc. that the Proponent provides
as part of the deliverables remains the property of the Proponent.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

Any personal information required in the Proposal is received under the authority of the
Township of Assiginack. This information shall be an integral component of the
submission. All written proposals received by the Township become public record. Once
a Proposal is accepted by the Township of Assiginack and the contract has been
awarded, all information contained in the Proposals may be available to the public,
including personal information.

Questions about the collection of personal information and the Municipal Freedom of
Information and Protection of Privacy Act, 1989, R.S.0. 1990, as amended may be
directed to Heidi Ferguson the Municipal Clerk.




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN Page|7of 9

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
SUBMISSION FORM

Operation of the Toboggan Hill Canteen

Please ensure that the subsequent page and all required attachments are
fully complete and received by the required deadline.




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN Page|8of 9

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
Operation of the Toboggan Hill Canteen

The Proponent(s):
(Name(s) of Individual,
Business or Organization)

Telephone Number:

Email Address:

Mailing Address:

1. |/ we, the undersigned, acknowledge that | / we understand completely the
contents of the RFP: Operation of the Toboggan Hill Canteen and | / we
acknowledge that it is my responsibility to seek clarification and ask questions prior
to the deadline as described within the RFP document.

2. |/ we confirm that | / we have attached the required documentation along with the
completion of the tender submission form.

3. 1/ we acknowledge that after acceptance of my proposal by Council, | / we will
enter into a lease agreement with the Township of Assiginack for a period of six
months, with the possibility of an additional six-month extension.

4. |/ we confirm that it is my/our sole responsibility to ensure that | / we adhere to
and meet all municipal, provincial, and federal legislation requirements, including
but not limited to: Public Health Regulations, Fire Regulations, Building Code,
Licensing Regulations, etc.

5. |/ we, hereby indemnify the Township of Assiginack of any actions, damage, loss,
claim or liability as a direct result of operating the Toboggan Hill Canteen, the use
of the approved municipal location or anything undertaken or neglected to be
undertaken in connections with operating the Toboggan Hill Canteen.




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR TOBOGGAN HILL CANTEEN  Page|90f @

6. |/ we confirm that | / we are authorized to submit this proposal.

By signing this form, the applicant acknowledges that they have read the Operation of the
Toboggan Hill Canteen RFP and agrees to abide by all the terms and conditions set forth
within this Request for Proposal.

Authorized Signature Date
(on behalf of Proponent)




Ontario Police Municipal Policing Bureau
Provincial provinciale Bureau des services policiers des municipalités
Police de I'Ontario

777 Memorial Ave. 777, avenue Memorial
Crillia ON L3V 7v3 Qrillia ON L3v 7v3

Tel: 705 329-6140 Tél. 705 329-6140
Fax: 705 330-4191 Teéléc.: 705 330-4191

File Reference: £12-10

September 6, 2023

To All OPP-policed Municipalities

Re: Distribution of Police Record Check Revenue to Municipalities

In June 2022, the Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) centralized the police record check
process by transferring the responsibility for the process from detachment staff to an
Online Police Record Check Unit (OPRCU). The centralization of the police record
check process eliminates the need for detachment staff to perform duties associated
with the police record checks, with the exception of fingerprinting. This OPRCU has
been staffed by reinvesting numerous administrative detachment positions from
across the province. The change in staffing at OPP detachment locations will be
captured in the overall municipal policing cost-recovery in accordance with the terms
set out in Police Services Act, Ontario Regulation 267/14.

Historically, the revenue generated from detachment staff completing record checks
for municipal residents has been credited back to the applicable municipalities. With
the reassignment of the police record check workload to the OPRCU, there will be a
gradual reduction of the revenue provided to municipalities, except for the revenue for
fingerprinting. Fingerprinting remains a detachment responsibility and, therefore, the
revenue for conducting fingerprint services at the detachments will continue to be
allocated to municipalities. The gradual reduction of police record check revenue (not
related to fingerprinting) will be accompanied by the introduction of some cost savings
for municipalities resulting from the impact of reinvesting some detachment positions
into the OPRCU. This will provide municipalities with an extended period of time to
make appropriate adjustments to any impacted financial plans.

OPP-policed municipalities will continue to receive police record check revenue
in 2023 and 2024. Commencing in 2025, the revenue will be reduced by 25% per
year. In 2028, OPP-policed municipalities will cease to receive police record check
revenue associated with police record checks processed by the OPRCU.
Municipalities will continue to receive revenue for fingerprinting services provided at
the detachment.

Page 1 of 2



The OPP will continue to deliver adequate and effective policing services while
focusing on meeting the municipalities’ unique policing needs.

Should you have any questions, please email the OPP Municipal Poiicing Bureau Financial
Services Unit at OPP.Financial.Services.Unit@opp.ca.

Respectfully,

Y 27 <

Phil Whitton Superintendent
Commander,
Municipal Palicing Bureau

cc OPP Deputy Commissioner Chris Harkins
OPP Provincial Commander Mary Silverthorn
Allnspector Kirsten Buligan, Community Safety Services
OPP Detachment Commanders

Page 2 of 2



RECEIVED
SEP 15 2003

~ lESL 8z¢ g 56 l8L1 S.02 TV10L

£ 0 € } a3id193dSNN

Z 14 0 } S € dM.L NOSNIFOY

S 0 0 } L £ dMl STIIN

1] 0 0 L 2 Cl Avg 3HOS

0. g8 0 0¢ 8¢ Ll dM1l NOQHOD

3 0 0 0 l dM1 NOSMYQa

1% Z 0 G L JA dMl 33d48Nn4g

9/l el 0 274 8 8ElL £6¢ dMl SONITIIE

0 0 c [ Z ANVYISI iddvd

ic Z 0 b el [44 dML HYIRWNMH3 L

61 0 0 L L Ll dM1 AT3I4dANVS

6 6Ll € 16S €. vicl SANY1SI

JHL ANV NITTNOLINYIN

3 0 0 Z Z £ ANIFHHND ITLLN

16 GE 4 St 78 LeL dML NOAYVYNNYOD

el 0 0 G S gl dMl T139dWVD

Gl [A4 0 Zcl 1] 95¢ dM1 MOVNIDISSY

8 g 2 2D1JON 92Ul z 3 pd (]
Ay oY syl

£20¢ Isnbny - €20¢ [Udy

SuonoelJU[ 10y OWJEl] AEMUBIH pUE[S| UlNOJUEpy




Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

Assiginack
April - 2023
Billing Categories 2023 222
{Billing categories befow do nat match traditional April| Yearte  Time Year To Date April Yearte  Time Year To Date
crime groupings) P Date | Standard Weighted Hours P Date  Standard | Weighted Hours
Violent Criminal Assault-Level 1 0 0 0.0 1 3 15.8 47.4
Coge Criminal Harassment 0 1 15.8 15.8 0 0 0.0
Utter Threats to Person 0 0 0.0 0 1 15.8 15.8
Total 0 1 15.8 15.8 1 4 15.8 63.2
Property Crime Break & Enter i 1 6.4 6.4 0 0 0.0
oations Theft Over -master code 1 1 6.4 6.4 0 0 0.0
Theft of Motor Vehicle 0 1 6.4 6.4 0 0 0.0
Theft under - Other Theft 1 1 6.4 6.4 0 1 6.4 6.4
Fraud - False Pretence < =
$5.000 0 0 0.0 0 1 64 6.4
Fraud -Money/property/ ;
security <= $5,000 1 1 6.4 6.4 0 0 0.0
Total 4 5 6.4 32.0 0 2 6.4 12.8
Other Criminal Code | Bail Vigiations - Fail To
Violations (Excluding | Comply L & L ! 1 75 S
traffic} PP
Bail Viclations -
Recognizance Y 0 & L 1 L e
Total 0 0 0.0 2 2 7.5 15.0
Statutes & Acts Landlord/Tenant 0 1 34 34 1 2 34 6.8
Mental Health Act 0 1 3.4 34 2 4 34 13.6
Mental Health Act - No
contact with Police 4] 2 3.4 6.8 0 1 34 3.4
Mental Health Act - Threat .
of Suicide 0 34 34 0 1 34 34
Mental Health Act -
Voluntary Transport g Y 0.0 g L S5 S5
Trespass To Property Act 0 2 3.4 6.8 0 0 0.0
Total [ 7 3.4 23.8 3 9 3.4 30.6
Operational Animal - Left in Vehicle 1 1 38 38 0 0 0.0
Animal injured 0 1 38 3.8 0 0 0.0
Animal - Dog Owners
Liability Act 0 1 3.8 38 0 0 00
Domestic Disturbance 1 2 38 7.6 0 1 3.8 38
Suspicious Person 0 2 38 7.6 0 1 38 38
Phone -Master code 0 0 0.0 0 1 3.8 38
Phone -Nuisance - No
Charges Laid 0 3 a8 11.4 0 1 38 38
Eh_one -Other - No Charges 0 0 0.0 0 1 a8 38
aid
Fire - Other 0 0 0.0 0 1 3.8 3.8
Noise Complaint -
Residence 0 1] 0.0 0 1 38 38
Found Property -Master
* 1 0 0 0.0 1 1 38 3.8
Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2023/09/09 Roque, Linda 13-Sep-23 3:30:08 PM

Page 1 of ?



Billing Categories

Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

{Bilting categories below do not match traditional

crire groupings)

Operational

Qperational2

Traffic

Lost Property -Master code
Lost-Others

Trouble with Youth
Neighbour Dispute
Assist Public

Family Dispute

Total

False Alarm -Cthers
Keep the Peace

911 call/ 911 hang up
911 call - Dropped Cell
Total

MVC - Prop. Dam. Non
Reportable

MVC - Prop. Dam.
Reportable (MOTOR
VEHICLE COLLISION}

Total

Note to Detachment Commanders:

N = O 0 = & = O O

—_

Assiginack
April - 2023
2023
Year to Time Year To Date

Date | Standard Weighted Hours
1 3.8 38
1 38 38
1 3.8 3.8
38 3.8
38 114
4 38 152
21 3.8 79.8
1 1.4 1.4
1 14 1.4
1 1.4 1.4
3 1.4 4.2
6 14 8.4
2 37 7.4
1 3.7 37
3 3.7 11.1
43 170.9

WO 20NN O o 0 O =

o

1

Year to
Date

- N O & = N W o o 2

~y

41

2022

Time
Standard

38
38
38
3.8
1.4

1.4
1.4
1.4

3.7

3.7

Year Tc Date
Weighted Hours

0.0
0.0
0.0
1.4
7.6
3.8
53.2
56
0.0
2.8
1.4
9.8

0.0

11.1

1.1
195.7

» The content of each report is to be shared by the Detachment Commander gnly with the municipality for which it was generated.
The municipality may treat this as a public document and distribute it as they wish.
& All data is sourced from the Niche RMS application. Included are ‘reported’ occurrences (actuals and unfounded occurrences) for ‘billable’
oceurrences ONLY. Data is refreshed on a weekly basis.
» The Traffic category includes motor vehicle collision {MVC) occurrences entered into Niche (UCR code 8521), MVCs are NOT sourced
from the eCRS application for this report.
o Only the primary violation is counted within an occurrence.
¢ Time standards displayed are for the 2023 billing period.

Note to Municipalities:

o Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police continues to

investigate and solve crime.
& This report is NOT to be used for crime trend analysis as not all occurrences are included.
o Data groupings within this report do not match traditional crime groupings seen in other public reports such as the OPP Police Services

Board reports or Statistics Canada reporting.

Report Content Last Updated:

2023/09/09

Report generated by:

Roque, Linda

Report generated on:
13-Sep-23 3:30:08 PM

Page 2 of 7



Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

Assiginack
May - 2023
Billing Categories 2023 2022
{Billing categories below do not match traditional May Yearto — Time Year To Date May Yearto  Time Year To Date
crime groupings) 8| Date | Standard Weighted Hours Y  Date  Standard Weighted Hours
Violent Criminal Assault-Level 1 2 2 15.8 31.6 0 3 158 474
e Criminal Harassment ) 1 15.8 158 0 0 0.0
Utter Threats to Person 0 0 0.0 0 1 15.8 15.8
Total 2 3 15.8 47.4 0 4 15.8 63.2
Property Crime Break & Enter 0 1 6.4 64 0 ¢] 0.0
Violations Theft Over -master code o 1 6.4 6.4 0 0 0.0
Theft of Motor Vehicle 1 2 6.4 12.8 0 0 0.0
Theft under - Other Theft 0 1 6.4 6.4 0 1 6.4 6.4
Fraud - False Pretence < =
$5.000 0 0 0.0 0 1 6.4 6.4
Fraud -Money/property/
security > $5,000 2 2 6.4 12.8 0 0 0.0
Fraud -Money/property/
security <= $5,000 0 1 6.4 6.4 0 0 0.0
Mischief - master code 1 1 6.4 6.4 1 1 6.4 6.4
Total 4 g 6.4 57.6 1 3 6.4 19.2
Other Criminal Offensive Weapons-Other
Code Violations Weapons Offences 1 1 a2 i . L o
(Excluding traffic) P .
Bail Viclations - Fail To 0 0 0.0 1 2 75 15.0
Comply
Bail Viclations -
Recognizance 0 0 0.0 0 1 7.5 7.5
Total 1 1 7.5 7.5 1 3 7.5 225
Statutes & Acts Landlord/Tenant Q 1 3.4 34 1 3 34 10.2
Mental Health Act 0 1 34 34 3 7 34 23.8
Mental Health Act - No
contact with Police g 2 s 6.8 L s G )
Me.n!al Health Act - Threat of 0 1 3.4 14 0 1 3.4 34
Suicide
Mental Health Act - Voluntary
Transport 0 o 0.0 0 1 34 34
Trespass To Property Act 1 3 34 10.2 0 0 0.0
Total 1 8 3.4 27.2 5 14 4 47.6
Operational Animal - Left in Vehicle ] 1 38 38 0 0 0.0
Anirmal Stray 2 2 38 7.6 0 0.0
Animal Injured 0 1 38 38 0 0.0
Animal - Dog Owners
Liability Act 0 1 38 38 0 0 0.0
Domestic Disturbance 0 2 KX:] 7.6 3 4 38 15.2
Suspicious Person 1 3 38 11.4 2 3 38 11.4
Phone -Master code 0 0 0.0 0 1 38 38
Phone -Nuisance - No
Charges Laid 0 3 38 11.4 0 1 38 38
Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2023/09/09 Roque, Linda 13-Sep-23 3:36:40 PM

Page 10f3



Calls For Service {(CFS) Billing Summary Report

Assiginack
May - 2023
Billing Categories A =0
(Billing categories below do not match traditional Yearto | Time Year To Date Yearto | Time Year To Date
crime groupings) ] Date | Standard | Weighted Hours May Date | Standard Weighted Hours
Operational E;igne -Other - No Charges 0 0 0.0 0 3 38 48
Fire - Other 0 0 0.0 0 1 3.8 38
Noise Complaint - Residence ¢ 0 0.0 0 1 38 3.8
Found Property -Master code 1] 0 0.0 1 2 38 7.6
Lost Property -Master code 0 1 38 3.8 0 0 0.0
Lost-Cthers 1] 1 3.8 3.8 0 0 0.0
Trouble with Youth 0 1 38 3.8 0 o 0.0
Neighbour Dispute 3 4 38 15.2 2 5 38 19.0
Assist Public 1 4 33 15.2 3 5 3.8 19.0
Family Dispute 1 5 38 19.0 0 1 38 3.8
Total 8 29 3.8 110.2 1 25 3.8 95.0
Operational2 False Alarm -Others 0 1 14 1.4 3 1.4 9.8
Keep the Peace 0 1 1.4 14 0 0.0
911 call / 911 hang up 0 1 1.4 1.4 a 14 28
911 call - Dropped Cell 0 3 1.4 4.2 0 1.4 1.4
Total 0 6 1.4 84 3 10 1.4 140
Traffic g;/:)r-t:br:;p. Dam. Non 0 2 37 74 o 0 0.0
MVC - Prop. Dam,
Reportable (MOTOR 1 2 37 74 3 6 37 222
VEHICLE COLLISION)
MVC - Prop. Dam. Failed to
Remain (MOTOR VEHICLE 1 1 37 37 1 1 3T 3.7
COLLISION)
Total 2 5 37 18.5 4 7 3.7 259
it B 15 61 276.8 25 66 287.4

Note to Detachment Commanders:

¢ The content of each report is to be shared by the Detachment Commander only with the municipality for which it was generated.
The municipality may treat this as a public document and distribute it as they wish.

o All data is sourced from the Niche RMS application. Included are ‘reported’ occurrences {actuals and unfounded occurrences) for 'billable'
occurrences ONLY. Data is refreshed on a weekly basis.

¢ The Traffic category includes moter vehicle collision (MVC) occurrences entered into Niche (UCR code 8521). MVCs are NOT sourced
from the eCRS application for this report.

e Only the primary violation is counted within an occurrence.

¢ Time standards displayed are for the 2023 billing period.

Note to Municipalities:

» Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontaric Provincial Police continues to
investigate and solve crime.
& This report is NOT to be used for crime trend analysis as not all occurrences are included.
e Data groupings within this report do not match traditional crime groupings seen in other public reports such as the OPP Police Services
Board reports or Statistics Canada reporting.
Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:

2023/08/09 Roque, Linda 13-52p-23 3:36:40 PM
Page 2 of 3



Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

Assiginack
May - 2023
Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2023/09/09 Roque, Linda 13-Sep-23 3:36:40 PM

Page 30of 3



Billing Categories

Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

(Billing categories below do not match traditional

crime groupings)

Violent Criminal
Code

Property Crime
Violations

Other Criminal
Code Violations
(Excluding traffic)

Statutes & Acts

QOperational

Assault-Level 1

Criminal Harassment
Utter Threats to Person
Total

Break & Enter

Theft Over -master code
Theft Over - Other Theft
Theft of Motor Vehicle
Theft under - Other Theft

Fraud - False Pretence < =
$5,000

Fraud -Money/property/
security > $5,000

Fraud -Money/property/
security <= $5,000

Mischief - master code
Total

Offensive Weapons-Other
Weapons Offences

Bail Violations - Fail To
Comply

Bail Violations -
Recognizance

Animals - Cruelty
“*INACTIVE**

Total
Landlord/Tenant
Mental Health Act

Mental Health Act - No
contact with Police

Mental Health Act - Threat
of Suicide

Mental Health Act -
Voluntary Transport

Trespass To Property Act
Total

Animal - Left in Vehicle
Animal Stray

Animal Injured

Animal - Dog Owners
Liability Act

Domestic Disturbance
Suspicious Person
Phone -Master code

Report Content Last Updated:

2023/09/09

—
=
=
- O 0 O O N o N o o

o

o O S N o=

Assiginack
June - 2023
2023
Year to Time Year To Date
Date | Standard Weighted Hours
2 15.8 316
3 15.8 47.4
0 0.0
5 158 79.0
1 6.4 6.4
1 6.4 64
0 0.0
2 6.4 128
2 6.4 12.8
0 0.0
2 6.4 12.8
1 6.4 64
1 64 6.4
10 6.4 64.0
1 7.5 7.5
0 0.0
o 0.0
0 0.0
1 75 7.5
1 34 34
2 34 6.8
2 3.4 6.8
1 34 34
0 0.0
4 34 136
10 34 34.0
38 3.8
2 38 7.6
1 3.8 38
1 38 38
3.8 76
38 19.0
0.0
Report generated by:
Roque, Linda

[
5
O 0O 2 24 O =2 = o @

o

Yearto
Date

o a O Ot = = W

17

2022

Time
Standard

15.8
156.8
158
15.8

6.4
6.4

6.4

6.4

6.4

6.4
6.4

7.5

7.5

7.5

7.5
34
3.4

34

3.4

34

34

3.8
38
38

Year To Date
Weighted Hours

47.4
15.8
158
79.0
0.0
64
6.4
0.0
6.4

6.4

6.4

0.0

6.4
38.4

0.0

15.0

75

7.5

30.0
13.6
306

6.8

3.4

3.4

0.0
57.8
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0

i9.0
15.2
3.8

Report generated on:
13-Sep-23 3:33:44 PM

Page 10f 3



Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

Assiginack
June - 2023
Billing Categories 2023 2022
(Billing categories below do not match traditional June Yearto  Time Year To Dale June Yearto  Time Year To Date
crime groupings} © | Date | Standard Weighted Hours Date Standard  Weighted Hours
Operational Phone -Nuisance - No
Charges Laid 0 3 38 11.4 0 1 3.8 3.8
Ph_one -Other - No Charges a 0 0.0 0 1 2g 38
Laid
Fire - Other 0 0 0.0 0 1 38 38
Noise Complaint -
Residence 0 0 0.0 0 1 38 38
Found Property -Master 8 0 0.0 0 2 38 76
code
Lost Property -Master code 1 2 38 76 0 0 0.0
Lost-Personal Accessories 2 2 38 7.6 0 0 0.0
Lost-Others 0 1 38 3.8 0 0 0.0
Sudden Death -master code 2 2 38 76 0 0 0.0
Trouble with Youth 0 1 38 38 2 2 38 7.6
Neighbour Dispute 3 7 38 266 3 8 38 304
Assist Public 1 5 38 0 1 6 38 228
Family Dispute 0 5 3.8 19.0 0 1 38 3.8
Total 11 40 3.8 152.0 8 33 38 125.4
Cperational2 False Alarm -Others 0 1 1.4 14 1 8 1.4 11.2
Keep the Peace 1 2 1.4 28 1 1 1.4 1.4
911 call / 911 hang up 0 1 14 1.4 0 2 1.4 2.8
911 call - Dropped Cell 2 5 1.4 7.0 0 ] 1.4 1.4
Total 3 9 1.4 12.6 2 12 14 16.8
Traffic MVC - Personal Injury
{(MOTOR VEHICLE 0 0 0.0 1 1 37 37
COLLISION]
MVC - Prop. Dam. Non 4
Reportable 1 3 a7 1.1 Q 0 0.0
MVC - Prop. Dam.
Reportable (MOTOR 3 5 a7 18.5 4 10 37 37.0
VEHICLE COLLISION})
MVC - Prop. Dam. Failed to
Remain (MOTOR VEHICLE 0 1 37 37 0 1 37 37
COLLISION)
Total 4 9 3.7 33.3 5 12 3.7 44.4
" 23 84 3824 23 89 391.8

« The content of each report is to be shared by the Detachment Commander gnly with the municipality for which it was generated.
The municipality may treat this as a public document and distribute it as they wish.
o All data is sourced from the Niche RMS application. Included are 'reported’ occurrences (actuals and unfounded occurrences) for ‘billable’
occurrences ONLY. Data is refreshed on a weekly basis.
» The Traffic category includes metor vehicle collision {MVC) occurrences entered into Niche (UCR code 8521). MVCs are NOT sourced
from the eCRS application for this report.
« Only the primary violation is counted within an occurrence.

Report Content Last Updated:

2023/09/09

Report generated by:

Roque, Linda

Report generated on:
13-Sep-23 3:33:44 PM

Page 2 of 3



Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

Assiginack
June - 2023

« Time standards displayed are for the 2023 billing period.
N Municipaliti

o Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police continues to
investigate and solve ciime.

e This report is NOT to be used for crime trend analysis as not all occurrences are included.

» Data groupings within this report do not match traditional crime groupings seen in other public reports such as the OPP Police Services
Board reports or Statistics Canada reporting.

Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2023/09/09 Roque, Linda 13-Sep-23 3:33:44 PM
Page 3 of 3



Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

Assiginack
July - 2023
Billing Categories 2023 2022
{Biling categories befow do not match traditionat Juy Yearto  Time Year To Date Juty| Yearto  Time Year To Date
crime groupings) Y  Date Standard Weighted Hours Y| Date  Standard Weighted Hours
Violent Criminal Assauit-Level 1 0 2 15.8 31.6 1 4 15.8 63.2
coas Criminal Harassment 0 3 15.8 47.4 0 1 158 15.8
Utter Threats to Person 0 0 0.0 0 1 15.8 15.8
Total 0 5 15.8 79.0 1 6 15.8 94.8
Property Crime Break & Enter 0 i 6.4 6.4 0 0 0.0
clations Theft Over -master code 0 1 6.4 6.4 0 1 6.4 6.4
Theft Over - Other Theft 0 0 0.0 0 1 6.4 6.4
Theft of Motor Vehicle 0 2 6.4 12.8 0 0 0.0
Theft Under -master code 0 0 0.0 1 1 6.4 6.4
Theft under - Other Theft 0 2 6.4 12.8 3 4 6.4 256
Fraud - False Pretence < =
$5,000 0 0 00 0 1 6.4 64
Fraud -Money/property/
security > $5,000 i 2 6.4 12.8 0 1 6.4 6.4
Fraud -Money/property/
securily <= $5,000 o 1 6.4 6.4 0 0 0.0
Mischief - master code 2 3 6.4 19.2 2 3 6.4 19.2
Total | 2 12 6.4 76.8 6 12 6.4 76.8
Other Criminal Code | Offensive Weapons-Other
Violations Weapons Offences 0 1 75 i 0 0 Lhe
(Excluding traffic) e .
Bail Violations - Fail To o a 0.0 0 2 75 15.0
Comply
Bail Violations -
Recognizance 0 0 0.0 0 1 7.5 7.5
Breach of Probation 1 1 7.5 7.5 ) 0 0.0
Offensive Weapons-Careless
use of firearms L 1 7.5 3 Y 0 L2
Animals - Cruelty
~+INACTIVE* 0 0 0.0 0 1 75 7.5
Total 2 3 7.5 225 ¢ 4 7.5 30.0
Drug Possession Drug related occurrence 1 1 741 71 i 0 0.0
Total 1 1 71 71 1] 0 0.0
Drugs Trafficking Other Controlled
Drugs and Substance Act 1 L 68.0 6.0 0 0 0.0
Total 1 1 68.0 68.0 0 ¢ 0.0
Statutes & Acts Landlord/Tenant 0 1 34 34 i] 4 34 136
Mental Health Act 0 2 34 6.8 2 11 34 374
Mental Health Act - No
T S R 1 3 34 10.2 0 2 34 68
Mental Health Act - Attemnpt
Suicide 1 1 34 34 0 0 0.0
Mental Health Act - Threat of
Suicide 0 1 34 34 i} 1 34 34
Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2023/09/09 Roque, Linda 13-8ep-23 3:34:47 PM

Page 10f3



Calls For Service {CFS) Billing Summary Report

Billing Categories
(Billing categories below do not match traditional
crime groupings)

Statutes & Acts

Operational

Operational2

Traffic

Mental Health Act - Voluntary
Transport

Trespass To Property Act
Total

Animal - Bear Complaint
Animal - Left in Vehicle
Animal Stray

Animal [njured

Animal - Dog Owners Liability
Act

Domestic Disturbance
Suspicious Person
Phone -Master code

Phone -Nuisance - No
Charges Laid

Phone -Other - No Charges
Laid

Fire - Other

Noise Complaint - Residence
Found Properly -Master code
Lost Property -Master code
Lost-Personal Accessories
Lost-Others

Sudden Death -master code

Sudden Death - Natural
Causes

Trouble with Youth
Unwanted Persons
Neighbour Dispute
Fireworks By-Law
Assist Public
Distressed/Overdue Motorist
Family Dispute

Total

_False Alarm -Othérs
Keep the Peace

911 call / 911 hang up
911 call - Dropped Cell
Total

MVC - Perscnal injury
{(MOTOR VEHICLE
COLLISION}

Report Content Last Updated:

202305/09

o O O o O O o o

pry

L= T = e B R — I = T S e R |

Assiginack
July - 2023
2023
Year to Time Year To Date
Date  Standard  Weighted Hours
0 0.0
5 34 17.0
13 34 44.2
1 3.8 3.8
1 38 3.8
2 38 7.6
1 38 3.8
1 38 38
2 38 7.6
38 228
0.0
3 3.8 11.4
0 0.0
0 0.0
0 0.0
0 0.0
2 38 7.6
2 38 7.6
1 38 3.8
2 3.8 7.6
1 3.8 3.8
1 38 3.8
0 0.0
9 38 34.2
1 38 3.8
5 38 19.0
0 0.0
6 38 228
47 3.8 178.6
1 1.4 1.4
3 1.4 4.2
1 1.4 1.4
5 1.4 7.0
10 14 14.0
0 00
Report generated by:
Roque, Linda

July

=]

Q = O O & N

o

o 9O O o O O o O

L = I - A - |

12

w = N o o

Year to
Date

21

-t a —_
th N B o T n = =~ O O =

2022
Time
Standard

34

3.4
3.4

3.8

38
3.8
3.8

38

3.8

3.8
38
38

3.8
38
3.8

38
38
38
3.8
1.4
1.4
14
1.4
1.4

37

Year To Date
Weighted Hours

34

6.8
714
0.0
0.0
3.8
0.0

0.0

19.0
22.8
3.8

38

3.8

38
3.8
7.6
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0

7.6
3.8
380
0.0
26.6
3.8
19.0
171.0
11.2
1.4
5.6
2.8
21.0

3.7

Report generated on:
13-Sep-23 3:24:47 PM

Page 2 of 3



Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

Assiginack
July - 2023
Billing Categories 2023 2022
(Biling categories below do not match traditional July Yearto  Time Year To Date Juy | Yearto | Time Year To Date
crime groupings) Y Date Standard Weighted Hours Y| Date | Standard Weighted Hours
Traffic MVC - Prop. Dam. Non 1
Reportable a 3 3.7 111 0 0 0.0
MVC - Prop. Dam.
Reportable (MOTOR 1 6 37 222 1 11 37 40.7
VEHICLE COLLISION)
MVC - Prop. Dam. Failed to
Remain (MOTOR VEHICLE 0 1 37 37 0 1 arT 3.7
COLLISION)
Total 1 10 3.7 37.0 1 13 T 48.1
R s s e e 18 102 527.2 27 1186 513.1

Note to Detachment Commanders:

» The content of each report is to be shared by the Detachment Commander only with the municipality for which it was generated.
The municipality may treat this as a public document and distribute it as they wish.

o All data is sourced from the Niche RMS application. Included are reported’ cccurrences (actuals and unfounded occurrences) for 'billable’
oceurrences ONLY. Data is refreshed on a weekly basis.

 The Traffic category includes motor vehicle collision (MVC} ocourrences entered into Niche (UCR code 8521). MVCs are NOT sourced
from the eCRS application for this report.

¢ Only the primary violation is counted within an occurrence.

» Time standards displayed are for the 2023 billing period.

Note to Municipalities:
o Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police continues to

investigate and solve crime.
« This report is NOT to be used for crime trend analysis as not all occurrences are included.
o Data groupings within this report do not match traditional crime groupings seen in other public reports such as the OPP Police Services

Board reports or Statistics Canada reporting.

Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2023/09/09 Roque, Linda 13-Sep-23 3:34:47 PM
Page 3 of 3



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK
BY-LAW # 2023-16

BEING A BY-LAW of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack to authorize
the Sale of Surplus Property known as the Clover Valley School House.

WHEREAS the necessary authority is found in Sections 8 and 270 of the Municipal
Act, 2001, 5.0. 2001, c. 25 as amended;

AND WHEREAS, By-law #04-37 outlines the procedures to be followed when the
municipality wishes to dispose of surplus property;

AND WHEREAS

a.} The Municipality declared this property surplus on April 6, 2021.

b.) The Municipality had the property appraised in 2021.

c.) At the Special Council Meeting on November 28, 2022, Council passed
Resolution #279-21-2022, instructing staff to prepare a sales tender of the
Clover Vallery Schoolhouse, with a minimum bid of $70,000.

d.) The tender was issued, and no tenders were received.

e.) A Request for Tenders for the Sale of the Clover Valley Schoolhouse was re-
issued on May 12, 2023 and advertised on social media, the municipality’s
website and in the Manitoulin Expositor, which resuited in the municipality
receiving three tender bids for the purchase of this property.

NOW THEREFORE THAT the Council of the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1.) THAT the property legally described as being Assiginack Concession 7, Lot 28
and known as the Clover Valley School House be sold to Glen Gibson and Luke
Smith for the sum of $23,000.00 (twenty-three thousand dollars).

2.) THAT the purchasers Glen Gibson and Luke Smith shall be responsible for all
legal and conveyance fees associated with the transfer and registration of this
property.

THAT this by-law shall come into effect on the day of , 2023.

AS READ a FIRST and SECOND TIME this day of . 2023,

AND AS READ a THIRD and FINAL TIME and considered passed, in open Council,
this day of 2023,

Brenda Reid, MAYOR

Heidi Ferguson, CLERK



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASSIGINACK

BY-LAW # 2023-17

Being a By-law to prescribe standards for the maintenance of property in a clean,
clear, and safe condition within the Township of Assiginack; to prohibit the
occupancy or use of a property that does not conform to the standards prescribed
within this by-taw; and establish enforcement procedures and fees for those owners
and occupants who are in contravention with this By-law.

WHEREAS the Official Plan for the Township of Assiginack include provisions relating to
conditions of maintenance and occupancy of property;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack deems it
desirable to establish standards for the maintenance and occupancy of property for the
protection of the safety, health, and well-being of the public and to present the degradation
of neighborhoods within the Township, and deems it beneficial to repeal By-laws 12-08, and
19-14 as amended, and replace with this By-law,

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the Building Code Act, 1992, S.0. 1992, Sections 15.1
through 15.8 inclusive, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack enacts
as follows:

DEFINITIONS:

1. “Accessory Building” shall mean a detached building or structure, that is not used for
human habitation, and is secondary or in addition to the primary use of the property.

2. “Act” shall mean the Building Code Act, 1992, including amendments thereto.

3. “Administrative Monetary Penalty” shall mean a financial penalty imposed and
collected by the municipality that can be levied against the property owner(s) or
occupant(s) for failure to comply with the provisions of this by-law. Also known as AMP’s.
Failure to pay the AMP will result in this penalty amount being added to the Collector's
Roll and collected as taxes.

4. “Appellant” shall mean the property owner(s) and/or occupant(s) who are dissatisfied
with the Order to Comply and make a notice of appeal to the municipality.

§. “Clerk” shall mean the Municipal Clerk for the Corporation of the Township of
Assiginack.

6. “Committee” shall mean the Property Standards Committee established under this By-
law.

7. “Complainant” shall mean the individual or persons who make a written complaint
against another individual or persons property being in contravention of this By-law.

8. “Corporation” shall mean the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack.
9. “Council” shall mean the Council of the Township of Assiginack.

10. “Exterior Property” shali mean any exterior areas on the property or building lot
excluding buildings. This may include the front and/or back and/or side yard(s).

11. “Hazard” shall mean a source or situation with the potential to harm or cause human
injury or ill-health, damage to property, damage to the environment, risk of fire or
combination of these.

12. “Groundcover” shall mean any plant or grass that grows over an area of ground and
provides protection of the topsoil from erosion and drought.



13. “Municipal Officer” shall mean the Municipal By-law Enforcement Officer or the Chief
Building Official who has been assigned the responsibility of administering and enforcing
this By-law.

14. “Municipality” shall mean the Corporation of the Township of Assiginack.

15. “Natural Gardens” shall mean the use of native plants including flowers, grasses,
trees, shrubs, and groundcover that are local to the geographic area of the garden.

16. “Notice of Compliance” shall mean a written notice to the property owner(s) and/or
occupant(s) that states the property is now in compliance of this By-law.

17. “Order to Remedy” shall mean a written notice to the property owner(s) andfor
occupant(s) that states any infractions and/or contraventions to this By-law.

18. “Order to Comply” shall mean a written notice to the property owner(s) and/or
occupant(s) that stipulates what must be completed to ensure compliance with this By-
law.

19. "Occupant” shall mean any person or persons of over the age of eighteen years, in
possession of the property.

20. “Owner” shall mean:

a) The person for the time being, managing or receiving the rent of the land or premises in
connections with which the word is used, whether on the persons’ own account or as
agent or trustee of any other person, or who would receive the rent if the tand and
premises were let, and

b} A lessee or occupant of the property who under the terms of lease is required to repair
and maintain the property in accordance with the standards for the maintenance and
occupancy of property.

21.  "Property” shall mean buildings, structures, or part thereof and shall include the land
and premises appurtenant there to and all mobile homes, mobile buildings, mobile
structures, outbuildings, fences, and installations thereon, whether heretofore or
hereafter erected and includes vacant property.

22. "Repair” shall mean the provision of such facilites and making the additions or
alterations or the taking of such action as may be required so that the property shall
conform to the standards established in this By-law.

23, “Turfgrass” shall mean any of the various grass species typically grown for lawns; of a
type that forms a dense, even turf when mown.

24. “Untidy” shall mean any property that is not in a neat or orderly state and not in
keeping with the neighboring properties to the extent in which it becomes a nuisance.

25. "Vehicle(s)” shall mean any bicycle, farm tractor, mobile home, motorcycle, road
building machine, self-propelled implement of husbandry, trailer, truck, motor vehicle,
all-terrain  vehicle, mini-bike, carriage, wagon, sleigh, motorized snow vehicle,
commercial vehicle, emergency vehicle, motor vehicle as defined by the Highway Traffic
Act, R.5.0. 1990, or any other conveyance of persons or things on land.

26. “Abandoned vehicle(s}” shalt mean any vehicle as defined by the Highway Traffic Act
that is not licensed, has been left unattended and is in an inoperable condition or state.

27. “Derelict Vehicle(s)” shall mean any vehicle as defined by the Highway Traffic Act, that
is unlicensed, not in operating condition, and may have visible deterioration and/or
damage.



APPLICATION:

1.) This By-law applies to all properties within any of the following zones of land within in the
Township of Assiginack, as determined by the Comprehensive Zoning By-law of the
Corporation:

a) Residential, Multi Residential and Shoreline Residential.
b) Commercial Recreational and General Commercial.
¢} Institutional.

2.) The standards of maintenance and occupancy of the property identified in attached
Schedule ‘A,” and forming part of this By-law, are hereby prescribed for all property
found in any zone listed above under Section 1.

3.) The occupancy or use of any property that does not conform to the standards prescribed
in Schedule ‘A’ is prohibited.

4.) The owner or occupant of any property shall repair and maintain that property in
accordance with the standards prescribed in Schedule 'A’ or the site shall be cleared of
all buildings, structures, debris or refuse and left in a graded and leveled condition.

5.) The municipality's Property Standards Committee is responsible for the administration
and governance of this By-law. The Property Standards Committee will be comprised of
members of Council.

6.) This By-law will be enforced by the By-law Enforcement Officer, in conjunction and
consultation with the Chief Building Official, as required and in accordance with the
provisions of the Building Code Act 1992 and amendments thereto.

7.} Following the inspection of the property and upon the request of the owner, The
Municipal Officer may issue the owner a Certificate of Compliance with the standards
prescribed by this By-law.

OFFENCE/PENALTY:
1.) Every person who contravenes any provision of this By-law is guilty of an offence.

2.) Any person who contravenes or fails to comply with the provisions of this By-law will be
subject to Administrative Monetary Penalties or AMP's, as per the Municipal Act 2001,
S.0. 2001 c. 25, Section 434.1.

3.) The AMP's amounts shall not exceed those identified in the attached Schedule C:
Order to Remedy.

4.) In accordance with Section 436 of the Municipal Act, 2001, the municipality may enter at
any reascnable time on private property for the purpose of conducting an inspection
regarding contravention or suspected contravention of this By-law.

5.} The owner or occupant shall not interfere with or attempt to interfere with the Municipal
Officer’s ability to conduct their investigation.

VALIDITY:

Should any section, subsection, clause, or provision of this By-law be declared
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction; the remainder shall continue to be in force
in the Township of Assiginack, with the provision that establishes the higher standard
to protect the health, safety and welfare of the public shall prevail.



REPEAL:
That any prior By-law relating to the content in this By-law be repealed.
Schedule ‘A’ to Schedule ‘F’ are attached and form part of this By-law.

This By-law may be cited as the “Property Standards By-law.”

AS READ a FIRST and SECOND time this of . 2023.

AND AS READ a THIRD and FINAL time and considered passed, in open Council, this

of , 2023.

Brenda Reid, MAYOR

Hetdi Ferguson, CLERK



SCHEDULE “A” to BY-LAW # 2023-17

PROPERTY STANDARDS

1.) GENERAL STANDARDS:

i.)

vi.}

vii.)

viii.)

iX.)

x.}

The owner or occupant of any property shall ensure that all exterior property areas
are maintained in a neat and tidy condition; free from objectives or conditions that
might create a health, fire or accident hazard or a condition unsafe to the public; and
50 not to distract from the neighboring environment.

All exterior property areas shall be kept free and clear from rubbish, garbage, brush,
waste, litter, and other debris.

All exterior property areas shall be kept free of injurious insects, termites, rodents,
vermin, and other pests that may create a health concern or hazard to the public.

Steps, walkways, parking spaces and similar areas of the yard shall be maintained to
allow safe passage under normal use and weather conditions.

Suitable ground cover shall be provided to maintain a good appearance, prevent the
erosion of soil and to be in harmony with the neighbouring environment. Where
turfgrass forms part of the ground cover, it shall be resodded or reseeded as often as
required to maintain the grass in a living condition,

The length of any ground cover, including turfgrass, shall be maintained to be in
harmony with the neighbouring environment and regularly maintained to not create a
fire, health, or accident hazard.

It is the responsibility of the property owner to ensure that the ground cover is
maintained on their property, as well as from their property lot line(s) to the sidewalk.

Any and all vegetative growth shall not obstruct sidewalks and/or roadways and shall
not restrict driver and pedestrian sight lines at intersections, driveways, sidewalks,
walkways, or visibility of traffic control signage.

Within a residential property, naturalized gardens are permitted. However, they are
only permitted in the rear yard of the property, to ensure that front yards are kept in
harmony with the neighbouring environment.

Any vehicle, boat, trailer, or part thereof, which is derelict, discarded, dismantled, or
partially dismantled or in an abandoned condition, shall not be stored or left on a
property. This, however, does not prevent the occupant or owner from repairing said
vehicle, for their own personal use and not commercial use, on their property and
having this said vehicle on the property while such repair is actively ongoing.

2.) GARBAGE AND REFUSE:

i)

ii.)

iii.)

Every dwelling shall be equipped with sufficient receptacles to contain all garbage,
rubbish, brush, waste, litter, and other debris.

No owner or occupant shall throw, place, bury, or dump or permit or cause to be
permitted, the throwing, placing, burying, or dumping of domestic or industrial waste
material on private land.

No owner or occupant shall throw, place, bury or dump domestic or industrial waste
on municipal property, unless given written authority by the Township of Assiginack.



iv.}  All garbage, rubbish, brush, waste, litter, or debris shall be disposed of in a manner
that is acceptable to the local Medical Officer of Health and Ontario Ministry of
Environment.

v.)  The owner or occupant that does not comply with these standards shall repair and
maintain their property to achieve compliance through the following:

a.) Remove or demolish the whole or the offending part of any property that is not
accordance with these standards;

b.) Clear the site of all buildings, structures, garbage or refuse and leave the property in
a graded and levelled condition.

c.} Itis the owner or occupants’ responsibility to ensure that when applicable, the
appropriate building permit or demolition permits have been obtained prior {0 work
commencing.

3.) FENCES AND ACCESSORIES:

i) All fences and accessory buildings shall be kept in good repair and free of any fire,
health, or accident hazards.

ii.) All fences and accessory buildings shall be maintained so they do not present an
unsightly appearance.

4.) DRAINAGE AND PONDING:

i) Exterior property areas shall be graded and maintained to prevent the ponding of
water, an unsafe condition or a condition that is harmful to the environment,

ii.) Catch basins and swales shall be installed and maintained where necessary to
facilitate drainage and so as not to impede the natural flow of water.

ii.)  Storm water run-off from downspouts and impervious surfaces shall be contained
within the limits of the property until absorbed by the soil or drained to a swale,
watercourse, or storm sewer.

5.) STRUCTURAL CAPACITY:

i) Every building or part thereof shall be capable of safely sustaining its own weight and
any additional weight load that may be imposed by natural causes, such as snow,
wind, and all others, as specified in the Ontario Building Code.

i) The factor of safety specified in the Ontario Building Code is the minimum standard
that must be met.

iii.)  The above standards and factors are to be met without exceeding soil capacity and
the maximum differential or other settliement, as specified in the Ontario Building
Code.

iv.)  If the Chief Building Official is not satisfied with the structural capacity of a building or
any part of a building, they may require that the owner or occupant establish
structural capacity through the submission of a report. This report shall be prepared,
sealed, and signed by a professional engineer who is qualified in their field and
licensed by the Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario.

6.) VACANT LOT(S):

i) Every owner of a vacant lot shall be responsible for maintaining the ground cover so
that it is in a neat and tidy condition and that it does not create a fire, health, or

4]



v.)

vi.)

accident hazard and is in harmony with the neighbouring environment.

Any owner who contravenes or fails to comply with section (i) above of this By-law,
will be subject to administrative monetary penalties or AMP's, as per the Municipal
Act 2001, S.0. 2001 c. 25, Section 434.1.

The Municipality will notify the owner(s) by June 1 of each year of any non-
compliance with Section (i) above and the owner(s) will have until July 1 of the same
year to bring the property into compliance with this By-law,

The Municipality has the right to attend the property any time after July 1, and to do
what is necessary to bring the property into compliance,

Any work that is conducted will be done at the owner's expense and the municipality
will invoice the owner(s) for all the costs involved with the completion of this work.

If payment in full is not received within ninety (90) days of the date of the invoice,
these costs will be added to the Collector's Roll and collected as taxes.



SCHEDULE “B” to BY-LAW # 2023-17

ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES

1.) COMPLAINT PROCESS:

i)

ii.)

ii.)

iv.)

ii.)

#i.)

iv.)

3.)
i)

All property standards complaints from a ratepayer, neighbour or other individual,
must be submitted in writing to the municipality and addressed to:

Township of Assiginack

C/Q Property Standards Committee
P.O. Box 238

Manitowaning, ON POP 1NO

The complainant should include all pertinent information depicting the infractions
and any information regarding the owner(s), occupant(s) or property that is
available to them at the time of the complaint.

Upon receipt of a complaint, the Property Standards Committee will meet to review
the complaint and may assign the Municipal Officer to further investigate the
complaint.

The complainant may be contacted by the municipality for further information or
follow-up regarding their complaint.

The municipality will inform the property owner(s) and/or occupant (s) of the
complaint and arrange for an inspection of the infraction, as outlined within the
written complaint.

INSPECTION PROCESS:

Under Section 15.2 of the Ontario Building Code, a Municipal Officer may enter
upon any property, at any reasonable time without a warrant, for the purpose of
inspecting the property to determine whether the property conforms with the
standards as prescribed by the By-law or whether an order has been complied with.

Upon inspection and where the property is deemed to be in contravention to the By-
law, the Municipal Officer shall:

a.) Provide a copy of the Property Standards By-law to the property owner.

b.) Issue an Order to Remedy the contraventions or infractions to the property
owner(s) within thirty (30) days of the issue of the order.

The Municipal Officer shall also follow up and inspect the property of concern at the
end of the Order to Remedy.

If action has been taken and the property is restored to compliance, then a Notice
of Compliance shall be issued to the property owner and the Order to Remedy will
be closed without further action.

If no action or progress to resolve the contravention has taken place after the thirty
(30) days, then the Officer will issue an Order to Comply to the property owner(s).

ORDER TO COMPLY:

The Order to Comply notice will be delivered either in person or sent through
registered mail to the property owner(s) and all persons shown as per the
assessment records,



i.)

The Order to Comply notice will contain the following information:
a.) The date of the first inspection.

b.) The date(s) of any subsequent inspections,
¢.) The municipal address and legal description of the property of concem.
d.) Alist of all infractions noted against the property, its structure(s) or building(s).

e.) A final date for giving notice of compliance from the Order to Comply issued.

4.) APPEAL PROCESS:

L)

i.)

hii.)

iv.)

v.)

When an owner or occupant for which an order has been issued in accordance
with this By-law is not satisfied with the terms and conditions of the Order to
Comply, they may make an appeal to the Property Standards Committee.

All appeals must be received in writing to the Township of Assiginack, c/o Property
Standards Committee and received through registered mail, within fourteen (14)
days after the service of the Order to Comply.

Within the written notice of appeal, the appellant must include the following
information:;

a. Their name, address, telephone call and/or email address.

b. Reason(s) for their appeal,

¢. Any requests for extension to the timeline for compliance.

d. Any other information they feel is pertinent to support their appeal.

e. The owner or occupant must sign their written request.

Upon receipt of a notice of appeal, the Clerk will schedule a meeting between the
appellant and the Property Standards Committee, to provide an opportunity for the
appellant to share their appeal directly with the members of the committee. Upon
request by the Property Standards Committee, the Municipal Officer may also be

present during the appeal process.

The decision of the Property Standards Commitiee on all appeals is final.



MUNICIPALITY

OF ASSIGINACK

SCHEDULE “C” to BY-LAW # 2023-17

ORDER TO REMEDY
Property Roll #
Registered Owner (s)
Legal Address
Civic Address
Order Details:

Received

Date Non-Compliance Notice

Date of initial Inspection w/Owner

Date of the Order to Remedy

Hand Delivered or Registered Mail #

Due date to remedy by (+30 days)

Property Standard Section ! Brief Summary of the Standard Set Penalty

Schedule A: S.1_(i-iii). Untidy, Pests, Potential Hazards. $200
| GENERAL STANDARDS A5

Schedule A; S.1.(iv). Unsafe passage or access points. $200

GENERAL STANDARDS

Schedule A: §.1.(v). Groundcover Hazard. $200

GENERAL STANDARDS

Schedule A: S.1.(vi-vii) Unmaintained groundcover, $200

GENERAL STANDARDS Unmaintained groundcover obstruction.

Schedule A: S1. (viii) Improper location of naturalized $200

GENERAL STANDARDS garden.

Schedule A: S.1.(ix). Derelict or abandoned vehicles. $200
| GENERAL STANDARDS E

Schedule A: Insufficient Receptacles, Improper $200
| 8.2. {iHiv). GARBAGE disposal of garbage.
| Schedule A: 8.2. (v.(a-c). Failure to comply with repair or $200
{ GARBAGE maintenance.

Schedule A: 8.3(i) Potential Hazard. $200

FENCES & ACCESSORIES

Schedule A: S.3(ii) Insufficient Maintenance/Upkeep. $200

FENCES & ACCESSORIES

Schedule A: S.4(i-iii). Insufficient Drainage / Flow of Water. $200

DRAINAGE & PONDING

Schedule A: 8.5 (i-iv). Unsound Condition Structure(s). $200

STRUCTURAL CAPACITY

Schedule A: $.6 (i). Ground Cover Condition or Hazard. $200

VACANT LOT(S)

Schedule A: S.6 (iii). Thirty (30) Day Notice: June 1 Letter. $200

VACANT LOT(S)

Schedule A: §.6 (iv-v). Non-compliance to be remedied by $200

VACANT LOT(S) Municipality: July 1 Letter.

Schedule A: $.6 {vi). Compliance: Work completed and Cost as per

VACANT LOT(S) remedial invoice to be added as taxes. work

completed.

10




Description of infractions as noted above:

Municipal Officer Signature:
Date:




MUNICIPALITY OF ASSIGINACK

SCHEDULE “D” to BY-LAW # 2023-17
ORDER TO COMPLY

[ Inspection at Remedy due date

 Date of this Order to Comply
Date of initial Inspection w/Owner

’gher inspection Dates
Appeal Acceptance Deadline (+14 days) |

[Property Roll #

Registered Owner (s)

Legal Address
Civic Address

IMMEDIATE COMPLIANCE IS REQUIRED FOR THE ISSUED ORDER TO
REMEDY ON YOUR PROPERTY AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS.

Property Standard infractions on your property fall under the following Sections
of this By-law:

0 S.1.: General Standards 0 8.4 Drainage & Ponding
0 8.2.: Garbage O S.5 Structural Capacity
[0 8.3.: Fences & Accessories [0 8.6 Vacant Lot (s)

Further Summary as may be required:

Please find the attached copy of the original Order to Remedy sent to you.
These items are all required to be completed to regain compliance with By-law
2023-17.

&I A copy of the original Order to Remedy is attached to this Order to Comply.

& Final Compliance Inspection Notice Required: An onsite meeting is required
with the Municipal By-law Enforcement Officer, to avoid the file being
processed further into potential legal action and this meeting must be
scheduled within the timeframe identified below.

Meeting Required by:

Order to Comply Issued By:

Municipal Officer Signature

Name Printed



MUNICIPALITY OF ASSIGINACK

SCHEDULE “E” to BY-LAW # 2023-17
NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE

[ Property Roll # |

' Registered Owner (s)

Legal Address

Civic Address

Property Standard infractions previously listed on your property through the
following:

o Order to Remedy and/orthe o Order to Comply (as attached)
Have now been found to comply with the standards of By-law 2023-17.

We thank you for your attention in remedying this matter.

Municipal Officer Signature

Name Printed

Date



MUNICIPALITY OF ASSIGINACK

SCHEDULE “F” to BY-LAW # 2023-17

LEGAL ACTION NOTICE

Property Roll #

Registered Owner(s)

Legal Address

Civic Address

Property Standard infractions previously listed on your property through the
following:

o Order to Remedy and/orthe o Order to Comply (as attached)

Have now been found to be in continued delinquency within the standards of
By-law 2023-17, despite multiple notices and attempts to work with you to find
an adequate solution.

All records on file for these infractions are being forwarded to the Township of
Assiginack Property Standards Committee to be heard, discussed, and then
processed by our Municipal Solicitor.

If you wish to be present during these discussions, you must contact the Clerk,
Heidi Ferguson at (705) 859-3196 or email hferquson@assiginack.ca for the
date and time of the meeting.

Municipal Officer Signature

Name Printed

Date



	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (00E).pdf
	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (010).pdf



